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SENATOR WYNONA M. LIPMAN (Chairman}: We're going to 

begin this hearing now. I would 1 ike to announce that Senator 

Jerry Stockman has been appointed as a temporary replacement 

for Senator Laurence Weiss who could not come today. Before I 

make this opening statement, I would 

who comes to the witness s~and to 

1 ike to remind everyone 

please speak into the 

microphone. It would help very much, our transcribers. 

The last year has been both turbulent and 

controversial by the arts community--

(informed by audience that they cannot hear} 

You can't hear? Okay. That is not a real 

microphone. (speaks louder) 

The last year has been both turbulent and 

controversial by the arts community in New Jersey. Competition 

for funding in both public and private sources has increased 

dramatically, and it is unlikely that the opportunities of the 

booming and expansive '80s will be repeated in the near future. 

While those of us who have been active in promoting 

the development of arts in our communities and in our State 

have had a number of disappointments, we cannot let these 

temporary setbacks weaken our commitment to this effort. There 

have, in fact, been some positive developments. The public 

debate on arts funding has focused greater attention on the 

importance of the role of the arts in economic development and 

in improving the quality of life in New Jersey, particularly in 

our cities. 

Additionally, it has mobilized and solidified the arts 

community, as we see here today. Plans and funding for the 

Performing Arts Center in Newark are moving forward. In New 

Brunswick, construction has begun on the new home of Crossroads 

Theater, which recently received national recognition for its 

Washington production of "Black Eagles." In southern New 

Jersey plans for the Performing Art Center in Camden are also 

moving forward. 
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A vital part of the success of these projects and the 

growth of the arts is a continuation of an independent, 

professionally-managed State Council on the Arts. This will 

only occur if both the statutory relationship between the 

Department of State and the Council -- and the obligations of 

each of these respective agencies is clearly understood. It 

should also be understood by the Executive and by the 

Legislature. The reaffirmation of the legislative policies 

enunciated in the enabling legislation which established this 

Council as an independent agency is one of the purposes for 

today's hearing. 

We will also review certain activities of the Arts 

Council, particularly the grants application process, and 

discuss the benefits within the arts community of maintaining 

the integrity and the independence of the grant application 

process. 

At a time when competition for funding is so great, it 

is extremely important that everyone -- the arts community, the 

Legislature, and the public -- have confidence in the fact that 

the procedures used to make decisions regarding the expenditure 

of public funds is fair and impartial. 

Assuming that we are able to complete the testimony 

today, and the questions raised by the Cammi ttee are answered 

in a satisfactory manner, .I anticipate that the Committee wil 1 

issue a report within the next three to four weeks. 

Before concluding my opening statement, I would like 

to thank all of you for your participation. I'd also like to 

announce that Senator Haines, our fifth member, has a flat tire 

but he'll be in momentarily. 

So, now I shall call the Secretary of State, the 

Honorable Joan Haberle. 

S E C R E T A R Y O F S T A T E J O A N M. H A B E R L E: 

Good morning, Senator. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Good morning. 
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SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: First, I want· to thank 

the Cammi ttee for the opportunity to speak to them today. I 

regret that my testimony must be very brief. Prior to 

receiving notice of this hearing, I committed to attend a 

meeting of the Ethical Standards Commission, of which I am a 

member. This meeting is occurring simultaneously, which I 

might add, we do not have a quorum -- and I represent a quorum 

so I must get back. 

As you may know, the Attorney General's Office issued 

12, 1991 which clarified the a statement on March 

responsibilities of the Department of State and the State 

Council on the Arts regarding personnel matters. 

Traditionally, the appointing authority for the Arts Council 

personnel was the Secretary of State's Office. The practice of 

the Secretary of State hiring personnel for the Arts Council 

was in existence when I took_ office in January 1990. I do not 

know when this practice first began, but I continued to operate 

under the same procedure. Unfortunately, my budget was 

reduced, and as such, necessitated reducing personnel. As an 

appointing authority, one is sometimes faced with the 

unpleasant task of terminating rather than hiring personnel, 

for the purpose of balancing the budget. 

On this basis I issued the notices to personnel at the 

Arts Council. It is my understanding, that based on the 

recommendations of the Attorney General's Office, the Council 

will now be respons_ible for its budget and personnel. 

I serve as an ex officio member of the Arts Council 

and am a nonvoting member in the grants process. I have always 

maintained that the Council's grants are awarded independently 

of my office, and I would 1 ike to use this opportunity to 

assure the Committee that this practice has never changed, and 

the grants continue to be awarded by the same process as 

established in the previous administration. 
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I regret that I must go back to Ethical Standards, 

today. Senator, with your permission, I would like to leave Ed 

Durham here to answer any questions that might come up. He's 

Director of Administration and has been with the Department for 

the past 17 years. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, all right, but I'm sure that the 

members of this Committee will have a small fit if they can't 

ask you a couple of questions. 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: Well, I think we'll 

probably have another 20 minutes at the Ethical Standards 

Commission. We' re just going into closed session, so if I can 

get back, I can probably come right back as soon as we finish. 

(Senator Lipman confers with Committee members) 

· SENATOR LIPMAN: I think maybe we'd better take a 

couple of minut~s, now, all right? I'm sorry. 

Go ahead. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I think Secretary of State has 

pretty much answered one question I was concerned with, and 

it's already been done by the Attorney General's Office. Your 

statement covers that, and I've already read the statement from 

the Attorney General, so I'm pleased with what I read there. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: So you are satisfied. Is Senator 

Stockman? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, I appreciate the Secretary of 

State's time dilemma here. We had some questions prepared, and 

I think they. were good ones. I think most of them have been 

answered in the statement. I think everybody's concerned about 

this question of independence of the grant process. I think 

the question of the layoffs, and where we are in going back on 

that, has been worked out. So, the Attorney General's opinion 

seems to make clear that it's a decision that should be made by 

the Arts Counci 1 itself. I think the Secretary of State has 

acknowledged that, and acknowledged that the practice that 

seemed to call for a different approach was something that she 
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inherited, and she recognizes is really not consistent with the 

letter or the spirit of the legislation creating and moving the 

Arts Council around. So I tend to agree with Senator 

McManimon, that in large measure the major questions that we 

were concerned about have been touched on in her statement. I 

gather that she will be available, arguably, later. I think 

there are going to be comments and remarks by other witnesses 

that may raise some other questions, but I think the major 

concerns that we have, have been addressed by the Secretary of 

State. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. Madam Secretary, you did not 

exactly clarify the origin of the practice. Do you know it? 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: No, I do not, Senator. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You said it was there when you came. 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: Yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes, I just have a brief 

question. Frankly, most of the public questions that have been 

raised have been answered before this hearing, but there is one 

question that remains to me, and it's a practical question: 

If, indeed, they have the legal authority to hire these people 

back, do they have the funds? Are those funds available to 

them to hire these people back? Because having the authority 

without having the money is kind of an empty gesture. 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: Yes. They probably, in 

all likelihood, will have the funds available in their budget. 

We have been sitting down with our fiscal people and trying to 

work very closely with them. So, providing that the funds are 

available-- I think part of their funding might come from 

Federal funds; they would have the money available. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you. That's the only 

question I have, Madam Chairman. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: So, Madam Secretary, there will be a 

change in the procedure regarding the way that staff is hired 
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and fired? Do I understand that? 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: Well, we'll still give 

them the support and the backup through the fiscal operation 

that they need. Someone must be there to do the paperwork. 

Our office will still be there to do all the paperwork for 

them. So, we'll be there to lend them any support staff that 

they need. They must still have a BB-10 signed like anyone 

else when they hire someone, which still goes through the 

normal process that any BB-10 would. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Al 1 right. Well, if there are no 

more questions--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I think 

practice, incidentally Madam Chairlady, 

the question of the 

may be one · we could 

explore with Jane Burgio. I see she is a witness who intends· 

to be here. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. She is here. The former 

Secretary of State. 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: If I can just finish down 

the street, then I will absolutely stop back in. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, we'll look forward to your 

return. 

SECRETARY OF STATE HABERLE: Okay, thank you. I 

appreciate your helping me this morning. with that situation. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Thank you, very much. 

I think I'll make a panel now, if it's all right with 

everybody. From the Council on the Arts, Ms. Christopherson, 

Ms. Penney, Ms. Harrington. And I think we'll take the former 

Chairman here, Mr. Price, Professor Price. Are there enough 

seats for you? 

Ms. Christopherson, everybody knows, is the Chair of 

the Council. Ms. Celeste Penney is one of the oldest members 

and Sharon Harrington is one of the newest members. Professor 

Clem Price is sort of emeritus now. I think he got bdoted out. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: I was just wondering how he was so 

lucky to be grouped with the rest of us? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Wel 1, he got that on the basis of 

friendship. 

All right, we'll start with you, Ms. Christopherson. 

You have some remarks? 

E L I Z A B E T H G. CHRISTOPHERSO N: Senator 

Lipman, distinguished members of the Senate State Government 

and Federal and Interstate Relations Committee, and guests: 

Thank you for the invitation to testify before you today. As 

you indicated in your invitation, the purpose of today's 

session is to examine the mission and goals of the New Jersey 

State Council on the Arts, the Council's relationship to the 

Department of State, and compliance with legislative intent. 

This provides an opportunity to describe the status of 

.the agency, and the steps we are pursuing to ensure that the 

New Jersey State Council on the Arts continues to fulfill its 

legislative mandate and work for the benefit for the people of 

New Jersey. 

The missions and goals: The mission of the Council is 

drawn directly from its enabling legislation, P.L. 1966, C.214, 

particularly from such language as is contained in clause 2. a 

which reads "The duty of the Council shall be to take such 

steps as may be deemed appropriate to stimulate and encourage 

the study and presentation of the performing and creative arts, 

and to foster public interest in, and support of, the arts of 

our State." 

Thus, years ago, 

be to improve the quality 

through arts education 

the Co_uncil declared its mission to 

of life for residents of New Jersey 

and the support of high quality, 

diversified arts activities that 

residents regardless 

physical condition, 

circumstance. 

of race, age, 

geographic 
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The primary ways in which the Council fulfills its 

mission are the administration of a multifaceted program of 

grants and fellowships, an extensive program of arts education 

residencies and services, and a variety of special cosponsored 

projects to spotlight New Jersey talents. 

The Council's missions and goals also derive from 

other acts, including the Arts Inclusion Act of 1978, the 

Cultural Centers Designation Act of 1985, and the Green Acres 

Cultural Centers and Historic Preservation Bond Act of 1987. 

Each charges the Counci 1 as the agency of State government to 

administer specific programs and support for the benefit of 

artists, arts groups, and the people of the State. 

Specifically, the Council is designated as the 

official agency of the State for the receipt and disbursement 

of funds provided to the State by the National Endowment for 

the Arts, N.J.S.A, 52:16A-28. Indeed, it is the people of the 

State of New Jersey that are the principal beneficiaries. Over 

13 million people annually attend or otherwise directly benefit 

from the performances, exhibitions, publications, broadcasts, 

and other services provided through the Council grant support. 

That number far exceeds the- total annual attendance - at all 

sporting events conducted at the Meadowlands complex. 

Council grants support over 10,000 cultural events 

each year, involving over 48,000 profess ion al artists. This 

includes the- musicians in our orchestras, the actors in our 

theaters, dancers, painters, sculptors, media artists, writers 

and more. , The Council's arts education program, over the years 

has placed literally hundreds of artists in residence in our 

public schools to teach children how to paint, to write, to 

act, to dance, and to give voice to that most fundamental of 

human impulses; the desire to create. 

For example, in Fiscal Year 1990, the Council reached 

24,000 school children, two-thirds of whom are in inner 

cities. The Council's grants are matched three, four, often 

8 



five times over, by the recipients. Council grants help 

leverage private investment in the arts. In turn, grantee 

expenditures employ people, contribute to tax revenues, and 

prompt audience spending in our local economies that exceeds 

two, even three times the initial investment. 

Last March, at our Council meeting, Governor Florio, 

Senate President Lynch, Commissioner Primas, and Mayor James 

each spoke to the Council. The focus of this meeting was the 

importance of the arts to urban revitalization. The New Jersey 

Performing Arts Center, the Newark Arts Council, and ArtPride 

have each conducted recent studies demonstrating the importance 

of the arts to our economy. 

The programs of the Council have, over the years, 

helped establish a vital, vibrant and growing sector of our 

State's economy. The Council's program assists artists, arts 

groups, and audiences in all 21 counties of our State, from 

most urban to most rural. The program helps the larger 

developed groups through the general operating grants and 

special project grants, but also, vigorously supports local and 

emerging groups through Block Grants to county arts agencies. 

Over the years, the Council has also developed special support 

programs to meet the unique chal l~nges faced by southern New 

Jersey and the minority arts community. 

The relationship with the Department of State in 

compliance with legislative intent -- and I begin with a brief 

history: Almost 25 years ago on July 29, 1966, Governor Hughes 

signed the Council's enabling legislation. By this legislation 

the Council was, "established in the Department of State," and 

consisted of 15 gubernatorially appointed persons and a $75,000 

appropriation. Section 3 of the enabling legislation 

enumerates the various powers and responsibilities of the 

Council. They include the authority to, "employ an Executive 

Director and such other personnel as may be deemed necessary to 

accomplish its objectives within the limit of funds 
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available,"authority to, "adopt 

concerning the operation of the 

to, "request from any department 

rules and 

Council," and 

or agency of 

regulations 

authority 

the State 
government, such assistance, information, and advice as will 

enable it to carry out its powers and duties." 

The history of the Council was not always a smooth 

one. In March 1979, the Council received notification from the 

National Endowment for the Arts that its basic State operating 

grant had been rejected. To quote from the March 23, 1979 

letter, "The criteria applied to all State arts agency 

applications, seek identification of a decision-making process 

which is informed, participatory, objective, supportive, and 

responsive. There must be responsible and effective 

governance, management, and administrative operating policies 

and procedures, including fiscal procedures for the State Arts 

agency." The panel looked for evidence of positive leadership 

by the State Arts agency on behalf of the arts. The criteria 

called for provision for evaluation of agency effectiveness on 

a regular basis, and evidence of response to such evaluation. 

Finally, they ask about a provision for public reporting on a 

regular timely basis concerning agency policies, programs, and 

evaluation of impact of art ~upport services. The 1979 letter 

from the National Endowrnen1: continues, "As reviewed against 

this criteria, the Federal/State panel found the application 

from the New Jersey State Council on the Arts to be 

inadequate." Over a decade ago, the Council's management 

policies came under Federal scrutiny and were found to be 

lacking. Steps were taken to correct this situation before the 

agency was able to receive funding. 

In 1980, operating with approximately $1 million 

annual appropriation, the Council was moved to the Department 

of Education. Three years later, in 1983, operating with a 

State appropriation of approximately $3 million, the Council 

was moved back into the Department of State because of the 
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Secretary's background and interest in the arts. While 

legislation is silent on how the Council fits into the general 

framework of State government,· it was thought that this move 

would be the proper place to enhance cooperation to benefit the 

Council. In 1983 the Council's membership also increased to 17 

appointees and three ex officio members to include a member of 

the Senate -- Senator Stockman -- a member of the Assembly 

Assemblywoman Ogden -- and the Secretary of State. The Council 

continued to set policy, establish programs, and administer 

State appropriations and Federal grants. 

Regarding personnel issues, it's my understanding 

since 1982 -- during my nine years of experience as a Council 

member that the Arts Council followed procedures as 

authorized in the statutory legislation. During this period, 

the Council initiated the s~arch and approved by full vote of 

the Council the hiring of the Executive Director and the 

Assistant Executive Director. The Council, through its 

Executive Director, authorized and conducted job searches -­

sometimes of a national scope to find professionally 

qualified candidates for all positions. In ·this way, the 

Council was able through the 1980s to attract an extremely 

wel 1-qual if ied, hardworking, and dedicated staff without 

increasing its total size. 

The salary and wages of the work force were met 

through the Legislature's annual appropriation to the Council 

for that purpose, as identified in Account No. 2530112 in the 

Appropriations Handbook, as the salary and wage account of the 

New Jersey State Council on the Arts, Additional funds from 

accounts other than the general fund were also available: the 

Federal Basic State Grant, the Arts and Education Grant, and 

the Cultural Centers Bond Program. That work force, division 

of the Council, and the substantially increased appropriations 

to the Council provided by the administration and the 

Legislature through the 1980s, combined in a powerful way to 
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build one of the most innovative, responsive, accountable, and 

well run programs in the country. 

In May of 1989, the Council was invited to appear 

before the Centennial Meeting of the National Council on the 

Arts to share with the entire country the story of the 

Council's remarkable transformation. At that time, it had a 

budget of $23 million, a staff of 26, and a series of programs 

and services that included a comprehensive grants program, a 

highly esteemed arts education program, a nationally recognized 

crafts program, a $40 million Cultural Centers Bond Program, a 

Cultural Centers Designation Program, and Arts Inclusion 

Program, special projects in the visual, performing, and 

literary arts, a State/County Partnership Program, a Minority 

Arts Initiative Program, a Southern New Jersey Arts Initiative 

Program, and an Active Information Services Program. 

So what is the situation today? Over the course of 

the last year-and-a-half, the number of Council staff reporting 

to the State Council on the Arts went from 26 to 11 and is now 

at 14. These figures include some part~time staff. The early 

terminations and transfers in 1990 were explained to the 

Council as being driven by the serious downturn in the economy 

and the administrative efforts to centralize key functions of 

information services and fiscal operations. 

accommodate the serious budget deficit 

In an eff art to 

and change in 

administration, these changes were reluctantly accepted. 

However, it should be noted that in the spirit of cooperation 

and with the intent of establishing a good working relationship 

with the Department, the Council requested opportunities to 

discuss the staffing of the leadership of the Department and 

communicated its need to participate in, and authorize, 

subsequent actions. 

In December 1990, with a staffing complement of 15, 

members of the Councils Executive Committee met with the 

Secretary of State. With the assistance of the Acting Director 

12 



we identified the minimal, critical personnel necessary to 

operate the agency. In mid-February, three of the key 

personnel professional staff were terminated, and two other 

staff were transferred. These two staff, as those previously 

transferred, remain on the New Jersey State Council on the Arts 

payroll. These actions significantly affect the New Jersey 

State Council on the Arts and the arts community. These 

actions taken, without consent of the Council, seriously impair 

our ability to meet our mandated, statutory responsibilities. 

Upon notification, the Council took immediate steps to swiftly, 

effectively, and internally resolve these issues and while 

frustrating the press and public, we continued to work for a 

•positive resolution, internally. 

We called for meetings with the Secretary of State and 

the Governor's Off ice. In these meetings, we clearly 

communicated the fiscal and legal implications of these 

actions. We asked for an opinion from the Attorney General's 

Office, restoration of key personnel, and open communication 

lines. During our meetings, all parties agreed there is 

funding available for salaries iri Fiscal Year 1991 and Fiscal 

Year 1992, unless the fiscal situation worsens, in which case, 

additional funds will be sought. 

As of March 12, the Council received a statement from 

the Attorney General which concludes that the Secretary of 

State acted within her authority in undertaking these recent 

decisions. It also states that the Arts Council continues to 

have the authority to hire those persons it deems necessary to 

carry out its functions as articulated in statutory legislation 

and the July 1990 Senior Deputy Attorney General's opinion. 

Last week, the Council's Executive Committee and 

leadership of ArtPride met with a representative from the 

Governor's Office and received a personal commitment from the 

Governor's Off ice to develop a framework for continued 

p-rogress, to meet the short-term operational needs of the New 
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Jersey State Council on the Arts, and provide active leadership 

in working with various departments of State government to 

achieve long-term solutions to the issue of appropriate titles 

for our professional staff and other critical needs. 

From the start it has been the Council's position to 

be unconditionally constructive. With all parties working 

together, we were able to make significant progress and focus 

on the pressing needs at hand. 

We are encouraged by the involvement and support of 

the Governor's Office. Members of the Governor's Off ice are 

aware of the immediacy of our operational needs and have made a 

commitment to provide the support required to ensure that these 

needs are met and are swiftly, adequately, and appropriately 

addressed. 

To this end, the three professional staff who were 

most recently terminated have been reinstated. The issue of 

transferred personnel is being addressed. Although, to date, 

no transferred staff have reported back to the Council, the 

Governor's Office has made a commitment to secure these 

services. 

Just as it is important for me to share this good 

news, it also imperative that I provide you with a clear 

picture of the Council today. What we now have is a budget of 

$11 million and a staff of 14, including one part-time staff, 

reporting to the Council. We are expected and required to 

manage virtually all but two of the same prog.rams and at the 

same level of responsibility as we did when we had $23 million 

and a staff of 26. Yet even with 14, the Council, at present, 

has insufficient staff to meet all our responsibilities. 

What are the risks that need to be managed? 

1) Federal funding, 

2) The long-range planning which is a requirement for 

the NEA State agency funding, 

3 )· · Adequate and timely grants management, 
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4} The appropriate fiscal management and 

accountability and potential loss of Fiscal Year 1991 funds for 

State arts organizations, 

5) Proper management of the Cultural Centers Bond 

Program, 

the 

6) 

Arts 

Participation in the new National Endowment for 

grant categories to support under served 

constituencies, specifically inner cities and rural populations, 

7) The management of Council initiatives and 

cosponsored projects and management of legislatively mandated 

programs, arts inclusion and the Cultural Centers designation, 

8} The completion of the codification of Council 

policies and procedures as indicated by audit, 

9) The- ability to respond in a complete, accurate, 

and timely manner for requests for information: public, press, 

arts constituency, Legislature, Governor's Office, Department 

of State, and Council members. 

Because of recent actions, the work of the Council is 

seriously delayed. The Council's commitment has been, and 

continues to be, to complete our responsibilities in a timely 

fashion for the benefit of the arts community in the State. We 

will do this with the concerted effort of all the important 

individuals and groups involved. I include the Council, the 

Governor's Office, the Secretary of State, the Senate State 

Government Committee, and other members of the Legislature and 

arts community. 

In conclusion, progress has been made in the last few 

days. We are encouraged by the commitment of the Secretary of 

State and the Governor's Office, and we greatly appreciate the 

response and support of the arts community and advocates in the 

Legislature. Our mission is so important and so much is at 

stake. We must all work together for the great purpose of 

promoting the arts in the State of New Jersey. 

Thank you. (applause from audience) 

15 
:;:. 



SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you, very much. All right. So 

you see you have fans here. The Arts Council has fans. 

(Senator Lipman confers with other Committee members) 

How do you want to handle this, gentlemen? Do you 

want to ask her questions before the others finish? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: We started on this side for the 

last, so perhaps will defer it to the other side. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Haines? Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I have a question, if I may? I'd 

just like to get a few additional pieces of information. 

Do you have -- in addition to the paid people any 

volunteer staff people? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: No, we do not. Well, the 

Council, I guess. They are all volunteers, excuse me, but they 

are not considered staff. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: But they 

function. Because it appears to me 

expanding function over the last 10 or 

perform ·part of your 

that you've had an 

15 years. Since this 

whole area of State government has been formed, the function 

has been expanding. My general impression is that there are 

more arts projects available today and more arts centers 

available today. I have several of them in my own district. 

They weren't there awhile ago, and they are now. I just have 

the impression that there's more of this kind of activity. 

But your budget has gone to $11 million and 14 people 

from, I think you said to us, $23 million and 26 people. How 

does that balance with an expanding function? Is there, in 

fact, going to be a curtailment of your function as a result of 

these changes? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Senator, there already has been a 

curtailment of programs and services, thin9s that we'd like to 

provide the public, but we have been understanding of the 

serious budget situation and understood there were certain 

bottom line.things that we needed to provide; things that we're 
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legislative mandated to provide. As long as we can work with a 

very lean staff-- Indeed, it's been a very tough job -- one 

with a lot of obstacles -- but we've tried very, very hard to 

be understanding of that, to at least get the essential things 

that we need to do done and the services provided for the State. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You've indicated that these people 

who were let go, which precipitated this public furor, have 

been rehired. Were you unhappy with the past practice? Would 

you have preferred to have done it differently? Would you have 

preferred that the Secretary of State not have hired these 

particular individuals, or there had been a different 

procedure? Was there any complaint before these people were 

let go? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: We have had with the current-­

SENATOR CARDINALE: With the process--

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: With the process? We have had 

discussions since the early parts of 1990 on the negative 

implications of losing staff and changing procedures, because 

after all, in 1989, I think at the pinnacle of support and so 

on, we were designated as a model agency, and certainly some of 

our programs still continue to receive national recognition. 

Indeed, we were very, very concerned, as a Council, what the 

changes might imply, so we've had those discussions all along, 

yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: With respect to the two people who 

were transferred and who have not yet returned -- I understand 

you' re saying you have a commitment that they will return -­

where were they transferred to? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Actually, 

people. I might ask, perhaps, Barbara 

it's more than two 

Russo is our Acting 

Executive Director, and I would just ask her for a moment to 

identify the list of where the transferred people are. 

Barbara, would you come forward? Who has been transferred, and 
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where have they gone? Because 

titles--

you can give their correct 

BARB AR A F. RUSS 0: All right. I think over the 

course of the last 18 months there have been, I believe, five 

that have been transferred, two from the fiscal office, one who 

was an office manager, most recently a computer systems person, 

and one of our clerical staff have been transferred. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: To other State offices? 

MS. RUSSO: To other di vis ions within the Department 

of State. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: While on our payroll. 

SENATOR CARDENALE: But they have continued to be 

counted against your budget. 

MS. RUSSO: Correct. That's my understanding. I 

haven't seen the payroll sheets, but my understanding is . that 

they have continued to be charged against our budget. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Have you inquired as to the 

legality of that practice? 

MS. RUSSO: In discuss ions in the Department, we were 

told that that was appropriate. The Department head had 

characterized it as an appropriate use of funds. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: It's appropriate for us to 

designate money for the arts but use it somewhere else. 

(laughter) That's appropriate. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Some of those people are 

absolutely essential to the function of the Arts Council and we 

are under-- We're having discussions with the Governor's 

Office, indeed, on that very subject because it is one that 

obviously concerns us greatly; our ability to, as I say, manage 

our fiscal responsibilities. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Has this particular part of the 

discussion been remedied to your satisfaction with the 

Governor's Office? That is, will moneys continue to be 
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appropriated to the arts but u1:3ed elsewhere, or wi 11 you have 

total control of your moneys and have the ability to use them 

totally for the purpose for which they are appropriated? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: It's the Council's goal, I think, 

to have the services it needs and the people that it needs to 

function effectively and to pay for those services within our 

office, yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Well, I understand . that you want 

that, but are you satisfied that that's the conclusion that has 

been developed in your meetings with--

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I think that's something that 

we're still working toward, yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: So, it's not yet-­

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: No. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Hearings like this get to bring 

out those kinds of problems and tend to promote resolution ·of 

those kinds of problems. I'm not suggesting that there's 

anything inappropriate with. your having met with the Governor, 

but I think we need to know as the legislative body, what 

matters are still unresolved. Because if the only matters that 

we were to look at are the matters that have already been 

resolved, there's not much point to our being here and bringing 

all of you here. We want to see if we can't put this thing a 

little bit more to right. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right, Senator. I think that's the 

reason for this hearing, to tell you the truth: to try to 

clarify. 

The Senator has some questions. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Yes. One quest ion does concern 

me. Is your personnel classified? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Is our personnel classified? 

Some of our personnel is classified, and some of it is 

unclassified. But we have far fewer numbers of unclassified 

than we do-- You know, that number is shrinking. 
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SENATOR McMANIMON.: And your classified, I assume, are 

project specialists? Is that how you title them in? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Excuse me, I didn't hear you. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Do you title them as project 

spe~ialists? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: 

project specialists, yes. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: 

We have had some people as 

I'm sorry. The reason why I 

asked, I think that when your Council was originally beginning 

to operate they had classifications, did they not? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Excuse me, just a second. Everybody 

must speak louder because those pe;sons in the back of the room 

cannot hear. So, you know, at the expense of sounding like 

you're on the stage, you're going to have to do that. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I was just curious because, 

basically, I know the intent of State government and -- out of . 

defense of the Secretary of State -- that their rule was in the 

direction of taking. nonclassified people, such as project 

specialists, and on the cutbacks concept. I know basically if 

she was following the initial pattern, that she stepped into 

after Jane Burgio had originally been Secretary of State -- and 

whom _I have the utmost respect for -- and she tried to adopt 

her philosophy, and I think maybe this is where some of the 

controversy was generated. 

I've often wondered-- I didn't think the Arts Council 

personnel were all classified. Then I find out later that they 

originally started with classified positions, gradually did 

away with the classified positions, and started taking the 

title of project specialists. I was wondering if that was the 

intent in entirety? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I can't speak for all of 

early history, but I think what you're also driving. at is: 

the 

If 

you need to fire people who should you fire first? And, I 

think· ·that the · po·int that we' re trying to. make is-- Because 
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all parties have agreed that we have sufficient funds to pay 

for personnel. If we have sufficient funds to pay for 

personnel then there's no need to fire either classified or 

unclassified people. I think that's what we' re trying to get 

across; that we're making certain that people have the adequate 

funding under a very difficult situation. We also have the 

ability to use Federal funds because they believe the type of 

personnel that we have supporting the process is so important. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I tried to first analyze how this 

major problem came about because I was always under the 

assumption that the Arts Council had autonomy; that you're an 

autonomous body. And it is apparent that even reading those 

statements, th~t out of respect to Jane Burgio, it appears that 

the Counci 1 had acquiesced to Jane's philosophy. I think maybe 

this is where Joan Haberle had p~cked up part of her 

philosophy, and that's how we got into this conflict of the 

layoffs and her assuming the role that she did. 

C E L E S T E S. P E N N E Y: Could I enter this? I'm 

Celeste Penney. I was Chairman of the Council from '87 to '89, 

and was involved in some of the hiring. To my knowledge, Jane 

Burgio never hired anybody, and I don't quite know why or how 

the Attorney General got that-- Jane is here, so she could--

But the Executive Director of the Council, empowered 

by the Council, did searches-- First of all, the type of 

personnel we needed was established by some of our programs. 

Then the Executive Director did a search sometimes 

throughout the United States interviewed the people, and-

talked to me about them. When they were decided on, he took 

them over to the State Department and introduced · them. We 

discussed it many times, but to my knowledge, Jane never hired 

anybody. She's here and I'm sure she can answer that, but 

since I'm here, would like to say that. 

She also, to my knowledge, never sent anybody over to 

-work at the Arts Council. 
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SENATOR McMANIMON: I think the quest ion here then 

is: Why is the Department of State considered the appointing 

authority? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I think we need legal--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I think -- and just so no one is 

confused -- I am not Wynona Lipman, but Wynona had to leave 

very briefly and will be back. I'll continue to Chair the 

meeting for awhile. 

I think that's a question that goes to the design of 

the Arts Council which is in, but not of, 

State's Office, and it's a practice that 

the Secretary of 

we find in other 

departments too, Franny. But the issue and I'd like-- Are 

there fur_:ther questions? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Well, that prompts a real question 

because everything that we've received, up until now, is that 

the Secretary of State had hired. That's .contained in the 

Attorney General's opinion. I'd like to know where that really 

lies, because, it bears on this whole-- I don't know what 

significance it has for the future if we make a determination 

somewhere: whether that needs to be by legislation, or just by 

agreement with the Governor's Office. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Senator, I agree and I think former 

Secretary of State Burgio and some other witnesses can, 

perhaps, be helpful on this. My instinct -- but, of course, 

I'm only one member -- is that we're largely beyond that. But 

I agree. There does seem to be some confusion or, perhaps, 

difference of opinion among us about the past practice and--

Celeste, your comment, as well as Chris', seem to 

suggest that it wasn't a prior practice. 

Before we go · any further though, I want to make a 

couple of points, simply because I feel uncomfortable because 

I'm wearing two hats, here. Some of you know I'm an ex officio 

member of the Arts Council. I made no opening statement out of 

deference to the Chairman, Wynona Lipman, who is handling this 
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meeting. 

far. 

I want to make a couple of points before we get too 

I absolutely agree with Senator Cardinale. We ought 

to try to clear up this past practice. I want to say, as an ex 

officio member, I know and appreciate how much every person who 

is facing this Committee has committed in the way of their own 

person, their own energy, their own time, their own feelings, 

to the Arts Council. And it's true of Franklin Fischer, and 

many other people who serve on the Arts Council, who are here. 

It's hard to overstate the amount of time, and energy, and 

enthusiasm for free that many people put into this 

venture known as the Council on the Arts. It's also, I think, 

something we have to understand because there are many art 

enthusiasts in this room that it is a very difficult quest ion 

to reconcile the role of government in the arts: how much 

government; how little government? And if that were true in 

the '80s when there were substantial funds, how painfully true 

it is in the '90s when the situation is different. 

If there was one area that, for the most part, I had 

great respect and admiration for Governor Kean in -- and as 

some of you know, I differed sharply with him on some issues 

but the one area that I certainly admired was his deep 

commitment, his sensitivity, and appreciation in the area of 

the Arts Council and the arts. 

There was an early skirmish, and I think we made some 

progress on it, about the issue of elitism and lack of minority 

representation. I think that's an ongoing concern that we have 

to have. Because I think again, for peculiar reasons, that 

those issues can play into in a very troublesome way our 

behavior together -- government, private sector, art lovers, 

people with particular expertise, creativity, and talent in 

that field. I think we've made progress there, but I think 

it's going to be a painful journey. 
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I also want to take a moment, having given some 

accolades to the Council members, to give some accolades to 

Barbara Russo who sort of snuck back and has, I think, been 

caught in a very delicate and difficult position. I'm not 

saying this is an absolute endorsement of her (laughter) as 

Executive Director, but if you want to take it that way, I 

won't be adverse to it. 

But seriously, getting back to this question, the 

Attorney General's opinion -- and you have it Tiz, besause it 

was sent to you -- does raise a question that seems to conflict 

a little bit. I don't think the Committee wants to overdwell 

on this, but you'll notice in paragraph 2 of his letter 

concerning the personnel appointments, he suggests that David 

Miller who served as Assistant to the Executive Director of the 

Arts Council was appointed on April 9 by the then Secretary of 

State, Jane Burgio. He also says that Terry Marshall was hired· 

by Secretary Burgio on November 16 as a project specialist. 

Now these comments in this opinion may be inaccurate. I don't 

know. But you saw them. Can you clarify that, perhaps, for us? 

MS. PENNEY: I think Jane would. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. Maybe Jane would be 

better for that. All right, let's do that at some point. 

Are there any other questions of our first Council 

member? (no response) Celeste, you want to make a statement, 

I think? 

MS. PENNEY: Yes. I just have a brief statement. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. Are . there any other 

questions of the second witness? (negative response) 

All right. Why don't you make your statement? 

MS. PENNEY: Thank you, Senator Stockman and 

distinguished Cammi ttee members for letting me speak. Also, 

I'd 1 ike to thank you for letting me speak before Clement. 

(laughter) It's an in-joke. You all may not know what it is, 

but when you hear Clement, you'll know. Senator Lipman knows. 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, I do know. 

MS. PENNEY: So this was a break for me. 

I am here today because I feel the New Jersey State 

Council on the Arts is in risk of no longer being able to. do 

the job it is mandated to do by its enabling legislation. The 

· New Jersey Legislature created the Arts Council 25 years ago 

with a mission to support and promote the arts in New Jersey. 

Over the years, the Council has received statewide and national 

recognition for the initiatives and programs it has developed. 

It was named a model agency by the National Endowment, 

and we had the honor of addressing the National Council, on the 

arts in New Jersey. 

I can say, as an aside, that was a thrill. ·rt was a 

thrill to be from New Jersey that day. During this period, the 

arts in New Jersey have flourished and many of our 

organizations have received recognition throughout the United 

States. The Paper Mill Playhouse, Crossroads Theater, and the 

New Jersey Chamber Music Society have appeared nationally on 

Channel 13 's "Great Performances." This winter, Rick Khan and 

members of Crossroads Theater were received by President Bush. 

I know, firsthand, that the results of the Arts Council's 

programs have been the envy of the other 49 states. 

We, on the Council, take our mandate seriously for we 

know we were created by the Legislature to make a difference; a 

difference in the lives of the citizens of this State who make 

up the audiences, and a difference in the lives of the 

individual artists and the administrators who lead the arts 

organization. To serve our large, ever-changing, constituency 

requires listening, planning, strategizing, decision-making, 

setting goals, and stretching to meet them. It requires as 

well, the ability to look to the future to see if we need to 

refocus and rethink our priorities. To accomplish our mission 

we need the respect of the administration. Furthermore, we 
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need a qualified, paid staff responsible to the Executive 

Director. 

We understand the need for budget reductions and 

personnel cutbacks. Our point is that the implementation of 

the cutbacks and the selection of personnel involved should be 

the role of the Executive Director. The Executive Director 

consul ting with the Counci 1 should be al lowed to select the 

staff when additions or replacements are made. A significant 

portion of the staff was dismissed or transferred with no 

regard for adequate replacements. Truly, not just anyone who 

may be available that day from some other office can do justice 

to the more than thousand artists who put their hearts and 

souls into their applications. 

The Council was created to ensure that an independent 

and professional process exists for the awarding of State funds 

to artists and arts organizations. To do this, the Council 

pays honoraria to qualified consultants to evaluate each and 

every application submitted to it. We, on the Council, feel 

that this panel process is the only sound, fair, and honest 

system available to us at present. It ensures that personal 

agendas of Council members, staff, and others will be not be 

part of our deliberations. I do not believe in absolutes, but 

I stand by the paid panel system until I can be convinced of a 

better one. 

We insist that the groups we fund not only have 

superior artistry, but have managerial and fiscal 

accountability. How can we not ask the same for ourselves? If 

the Council is to fulfill its mission in the spirit of the 

enabling legislation, it also must be allowed to create policy 

and maintain the integrity of the panel review process. 

Within the last few weeks, the administration has 

given some recognition to the current situation by reinstating 

certain personnel. These actions are welcome and seemingly 

indicate a recognition of some of the needs of the Council. 
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However, it is imperative that the Council receive a permanent 

commitment from the administration that the debilitating 

process which has taken place over the past year shall not be 

repeated. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Questions? 

SENATOR ·CARDINALE: Yes, that raises an issue that I 

think is really critical to this. I get the impression from 

your statement, and correct me if I'm wrong, that you feel that 

in the current administration -- let's just say it that way -­

that the independence of your hiring process has somehow been 

threatened. 

MS. PENNEY: Yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Have there been people that you · 

have been encouraged to hire by the administration that were 

people you might otherwise not have hired? 

MS. PENNEY: Well there are people on the staff today 

who were sent by, I guess, the administration. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: And those are people you might 

otherwise not have hired? 

MS. PENNEY: Well, we probably--

SENATOR CARDINALE: I don't know what you mean by 

"sent"? Can you expand on that a little bit? 

MS. PENNEY: They were transferred from the Secretary 

of State's Office to the Arts Council. You know, members of 

our staff were let go and then someone that the Secretary of 

State put in their place--

SENATOR CARDINALE: And that's a departure from past 

practice. 

MS. PENNEY: Oh, absolutely. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Questions? 

.SENATOR HAINES: You say the word debilitating. Is 

this the only thing that has happened causes you to use that 

word? 
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MS. PENNEY: You mean the staff? 

SENATOR HAINES: The staff, yes. 

MS. PENNEY: Well, we have had some discussions about 

the paid panel process, and that's something I feel very, very 

strongly about; about the possibilities of not paying, of not 

giving honoraria to the panels. I understand that we are going 

to do that, but there was a discussion that we might use 

volunteers or, I believe, Council members. So, no, that's not 

the only thing. I feel, I may underscore, how having been 

involved in it for eight years, I guess, and been on the Grants 

Cammi ttee and been to the panel meetings, may I stress to you 

how important I feel it is for us to be able to have these 

professional people give us their -- for the most part -- very 

fine advice. 

SENATOR HAINES: In other words you' re losing your 

independence rapidly. Is this properly put or not? 

MS. PENNEY: Yes. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I think there's another way tc:i 

describe things. When we're talking about the panel process, I 

think part of the problem is that the information on whether we 

could, indeed, pay our panelists -- which we have money set 

aside for from our Federal/State grant to pay _our panelists-­

And I believe that because of the series of actions intended to 

create economies in the government that our information on 

whether we could pay the panelists came to us so late that 120 

panelists could not be scheduled to meet on March 7, when we 

normally would be holding our panel system. Instead, that has 

been delayed until April. So that is seriously putting us 

behind in some of our work, in terms of awarding the grants in 

time for the groups in July. 

SENATOR. LIPMAN: Sharon, you were going to explain 

further about the grants process. I just wanted to ask her one 

question before you start, please. 
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About paid and unpaid panels: Do you pay your panels 

presently? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Excuse me? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You pay the panels who select the 

grantees? 

MS. PENNEY: Yes, they receive an honoraria. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Is this a procedure that's used in 

other states that is required by the National Endowment? 

MS. PENNEY: Yes. Oh, yes. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: We follow it, and this is to 

support the standards that are required to receive a State 

grant. Indeed, we fol low procedures that are very similar in 

other states. 

MS. PENNEY: And the National Endowment uses this. 

For instance, Phil Thomas, who's down at the National Endowment 

today, on a panel-- I mean this is a recognized procedure in 

the scientific community and the arts community. It's 

recognized as the best way to do it. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You sort of intimated, or maybe yc•u 

said, that there had been a plan to not pay the panels this 

year. 

MS. PENNEY: Well there was a discussion of that, yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I don't think I understood where this 

discussion led. Will they be paid or won't they be paid? 

MS. PENNEY: Yes, they're going to be paid. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: They're going to be paid this year. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: The panelists are going to be 

paid, but as late as February 19 in a letter from the 

Department, we were informed that the panelists were not going 

to be paid. In December, we applied for an exemption to the 

opportunity to hire these people which might have been 

considered as project specialists. But indeed, as late as 

February 19 and 120 people were scheduled to show up on 

March 7 -- and the time was so short· when prior to that time 
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they had been asked to come in and serve as volunteers because 

we were told that there would be no money-- And indeed, on 

February 19, we were told that there would be no money. Then 

shortly thereafter, it turned out that we could use the Federal 

money to pay the panelists. 

And Sharon is our new Grants Chairman which-- I'm 

very pleased to say that she is serving as Grants Chairman for 

the Council because we've had some changing faces, too, and 

we're delighted she has accepted this opportunity after 

Franklin Fischer and Carlos Hernandez this year. 

MS. PENNEY: Could I just say one other thing, Senator 

Lipman? One thing that really disturbs me, possibly it's 

personal because I have a son who's a sculptor and I know how 

difficult it is for him to get money. I know what he puts into 

his applications. He doesn't live in New Jersey. I know what 

he puts into his applications; it's really his life.. I was 

told that anybody could do this job, this job of processing the 

applications. That has really stuck with me, and I'm glad to 

say that because I'm bothered by the lack of respect for the 

artfsts and the art community in the State. That's something 

that I would really like to have not happen again. 

So, that's it, unless you want to ask me a question. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: No. Senator McManimon, Senator 

Stockman, questions? 

SENATOR McMANIMON: She brought one thing out, very 

important, the lack of sensitivity in people and mutual 

respect. I think they do have to straighten that out, not only 

in government, but in our whole way of life. 

MS. PENNEY: Right . I agree with you. I think this 

is very important. I think Senator Stockman, who has been on 

the Arts Counc i 1 these years, brought that up, too. I think 

this is very important and something that the arts does do for 

us. 
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SENATOR McMANIMON: That's why we had Senator Stockman 

sit in Senator Lipman's place for those few minutes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'd just like to say that, Celeste, 

we all know how deeply you feel about the subject. We all know 

the tremendous energy and time you've put into it. You used a 

phrase, "We need a permanent commitment from the 

administration." I absolutely agree with you. We need a 

permanent commitment for respect and appreciation for artists 

and for dealing with them, interfacing with them, and providing 

funding for them. If you' re talking about a permanent 

commitment of a specific amount of money, you know and I know--

MS. PENNEY: Oh, no. I'm talking about a permanent 

commitment for the Arts Council to be able to make policy and 

run itself. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And I know you understand that. I 

.understand that, but I think it's always important--

MS. PENNEY: Oh, I understand all too well budget 

problems. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And that's what we've got to be 

dealing with here, as well. But I think we understand that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Sharon? 

S H A R O N H A R R I N G T O N: Madam Chairman, members of 

the Cammi ttee, I want to thank you for inviting me here today 

to discuss my experience as a member of the New Jersey State 

Council on the Arts. 

I considered it to be an honor and a privilege to 

serve as Governor Floria's first appointment to this board as I 

believe Elizabeth Chr istopherson and Celeste Penney must have 

when then Governor Kean selected them. 

The day I was sworn in, just about one year ago, 

today, was the same day that Governor Florio appeared at the 

first Arts Council meeting to be held after he took office. He 

had two messages that day: That the arts in all forms are a 

critical ingredient of New Jersey's fabric, and that 
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unfortunately, we would have to use our resourcefulness and 

creativity more than might have been anticipated. We, like all 

of government, were being asked to do more with less. The 

flush days were over due to an unanticipated and unprecedented 

budget problem which he inherited. 

The arts community met that challenge exercising 

patience, understanding, cooperation, resourcefulness, and 

perf armed virtual magic. These efforts were truly a favor to 

the Arts Council and a credit to the entire arts community in 

New Jersey. Like the many times they've taken the lead and 

served as national models, our arts organizations can be a role 

model to organizations in surrounding states who are now 

challenged wi~h reduced budgets. 

This first year of my term has been a very exciting 

learning experience. I have been supported by my more senior 

colleagues who have given of their time and knowledge very 

generously. There's a great deal more to learn, but I have had 

the opportunity to participate in a cultural bond hearing 

cycle, a grant cycle, policy and planning meetings, and a year 

of working with a knowledgeable, supportive, and most 

professional staff. They are truly a credit to New Jersey. We 

have worked together during the past few difficult months to 

forge a new working relationship; one that relies on the 

cooperation of the Council with the staff and which will 

maintain the professionalism which has been in place for many 

years. 

There have been acknowledged here this morning, 

various understandings of relationships between the Council and 

our Department. I assure you for my part, I intend to work 

cooperatively and to take advantage of the help Secretary 

Haberle has offered. 

Recent controversies 

procedures, evaluate our 

have forced us to 

involvement and 

examine 

assess 

past 

the 

responsibility we, as Council members, assume. After a 
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difficult period of time, areas of responsibilities have been 

defined. Secretary Haberle asked General Del Tufo to review 

our respective roles, and we are moving forward with every 

intention of making the partnership between State government 

and the arts community work. 

I have been asked to serve as Chairman of the Grants 

Cammi ttee and as Cochairman of the Search Cammi ttee for a new 

Executive Director. I do both enthusiastically. 

I want to point out, however -- and you senators who 

serve the public know and appreciate this -- that the time 

involved in doing this job well, to which Senator Stockman 

alluded, is great. My colleagues at the Arts Council devote a 

great deal of time and energy to serving on this board. It 

consumes many hours beyond Council meetings. This dedicated 

and committed group each serves on a couple of Arts Council 

committees as well as devoting significant time to a_ttending 

performances and exhibits, and bringing a personal 

understanding to the objective review process. 

We realize your responsibility and the privilege of 

serving our State, and we want to hear your guidance in our 

doing it well. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senators? (negative response) 

I'd like to ask you a question; you, and. I think Ms. 

Penney. You are both on the Search Committee for a new 

Executive Director? 

MS. HARRINGTON: We are, yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: How do you proceed with such a search? 

MS. HARRINGTON: We met in December and developed a 

job description, job specification. There is a full Search 

Cammi ttee. We met with the Search Committee, agreed to the 

terms and the framework and the kinds of qualifications we 

thought would be important for an Executive Director, 

established some time guidelines which were concurred by the 
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full Council and had submitted these criteria and requests for 

applications to about 15 publications throughout the country. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Then you don't have a list yet of 

probable candidates? 

MS. PENNEY: Oh, yes. 

MS. HARRINGTON: We're still receiving applications. 

MS. PENNEY: We gave them until April 1--

MS. HARRINGTON: April 1 is the cutoff. It said in 

our announcement that they had to have their applications in by 

April 1. 

MS. PENNEY: --because we had to off er enough leave 

time because of the publication times of the various journals. 

You know, some took a couple of weeks, some took a month or so 

to get it in. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: In an effort to cast some more 1 ight 

on this situation, how will you react when you submit your 

selection for a candidate for Executive Director-- To whom 

will you submit this request, and how do you think it will be 

handled? In other words, are you ready now to select your own 

personnel, hiring, firing? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: That was our intention all along, 

and I believe Dr. Price who was here and able to speak about 

the first time we had a search, when we had Jeff Kesper. I 

think we were planning to, indeed, repeat that.procedure. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I'm just, you know, playing the 

devil's advocate. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: The Council will again take a 

vote on the recommendation. Of course we want to work 

cooperatively. I think, in the past, we've included--

MS. PENNEY: I think the Committee, the Search 

Committee, will look at all the applications. We have 

criteria, and some of these people-- I mean, I don't know if 

everyone falls in the criteria, but we will probably take the 

ones that do, go over them with the Search Committee, decide on 
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the ones we want to interview, then we will interview them, and 

make a recommendation. That's the normal procedure, I think. 

And the recommendation will be voted on by the Council. We've 

said we hope to do that at the annual meeting in July, and that 

is our hope. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Madam Chair? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Just one question, Sharon. You 

have the awesome job of overseeing now this grants process. I 

know your colleagues wouldn't have talked you into that job if 

you didn't have the time and the skill to do it. There was a 

comment that there's been a serious delay. ·I think we all 

appreciate that there's been a bit of a storm going on. We 

hope that today is the time for resolving that. But are you 

satisfied that you have the capacity with the help of Barbara 

Russo and other staff members to get the job done this year of 

fairly and adequately allocating what modest resources the 

Council will have to distribute to arts groups? 

MS. HARRINGTON: We've met and have every intention of 

making sure that we meet our schedule. Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Do your colleagues share that 

optimism, I hope? 

MS . HARRINGTON: 

on ensuring that we have 

offices to perform this. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: 

I think, to some extent, 

adequate staffing at 

it depends 

the Council 

Well, the immediate staff question, 

as I understand, has been resolved. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: No. I don't think so. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: We 11, which one hasn't been. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I think Sharon is absolutely 

right. We do have every intention of doing everything coming 

in on time with this, but it wi 11 take a concerted ef fart, and 

there are some outstanding issues. A particular example is: 
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someone named 

specialist. I 

Angelo Hal.l, who was the only computer 

think he was working on a daily basis with 

grants, and he has been transferred outside of the Department 

of State: issues like that. Still, we're working very hard and 

we've had the commitment to address these issues, but I think 

those are still outstanding on a short-term basis. And there 

are others, if you would like Barbara Russo to speak to the 

other issues. Barbara, do you want to say something? 

MS. RUSSO: Thank you for your compliments, earlier. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: It might get you in trouble. 

(laughter) 

MS. RUSSO: I know, it might. (laughter) 

I think the Council's staff, working very closely with 

the Grants Cammi ttee, is making every effort to stay on track 

with the grants process. We currently don't have all of the 

pieces in place yet. We need the computer services that had 

been provided, and the Governor's Office has been very 

proactive in seeing that we have these services. When they're 

in place, I'll feel a lot more comfortable in making a 

commitment as to whether or not we can meet the July deadline. 

We' re perilously close to trying to maintain a panel schedule 

that then feeds into a Grants Committee review, that then feeds 

into a full Council review. Our panels should have started 

this week, so that every day that we delay is another day that 

we push the back end of that cycle. 

We' re trying creative things, double scheduling some 

of our panels when we have staff that can manage one and manage 

another, but there's a lot of coordinating activity that must 

go into, yotl know, finding panelists who can serve. We try to 

get at least five panelists per panel. We have over 30 panel 

meetings scheduled during the spring. It's a labor-intensive 

job preparing for these meetings, whether it's loading slides, 

preparing files, or making sure that the adequate review of the 

applications beforehand has happened. And that's all of the 
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work that's being delayed while we work out some of these--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Madam Chair, if it would seem 

appropriate to you and to the Committee, I would suggest that, 

perhaps the Council, through the Executive Director, notify you 

of whether this process is on target and is going to be able to 

be accomplished. I hear very clearly an optimism, a 

hopefulness, a desire to cooperate work. All that's wonderful, 

but I don't hear that final statement that the job is done, or 

we're absolutely confident it can be. Perhaps from the 

administration's point of view and ours, if there's something 

the Legislature could do, we would certainly want to do it, 

bec~use I think we all want to see that process not impaired, 

not crippled at this time. It's going to be tough. 

There are going to be a lot of unhappy people. All of 

that is understood, I think, by everybody here. But I'd ask if 

the Executive Director or the Chairman of the Arts Council 

could report to you a progress on that, if there seems to be 

any faltering or misdirections in seeing to its conclusion. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, perhaps we could help. I'd 

really appreciate that. I'm sure all of the members of this 

Committee would enjoy having that. 

Thank you Barbara. 

SENATOR HAINES: Madam Chairman? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, Senator. 

SENATOR HAINES: I think there are still some things 

that are left hanging here and one of the main things is that 

your staff is assigned to other parts of the Department of 

State, and you're paying the bill. Why can't that stop? I 

mean the outflow of money and the outflow of personnel, can we 

do something about that? Is there something that can be done? 

I personally think that that's the wrong way to go. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: It's also -- and you can answer 

this together -- very confusing to me to hear that these people 

have been removed but, Barbara used the word the· "proactive" 
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position on the part of the Governor's Office. I s~ppose that 

she means to seek a way that these things are changed. Wel 1, 

why has that not been changed on an immedia e basis? These 

people are on your payroll; it's not a que tion of hiring 

people. It's a question of someone telling them to go to a 

different office in the morning to work. It does not seem to 

me to be so difficult a thing to put in plac1, especially you 

have a substantial amount of grants that rou're going to 

award. That's a lot of money. That because we have a computer 

person assigned somewhere improperly, and thf re seems to be 

agreement that it's an improper assignment, we then are 

jeopardizing the accuracy or the good that we·be going to have 

come out of these awards. j 
MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: All I can repea is to say that 

we' re putting in a concerted ef fart to take he most vigorous 
. I 

steps possible to see that we do have the star f that we ~eed, 

and that we, do have the commitment from the Gcwernor' s Office, 

as of last week, that these short-term, immll di ate, and very 

serious needs, will be addressed. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Have you ident i 1ied who has to 

give the order to the computer operator, just! to be specific 

about one position, to return to this position? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Well, the situation with the 

computer operator is a little bit more-- All [these things are 

more complex than they obviously seem on the surface. One 

situation with this is that this person wasj transferred out 

before we had a resolution or response back rom the Attorney 

General confirming firming the July opinioh, the statutory 

legislation, and now that individual has 9een offered the 

opportunity-- He was in the position of a project specialist, 

which is not a permanent status, and has now ]been offered the 

opportunity, as I understand it, to be in another department 

which· would allow him additional career opp rtunities and a 
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permanent status, 

negotiations. 

I believe. I haven't been invo 1 ved in the 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You mean he has another job, is what 

you're saying. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: And in a conversation just 

yesterday, that there would be some attempt to try to see if we 

couldn't have him on a short-term basis. But, in the meantime, 

what we're left with is that we're without an individual to do 

the specific functions. There's no one there trained and 

qualified to do this very necessary function on a short-term 

basis. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Wouldn't it be very possible for 

you to hi re someone, if you didn't have to pay the other 

person? You can now hire someone, if that individual doesn't 

want to come back. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I think we could always hire 

people. There's a question-- There's a training period in any 

job, and the point is that we' re in the midst of the grants. 

One of the problems is that we' re in the midst of the grants 

process. I think none of us are indispensable in our roles-­

I 1 ike to think there's lots of people who can -- given the 

right knowledge and so forth -- carry out different functions, 

but the truth of the matter is, that when you have a very lean 

staff, you don't have extra people as backup. I mean, we 

prayed that this fellow did not get sick before this, because 

'we did not have the opportunity, or luxury, of having any 

backup person to do this particular and important work of 

providing all the data information that was necessary for a 

Federal grant and for our State grants. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Are you, in any sense, impeded by 

the hiring freeze from replacing these people? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: I believe that there's going to 

be an effort to work through that. Again, I'm not certain how 
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I 

. I 

I 

that will be resolved, but I have understood thal t there's going 

to be an effort to work through that. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Have you looked ilto whether this 

individual got whatever waivers are necessary under the hiring 

freeze to be employed in another department, 4r has this been 

done without regard to that particular requirement? 

MS. RUSSO: I think, just to clarify! it, the people 

that were transferred are, as you mentioned 1 still on our 

payroll and still serving in positions on our p~yroll. I would 

have to defer to Eddie Durham -- or someone f~om the Division 

of Administration who has seen all of those printout sheets 
I to know which positions are currently open that would be 

available to the Council to use to hire people ihto. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: That raises anothJr issue that I 
. I 

think is an important one. If you are payingl people who are 

not· showing up to work for you, is thal a reasonable 

administrative practice? (laughter) . 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: We' re extremely I concerned about 

the question of accountability. And I thinkl that's what I 

didn't spell out -- but indeed, I've tried to list -- that 
. I 

accountability is critical for any kind of fiscal 

accountability. When we talk about fiscal I -- and legal 

implications -- that's, indeed, one of the implications -- that 
h 1 bl . I d b you must ave peop e accounta e to you 1n or er to e 

accountable to the general public with general ffnds. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Just one further comment. It 

would seem to me that from everything that ybu' ve said, and 

from what I know about general processes in gdvernment -- and 
I 

I've been around this place for about 12 years 1-- that if your 

Executive Director, from what has developed here, ordered those 

people tomorrow morning to show up to work or I be removed from 

your payroll, I think they. would be required, no matter what 

anybody else says, to show up to work where they are being paid. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: (laughter) So ordered. 
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If that's the productive way to go, I don't know. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I'm not an attorney. I defer to 

Jerry for his legal expertise. (laughter) 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: .Madam Chairlady, from what I see, I 

don't think we' re going to resolve this question in the midst 

of this group, in this hearing, at this moment. I think the 

message is clear. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, we've heard. I hear you. 

We have asked Mr. Durham to return to tell us where 

your people are transferred. 

Now we have Professor Clement Price. 

P R O F E S S O R CLEMENT A. PRICE: Thank you 

very much, Senator, and other members of the Cammi ttee. Much 

of what needs to be said has already been said by ~y colleagues 

and friends before you. I would just like to perhaps touch on 

two or three issues. 

It occurred to me as I was listening to the testimony 

here that if there were two songs that characterized the mood 

of the arts in New Jersey right now, particularly over the last 

few weeks when there's been so much sadness, one would be 

Samuel Barber Is "Adagio for Strings II and the other would be B. 

B. King's "The Thrill is Gone." (laughter) I say that in all 

seriousness because I think I've served on the Arts Council 

long enough to know an earlier period of sadness. I think it 

was 1979 when The New York Times, among other national papers, 

saw cause to write several stories about what was going on in 

New Jersey at the time as far as the arts were concerned. I 

came on to the Arts Council a few months after that, and I 

learned in many trips across the State, and across the country, 

that New Jersey was at its nadir in the late '70s as far as the 

arts were concerned. Our Arts Council had the .unenviable 

distinction of being under investigation by the NEA. 

I don't know if such a sorry state of affairs has 

returned, but I do think it was at the heart of our concern. 
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It's twofold. One, most of us have come tp see the Arts 

Council as representative of civic service. It is a public 

service to the State. I think those on the Committee who know 

something about the history of this great StateJ will know that 

New Jersey was one of the first states in the Union to appoint 

committees citizen-driven committees thich gave the 

average citizen an opportunity to participate in the evolution 
I • 

of democracy. It goes all the way back to 

seems to me that that is now under attack 
·least. 

::01:::rw:~:::~. :~ 
This Council has distinguished itself j over the three 

administrations that I served; the Byrne administration; the 

Kean administration; and the Florio administration. I don't 

know why, all of a sudden, the wisdom that is erbbodied in these 

distinguished citizens of our State the 1wisdom that is 

embodied in our staff, has been besmirched by tlhe actions that 
have been taken? 

I'll say this: For years I served as the Chairman of 

the Arts Council, and in that capacity I sejrved on an NEA 

panel. I went to about three or four states , in the country 

which had a problem which reminds me ofl our problem: 

interference in what citizens do for the arts, interference 

with. what artists know about the arts., and whatlthe interest of 
artists know about the arts. California, Florida, New 

Hampshire, the American Virgin Islands, all fli ted at one time 

in their history with trying to turn the arts iJto a enterprise 

not deserving of citizen impact and infusion. ±hat's the issue 

here, whether Tiz, Celeste, Sharon, and others Jhat serve along 

with them can make intelligent decisions -- deaisions informed 

by understanding of the arts. I 

I daresay we wouldn't al low this in l' education. We 
wouldn't allow it in public health, and I don't think we would 

allow it in environmental protection issues. ut somehow the 

arts -- always vulnerable, always the stepchild -- is being 
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treated in a way which I think is essentially undemocratic. 

Let me just close my remarks by saying that there are 

three things that I think are required by all people who serve 

the arts, who love the arts, who see the arts as a cornerstone 

-- one of the cornerstones of our democracy, our way of life· 

here: 

1) The arts must be protected from intrusion, even 

the kind of polite intrusion which has been cited in this 

testimony so far. 

2) The reputation of New Jersey is inextricably 

linked to its reputation in the arts. Why? Because we were 

once referred to as a wasteland for the arts. And it took us 

several years to make that old saw irreverent and irrelevant. 

Once the image of New Jersey as a political arts hack state 

returns, it wi 11 take the next generation of people 1 ike Tiz, 

Celeste, Sharon, and others, to get us back on track aga~n. 

And finally, this is the main point I want to make: 

These councils and commissions that are driven by the citizens 

of our State, by their sense of what is fair, what is right, by 

what they know about the arts, should not be intruded upon. It 

must be protected by the women and men who serve on this 

Committee. 

I thank you for allowing me to participate. The last 

several weeks have been very sad for me because I see a lot of 

good work threatened unnecessarily. 

Thank you very much. (applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I want to thank you too, Clement, for 

breaking up yo.ur vacation to come and testify at this hearing. 

We appreciate it very much. 

Senator? 

SENATOR HAINES: Can I say just one thing? 

Isn't "independence" a word that should be used here; 

that the arts should be independent? I think the Arts Council 

is put in the Department of State -- not that the Department of 
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State or the front off ices should run it -- but it's put in 

there for financing and so forth, and the Artsl Council should 

be independent. That's what we want and that's what we should 

strive for, and we have lost that. We have lost] some of that. 

PROFESSOR PRICE: I would agree with you, Senator. 

Yes, it should be independent, autonomous, wi f h the kind of 

oversight that you would expect from our col ileagues and our 

friends who administer State government. The ~istory of these 

kinds of agencies has always involved a kird of delicate 

balance between citizens and those who are sworn to uphold, not 
I only the Constitution -- actually all of us swear to uphold the 

Constitution when we come on to the Council, buJ there's ~lways 

been this delicate balance between what the c:ouncil sees fit 

for the arts and what the administration sees fit in terms of 

budgetary restrictions, and all of that. I 

That balance seems to have been tipped away from the 

independence of the Arts Council. I don't I mean to point 

fingers. I certainly don't intend to call names, but it may be 

that some of us -- perhaps some of us in thisl room -- do not 

know that this Council represents a certain tradition in 
, I 

democracy, · and that tradition simply cannot pe usurped. It 

can't be meddled with. And I say that in 
1

all seriousness 

because in those states, and· I listed them intentionally-­

Because if the NEA gets wind of the possibility lthat we are not 

doing things here in New Jersey which are commensurate with the 

way professional arts agencies are run, I assurle you, Senator, 

it will be a sad day in New Jersey. I 

SENATOR HAINES: One of the things that bothers me a 

great deal is not the amount of money we're sperding on sports, 

not the amount of money that we're spending on scholarships for 

athletes, but the fact that if you compare that amount of money 

with the amount of money spent on arts, it's pitiful. It's 

absolutely pitiful. (applause) 
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I was fortunate enough to have a classmate, and a very 

good friend of mine in high school, to be Steve Sondheim, and 

what he's done for the world-- And it's not to knock 

professional football, but some of our football heroes will be 

forgotten in another generation; Steve Sondheim will not be. 

PROFESSOR PRICE: Indeed. Art has this distinction 

over all other human endeavors; it is truly endearing. I don't 

think that sports, as an industry, as an objective force in our 

society, can make that same claim, Senator. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Jerry Stockman. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: First of all I want to express 

enthusiasm for Senator Haines' notion that there should be more 

government spending, and I'm going to talk to them shortly 

about some tax bills that I have. (laughter) But that aside, 

I'd 1 ike to reJ 01n and ask Clement a question that I can't 

resist because you touched a very--

SENATOR HAINES: Senator Stockman, most of the money 

corning from athletic scholarships doesn't come from State 

government. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I was talking about more commitment 

to the arts and spending for the arts. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: In this :- 0 ar' s budget, Senator. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And again, you know I'm ready to 

listen; to debate about raising that money. (laughter) 

But Clement, you spoke eloquently, and once more so 

very, very deeply from the heart, in your comments. I don't 

seriously quarrel with your restlessness and distress that 

something hasn't been going right in what's occurring in this 

area. But you opened another door that I can't resist, when 

you alluded to the fact that in other areas we wouldn't put up 

with the kind of deli very, the kind of results that we are 

seeing threatened here, and you referred to education. I will 

say to you that I would 1 ike to ask you whether you think in 

this last decade, that in the area of public education in our 
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poor districts, whether we New Jerseyans havJ delivered the 
I . 

kind of quality performance, the kind of system, the kind of 

delivery that we could be equally proud of? I Jhink I know the 

answer, but I can't resist asking you that gdestion when you 

made the comment. 

PROFESSOR PRICE: I want to thank 

asking me such a simple question. (laughter) 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: In some people's 

I tthe Senator 

Lnds it's 

for 

very 

simple. They have a very quick, simple answer. j 
PROFESSOR PRICE: I don't have a simple answer, 

Senator. I'll say this: It seems to me -- an again, I speak 

oftentimes as a student of history if y1u look at the 

history of public education, it was usual]y directed at 

salvaging the lives of the poorestspceho
0

p
0

1
1

es siynstoe~mr society. One 
could easily argue that the public of the United 

States was started to deal with the Irish who w~re perceived to 

be a backward people, a people who could not be assimilated 

into American society. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: No more. (laughter 

PROFESSOR PRICE: And here in New .Jersey, public 

school education expanded when the Jews and the Italians and 

the Poles _ and Hungarians settled this _state inl the late 19th, 

early 20th centuries. Something happened arolund mid-century 

wherein public education seemed to be more enthusiastically 

focused on the beneficiaries of American democracy, and not 

those who are still victims of American democrJcy. That is to 

say that we've lost our way as far as the tr1e objective of 

public education; that is to essentially upiift those, who 

through no other means besides education, will]become uplifted 

in American society. I think it's a phi losoph · cal question of 

very broad and deep dimension. 

I think it has a lot to do, quite frankly, with our 

abandonment of our cities. I think it has a lot to do with the 

issue of race in American society. Of all of the groups that 
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have not had a great encounter with public education in the 

history of the republic it's the darker groups who have always 

had-- It's the darker groups that the encounter has been most 

testy, most riddled with tension, most unsuccessful. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So would you take back the 

statement that we wouldn't allow the kinds of problems that 

we're having here to flourish in public education? 

PROFESSOR PRICE: No. My statement about public 

education-- We would not allow noneducated people to monitor, 

to direct the future of education. Education requires what? A 

credentialled-- It's a credentialing experience, and most of 

the people who are involved in education have gone through the 

process. 

What I'm suggesting is that the arts, perhaps because 

of its traditional vulnerability, is somehow perceived as 

something which is not serious enough to arts informed or arts 

educated people to be at the helm of policy-making decisions. 

That's what I meant to suggest, Senator. That we would not 

allow uninitiated educators .to dictate policy in the area of 

education or -- and I gave some other examples-~ environmental 

protection. We now see those as very substantial and important 

and informed aspects of our State government. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And this is very helpful to me, in 

terms of understanding to me-- Are you expressing a 

satisfaction with the educationat system that we're functioning 

with--

PROFESSOR PRICE: Oh no, I remain~- I live in 

Newark. I remain very concerned about the value of our public 

education. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, what I'm trying to press, and 

the Chairman has been very understanding, as have my 

colleagues, but I'll just press on. Is the broad expression of 

not allowing it to happen in education, in my sense it is 

happening in education, but--
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response 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: 

to Jerry, there. 

SENATOR LIPMAN:. Oh, 
SENATOR CARDINALE: 

Madam Chairman, just as a short 

no. Education, n tart? 

I think there is point here that 

really should be made and that is that 

essentially is that -- at least a portion of 

which have already been allocated for their p 

their complaint 

t -- the moneys 

rpose, are being 

diverted to other purposes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I understand, and I agree with it. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: We recently pas ed a bill that 

took educational moneys and diverted them to at er purposes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, now if you ant to get into 

that Senator, I will happily debate you on th t subject; very, 

very willingly. (laughter) 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I didn't vote for ·t. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I'm sitting here trying to be a 

good boy. I heard Senator Haines get in~o the 

athletes, and Jerry get into the education, and I think we'd 

all better face it: Art comes in many forms· I And let's never 

lose sight of that, whether it be in sports, hether it be in 

education, whether it be otherwise. So, I h ld my tongue on 

that one. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Before you go, I w nt to thank you 

all for being so frank, but now I just want you all to think 

about a couple of questions. You've answered them, partially, 

and some I don't think have been resolved. 'm like Senator 

Cardinale, right now. 

Do you agree with the Attorney Genera's decision that 

the Arts Council has acquiesced to personnel ecisions made by 

the Secretary of State? Do you agree to this? 

MS . PENNEY: No. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You do not agree to this. You did 

not acquiesce? 
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MS. PENNEY: No. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. But it did happen? 

MS. PENNEY: Well I think it was something to do with 

the fact-- You would have to talk to Jane, because I'm not-­

But she had to sign off-- I mean we the staff and the 

Council -- did the hiring, but she had to sign off. That's 

something to do with government. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. You seem to indicate that 

you've taken steps to reassert your res pons ibi 1 i ty of hiring 

and firing. 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: 

this, that there in an effort 

I believe that in an effort 

I would also say that prior to 

in what I said in my speech-­

to accommodate what we really 

understood, a change in administration, and a serious economic 

situation, that we were going to hold to the bottom line what 

was absolutely essential and to try to be accommodating. All 

along, I think, that the arts community had stated that they 

were willing to take their fair share of cuts, that they were 

willing to do something in the spirit of accommodation. No one 

welcomed that, but I think there was reluctant acceptance that 

certain changes needed to be made. So I don't consider that, 

in a sense, abdicating our responsibility. I think it's 

acquiescence to a situation. We're trying to create a positive 

relationship and an ability to go forward. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Now, just one more question. Are you 

confident that the procedures that you have now begun to get 

along cooperatively with everyone, and to make some of your own 

decisions and stand by them -- are you confident, sort of, that 

these procedures will be effective? Sharon, you answer that. 

MS. HARRINGTON: I think that we have every intention 

of working to make sure that that happens. One of my concerns 

has been that now that we have, in fact, reestablished the 

responsibility-- You know, regardless of history and how we 

came to this circumstance and who the personalities were who 
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were involved, I think we have now come to a drossroads where 

we should put that behind us, move forward, I establish that 
I 

indeed, we are the appointing authority, and ensure that we 

have the ability and take the responsibility in moing that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. I'm satilfied with your 
! 

testimony now. Before you leave, would you like to, Tiz, point 

out if there are other members of the Council hete? 

MS. CHRISTOPHERSON: Absolutely, beca~se this is an 

extremely hardworking Council. I must say that the Executive 

Cammi ttee who is empowered to act in emergent 
1

matters between 

the Council has met repeatedly, as you mig~t imagine, to 
I 

discuss the situation, as they have on all issues of concern. 

Dee Kirk, are you here? 

Franklin Fischer, who 

Dee, why don't you 

you know from 20 

(applause) And I'm not sure other members 

stand? And I think 

yealrs of service? 

were able to come. 

Oh, Assemblywoman Maureen Ogden, who has been a great asset. I 

believe those are all the Council membersl present, but 

certainly we have many friends that we' re q\fi te pleased to 

see. Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you, very much. Thank you so 

much for your testimony today. 

All right. Senator McManimon will return shortly, but 

while he's returning I think we will hear one mdre-- I'm going 

to cal 1 it a panel. It's not really a panel, I but we' re going 

to hear it before lunch; that's the legislators who are here, 

the former Secretary of Sta_te, and the represlentative of the 

President of the Senate. Mr. William fright is the 

representative of the President of the Senate, Assemblywoman 

Ogden is present. She is the ex officio member lof the Council. 

Former Secretary of State Jane Burgio is here. Is Senator 
Leanna Brown still here? (negative response) All right, will 

you three come forward? · 

Okay. Assemblywoman Ogden. 

50 



A S S E M B L Y W O M A N M A U R E E N B. 0 G D E N: 

Thank you very much, Madam Chair, and I thank you for calling 

this hearing, scheduling it today, and also thank Senator Lynch 

for working with you and calling upon you, as Chair of the 

Cammi ttee, to hold this hearing. I think that from 1 istening 

to the testimony this morning and hearing some people say that 

progress has been made in the past few days, that we see what 

often happens being repeated here, which is, when the 

Legislature decides to call a hearing and becomes involved in 

the process, there's suddenly more action and positive 

action -- than would have occurred otherwise. 

As was said earlier, I am an ex officio member of the 

Arts Council, which means that I am a nonvoting member, but I'm 

the representative from the Assembly, and Senator Stockman is 

the ex officio representative from the Senate. 

It was Senator Stockman and myself who sponsored a 

bill to bring the · Arts Council back from the Department of 

State in 1982, I think it was, and Senator Lynch and I 

sponsored the bond issue, the Quality of Life Bond Issue for 

$100 million, $40 million of which was to go to fund regional 

art centers. 

I'm al so the immediate Past Chair of the NCSL, which 

is the National Conference of State Legislators Committee on 

Arts, Tourism, and Cultural Affairs. And while Clement Price 

was talking, I was reminded of what it was 1 ike when I was 

first on that committee, because I was first a member of it in 

1982, actually succeeding Jane Burgio, who had been a member 

before. The Council itself was truly at a low point in the 

late 1970s and the early 1980s and I was, frankly, embarrassed 

to have to admit -- because stories were in The New York Times 

about how the Arts Council was under investigation -- that I 

was from New Jersey at that point; and an ex officio member of 

the Arts Council. 
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But we did see the Arts Council rise to unbelievable 

heights in 1988 when it was hailed by the National Endowment as 

one of the leading Arts Councils in the whole country, having 

gone from the bottom to the top, really, and we all shared a 

great deal of enthusiasm when that happjned. I think, 

possibly, one of the reasons that I was chosjn to be Chair of 

the Cammi ttee was because I used to keep coling with al 1 of 

these glowing reports of all the incredibly innovative, 

exciting, and supportive things that we were doing in New 

Jersey for the arts and really making all the other legislators 

who were on the Committee very envious that thif was happening. 

Something that I'd just like to briefly mention, 

because it's called Arts, Tourism, and Cultu~al Affairs, and 

while I've been here this morning I haven't feard this-- But 

to briefly digress, because we've been talking about the arts 

in terms of the quality of life, and that, of course, is the 

first and most important part of the arts. They're the 

enduring legacy that we have in terms of those who were artists 

in the past, and what we' re going to be passing on in the 

future. 

In terms of economic development -- and this is an 

issue that is of importance here in the State of New Jersey, as 

we face a budget deficit that may be somewhere between $600 

million and $800 million -- is to not forget the role of the 

arts in economic development. When the cuts were made last 

year, research was done and we came up with a figure of more 

than $700 · million that the arts generated. You know, as . a 

resident of Newark, we've been laying plans and working along 

towards a cultural arts center. If we have th!t in Newark, and 

if it has anything like the degree of succes.s of the Lincoln 

Center, think how much that is going to generate for the City 

of Newark, and think how vital a force that is going to be for 

the revitalization of Newark. 
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But, where we' re at today for the arts, one has to 

seriously question what New Jersey groups are going to be able 

to perform in that arts center? You know, I hate to say this, 

but I think that the arts have really been besieged and 

battered, both in terms of what we're discussing today, and in 

terms of the loss of dollars. You know, I can't think of any 

other State agency that has taken a cut of more than 50% in 

terms of funding, and just about 50% in terms of its personnel. 

I was present when the first Executive. Director was 

hired. As an ex officio member I wasn't on any of the 

committees that interviewed the first round of applicants, but 

I was very aware of the nationwide search that was conducted, 

and I did ·participate in the final day. We spent a whole day 

. interviewing the· final candidates for Executive Director. We 

were very happy that of al 1 of those who came before us, we 

were able to choose someone who came from New Jers~y, Jeff 

Kesper. 

I have really been actually amazed as this controversy 

has developed to learn that the Executive Director, who was 

chosen by the Arts Council and is therefore the top manager for 

the Arts Counci 1, is not responsible for his or her employees, 

and they in turn, are not responsible to the Executive 

Director. I can hardly think of any other organization that I 

know of, in which you have an Executive Director who does not 

retain the necessary managerial control. 

In terms of what's to happen now, it sounds as though 

certainly positive steps have been taken in terms of· the 

Governor's Office being involved and a liaison being set up 

between the Secretary of State's Office and the Council 

itself. I think it was really unfortunate that when cuts had 

to be made in terms of dollars for programs and also for 

personnel, that there wasn't a joint process of· collaborative 

action between the Secretary of State, the Executive Director, 

and members of the Arts Council. I believe that most of this 
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could have been avoided if there had been a cooperative 

planning process at the outset. 

Clearly, we hope that this is what is going to happen 

from now on, because the Arts Council certainly has to have the 

staff restored within the budget confines. We do have to have 

a commitment that they are going to be able to operate these 

programs professionally, and I'm particularly concerned about 

the-- I think there's at least $12 million, I believe, left of 

that $40 million from the bond issue that it be spent 

wisely, and even 

Legislature, that 

continue overseeing 

spent according to 

allocated. 

after 

there 

how 

the 

its 

be 

it's 

way 

been appropriated through the 

competent personnel there to 

being spent; that it should be 

the grants are supposed to be 

So, it's necessary to have the professional people who 

have the background in this type of program to continue to be 

there. And it's only with taking such steps, that I believe 

that it will be possible to 

community that the Council 

professionally. 

restore confidence in the arts 

is being run independently and 

I, in conclusion, Madam Chair, stand ready to work on 

the Assembly side on a bipartisan basis with you and with 

others who are very concerned about this situation; that if, as 

a result of this hearing, the matter isn't resolved and the 

Legislature needs to take further steps to clearly delineate 

authority, you have my total . commitment to work closely with 

you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you very much, Assemblywoman. 

I know that you have some innovative ideas about the arts; that 

is, from our side, the Legislature. Perhaps this would be a 

good forum to throw out -- to put in the air -- the idea of the 

arts as a total, single agency itself. With the downsizing of 

government that's going on presently, we may not be able to 

achieve that, but you did have that idea, didn't you? 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: Well, I didn't think to bring it 

up today. I think that would be the ultimate. To have a 

cultural agency for the State of New Jersey. I think that-­

SENATOR LIPMAN: That would be ideal. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: --would be the ideal. I think 

if that could -- in some administration at some future date-­

If that could actually take place, then the arts would be 

placed in their true perspective, if we had a cultural arts 

agency. A number of other states actually do that. I'd say 

almost half of the states do so it isn't as though we would be 

going into totally new ground. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Untried ground. Very good. 

Senator, do you have questions for the Assemblywoman? 

(negative response) All right. 

I have to just point out that Senator Ewing, who also 

has a vital interest in the arts, has joined us and he will 

make a statement. 

So now let's see who's next. 

Former Secretary of State Jane Burgio, you've heard 

your name mentioned a couple of times today. Perhaps you can 

clarify how the hiring and firing of Council personnel got 

delegated to the Secretary of State? 

FORMER SEC'Y. 0 F ST ATE JANE BURG I 0: 

I'd be glad to. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Al 1 right, thank you. I didn't mean 

to influence that, but that's the question I'm going to ask. 

MS. BURGIO: I have a prepared statement which I think 

will answer your question. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

MS. BURGIO: Madam Chair and members of the Committee: 

I appreciate the opportunity . to appear before you, my former 

colleagues, and I appreciate your interest in the New Jersey 

arts scene. 
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Since my retirement I have remained ac ive in the arts 

community. I did not plan to take an up-front part in this 

issue under discussion today. However, since I have been 

included and mentioned by name in the recent ppinion from the 

Attorney General, I feel it is important to clatify a couple of 

points in this document. I 

Number 1 on page 2, the 3rd parrgraph of this 

document, the Arts Council is referred to as arl "in but not of" 

State agency. This is incorrect. The Arts Council is an 

integral part of the Department of State with separate 

responsibilities, allocated the Arts Council trustees, spelled 

out in the enabling legislation. 

The seco'nd point is even more relevant to the topic of 

today's hearing. This opinion states--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Could we stop? Excuse me, I'm 

trying to find-­

letter of March 12? 

I missed that page. This is page 3 of the 

12. 

This is his Jopinion of March 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: First full paragrap? 
I 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. 

MS. BURGIO: Wait a minute. Wait till.l I find mine. 

Here it is. It's page 2, 3rd paragraph wherel it says, "It is 

consistent with established principles sanctioning the sharing 

of administrative authority in the personnel area especially 

for 'in, but not of' State agency, such as the Arts Council." 

It's not considered an "in, but not of." So in my opinion, and 

when I was in the Legislature, and when I was ih the Department 

of State, an "in, but not of" agency had no codnection except a 

technical connection with the department. Th~ Administrative 

Law Judge, the law of courts was an "in, but not of" in my 

Department, but I had no responsibilities. I believe that-- I 

say this later: that the Arts Counci 1 is a separate, 

quasi-autonomous, not "in, but not of." 

56 



MR. CAPALBO (Committee Aide): 

wording is "in." 
You' re correct. The 

SENATOR LIPMAN: It's "in." I've got the statute here. 

MS. BURGIO: It is in the original statute? Because 

it wasn't in the one I have. 

MR. CAPALBO: Well, the original statute applied to 

the Department of Education--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: He's agreeing with you. It's just 

"in" rather than "in, but not of." "But not of" is out. 

MS. BURGIO:• Oh, I see. Okay. In fact, Senator, when 

the department was going to be moved from the Department of 

Education, there were some people who wanted "in, but not of" 

but I said I did not want them if they were "in, b,µt not of" 

because then I would have absolutely no reason to work with the 

Arts Council, and in any way cooperate. 

Anyway, the second point I believe is even more 

relevant to the topic of today's hearing. This opinion states 

on pages 1, 2, and 3, that the three individuals whose 

dismissal has been questioned, were appointed by me, the former 

Secretary of State. And this is not true. All I did was 

handle the paperwork required for these individuals to start 

working. I did not seek out, recommend, or interview for any 

position on the Arts Council staff. This was done by the 

Executive Director. He was appointed by the Arts Council Board 

as required by law. 

As Secretary of State, with the Arts Council as a 

quasi-autonomous· division within the Department of State, I 

believe my role to be that of a custodian of the public trust. 

The board, members established .policy and employed a director 

and staff to carry out such policies. My role, and that of my 

immediate staff, was to assure that this agency was able to 

fulfill its many responsibilities in a thorough and efficient 

manner. 
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An Attorney General's decision dated July 17, 1990 

expresses it well. On page 2, 2nd paragraph, I quote, "It 

follows that the Secretary's influence policy and 

personnel decisions of the Council is to her 

participation as a nonvoting ex officio member, in addition to 

her persuasive powers as an important off'cial of State 

government," end of the quote. And I have opies of that 

decision also, if you don't have it. I 

I never hired or fired staff. I nevef interfered in 

the grants process. I saw the role of my officj as an umbrella 

unit, a troubleshooter and expediter, to dJal with other 

departments involved in our mission within State government. 

I feel strongly that the relationship ~f t~e Secretary 

of State, developed over the last 25 years, be ont1nued. Only 

then can we be assured that the citizens of New Jersey receive 

the opportunities and advantages that a pr fessional ~rts 

Council staff can provide. 

Thank you, and I'll be happy to answer 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. I forgo 

ny questions. 

to point out 

that former Secretary of State Jane Burgio is also a former 

Assemblywoman from Essex County. 

MS~ BURGIO: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We used. to collaborate on some issues. 

Then, do you think Madam-- I'm goi tg to call you 

Secretary of State, what could I do? Once a Sera tor, always a 

Senator. Once a Secretary of State-- Jane, 1f the state of 

our economy has made it more-- I don't exact! how to phrase 

this question, but, you were the Secretary of State in the 

booming '80s, right? You had lots of money. 

MS. BURGIO: Sometimes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Sometimes? 

MS. BURGIO: Well, in the beginning we didn't have 

much money. We came in with a deficit. T en during the 

interim, we were very fortunate. The economy w s good, and our 
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budget was increased. I'd like to point out, though, that 

although it was a big jump in New Jersey, it wasn't necessarily 

a big jump in comparison with other states. When we started 

out, we were something like 49th out of 50 states in per capita 

support for the arts. We worked up until we were one of the 

top 10. So it was not pouring money unnecessarily into the 

arts picture, but because of the growing economy, the 

importance of the arts, ahd a supportive Governor, we were very 

fortunate. · The last year we felt the economy, too, and we did 

have to cut in a percentage. But I think what's happened: If 

the arts have been cut in an inordinately fair way, everybody's 

willing to take the cut, as the Council members said. But 50% 

over a two-year period, I think, is very, very high. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, the arts community is smarting 

from the large cut from this last year. So that's the reason 

for the question: Should we then be cut again 8% this year 

since we gave our 8 1 ast year, you know, 1 ike giving at the 

office? 

MS. BURGIO: You 

the 

know 

arts 

my answer 

budget will 

to that one. 

cut 

I 

certainly hope 

additional 8%. 

small increase, 

that not 

I just hope that we can hold our 

I'm sure, would be welcome. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: No, I have no questions. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You don't? Senator? 

be an 

own, and a 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes, I do. It's a matter of 

interest to me that you were defined as the hiring authority. 

You did functions very similar to this function with respect to 

many areas, and it appears to me, at least-- Let me ask you. 

Didn't you do a very similar function: For instance, for a 

legislator after they were elected, you certified that they had 

been elected, and so forth? 

MS. BURGIO: Yes, that's right. 
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SENATOR CARDINALE: Has anyone ever suggested that you 

could fire legislators? (laughter) 
I 

MS. BURGIO: I'll tell you, nobody suggested it 

because I might have done it. Je SENATOR CARDINALE: It would been very 

interesting. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You would have done it if you could. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Did the Attorney General ever 

speak to you about circumstances prior to the writing of the 

opinion? 

MS. BURGIO: No. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: He did not consultJ ith you. 

MS. BURGIO: No, and I do not know lhere he got the 

information. I think it was probably the factt that I had to. 

sign a great many documents in order to ~mploy ~eople. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: But you would ha e signed those 

documents for more than these three. 

MS. BURGIO: Oh, yes. I would sign for the entire 

Department. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: The entire staff. So, it's as if 

the fact that you signed these-- What kinds ol f documents are 

they? 

MS. BURGIO: The documents providing fhese people get 

paid. They wouldn't get paid unless they coulJ go through the 

proper procedures. The reports would have to go through 

Treasury to make sure they would be on the pjyroll, and that 

they would get the benefits; generally the ~laperwork. that a 
bureaucracy would go through. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Okay. Now, it's been called to my 

attention to clarify another point. You budget request 

officer for this group? 

MS. BURGIO: For the whole-- Yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: As you understan the changes --

and I think you're some~hat close to the propo ed changes that 
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are being discussed -- would the Secretary of State not have to 

sign similar documents so that these people hired by the Arts 

Council, now, under whatever change in policy there is, have to 

continue to sign some hiring documents? 

MS. BURGIO: I would think so. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: And continue to make the budget 

requests? 

MS. BURGIO: We have to fight for the budget, not only 

make the budget requests. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: So that the Attorney General's 

opinion doesn't really change anything. It really doesn't say 

anything except-- It doesn't change any authority, any 1 ines 

of authority. 

MS. BURGIO: I do not understand this opinion that 

came out in March. It doesn't really clarify anything, 

particularly. It says the Secretary of State has the right to 

hire and fire, and the Arts Council has the right to hire and 

fire. I don't think it really comes down clearly. I think his 

original opinion which I have, which was done on July 19-- I 

think that was a much. stronger definition. As you know, you' re 

not a lawyer, but you know enough lawyers: You get three 

lawyers, and they can come out with three different views of 

the same subject. My quarrel with this latest opinion is that 

it's based on something that's not true, the ref ore, I don't 

think it's a proper opinion. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: So, to clarify again, you had 

nothing to do with interviewtng these people, with searching 

for these people, with making the decision that these 

individuals were the individuals who ought to be hir.ed? 

MS. BURGIO: No, not at all. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: That's what we heard from the Arts 

Council people; that they made all of those decisions and there 

was then some formal process, but they recommended that these 

people be hired. 
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MS. BURGIO: 

course, if Jeff wanted 

he would discuss it 

Not officially, at ali. I 
h . f I • to ire someone or a certain 

with us. We had a back 

discussion, but we never made.any de.cisions. L 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Jane, may I ask you-

1 
MS. BURGIO: Yes, Jerry? 

mean, of 

position, 

and forth 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: What role did Al Felzenberg play? 

MS. BURGIO: He was my assistant. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did he not play a role in any of 

these things we're talking about? 

MS. BURGIO: I think he probably work[d with Jeff on 

interviewing, but he had no more--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I had the impression that he was a 

major player throughout this time. 

MS. BURGIO: Yes, he represented me, and he would give 

advice, the same as I would, and he would give arvice to me. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, in a way -- and I understand 

you -- when you say you really were sort of in the background, 

and I'm paraphrasing, but I can understand it--1. But it was the 

background with a very strong figure who ~epresented you 

throughout this period of time. 

MS. BURGIO: Yes, but I don't think 
I 

question that it was the Arts Counci 1 and Jeafnf 
decision to hire anybody. Well, there was 

there was any 

Kesper's final 

instance, one 

time, when someone related to a-- A politic al person came in 

and wanted a position in the Arts Council, and we gave this 

person an appointment ~ith Jeff Kesper who lmade the final 

decision. This person was not hired. So we never made--

First of all, I think the best way to run a division 

is to appoint good people to head it, and ietl them make the 

decision to bringing their own people in. hnd I think it 

worked very well in the Arts Council. We have had wonderful 

people working there, and we still do; those thl are left. 
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Are there any other questions? Two of our people are 

missing, so--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Madam Chair, as a point of personal 

privilege, I have to leave shortly, but I wanted to thank the 

witnesses; too. I want to particularly acknowledge-- I 

acknowledged the Arts Council people. Maureen Ogden clearly is 

probably the preeminent legislator in terms of advocacy for the 

arts, and while I'm on the Arts Council and like to think I 

play a role in it, I want to publicly recognize and acknowledge 

that fact. It's an issue where we are in concurrence and, 

again, there are times where there are issues where we are not 

in concurrence. So, I'm happy to make that loud and clear. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. We have to hear from two 

more people. Would you like to--

WILL I AM WRIGHT: I'll defer to Senator Ewing. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Ewing, do you want to make a 

nice statement now? 

SEN ATOR JOHN H. EWING: Senator Lipman, I 

appreciate your letting me talk for just a couple of minutes 

because I certainly am interested in the arts. I think arts 

are part of our overall educational values that we have in the 

nation and certainly in the State, and we've got to do what we 

can to promote them. 

Certainly they should not be politicized the way they 

are being done now, what is happening to the overall arts 

effort and the Arts Council in this State. I think we've got 

to keep in mind always that certainly arts should be 

nonpolitical -- very definitely -- because they certainly don't 

go out and give grants just to Democrats or just to Republicans 

who write poetry, or a sculptor, or something like that. 

They've got to be for everybody, and the operation has got to 

be for everybody. 

Actually, I feel so strongly about it, I am putting in 

legislation to start a discussion to remove the Arts Council 
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from the Secretary of State's Office and maybe ~ut it over with 

Travel and Tourism because certainly, the arts bring people 

into our State, and I think it wou.ld. ~e much bftter there ~nd 
removed from people who are so pol1t1c1zed as t ey are now with 

what they' re trying to do to emas.culate the A ts Council. I 

think you've got to be commended for being wiling to take the 

initiative to have a hearing of this nature so it can ·be 

exposed and the issues involved are not hidd n under a rock 

like maybe some people would like, and just let it simmer there 

while they use their power to do what they want. 

In closing, I'd like to say, in spite of Jane's plea 

for more money, Larry Weiss, who is the Chairman of our Senate 

Appropriations Committee and I were on TV yesterday. Both of 

us clearly expressed the dire need for money in the State but I 

just do not see how the Arts Council is goi g to get more, 

unless dollars are shif::ed around within the overall budget. 

In fact, we feel there are going to be more cut throughout the 

whole State in order to balance the budget w 're working on 

today and also for the following year. So, ~t' s not a very 

pretty picture. But thank you for what you' re doing, and 

hopefully, for the sake of the arts and what 't does for the 

children and the older peo~le in this State, you get this 

situation resolved sooner than later. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Thank you, Senator. 

With Senator Ewing is a member of th Appropriations 

Committee, as is Senator Stockman, and as is Senator Haines. 

He doesn't want to admit it, but he is. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: He's a graduate. He's an alumni. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: He loved us he came back 

after he had taken a leave. 

SENATOR HAINES: That's right. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: That's in both cases, Senator. You 

went away from the Appropriations, and you went away from this 

Committee, and now you're back. We're happy to ave you. 
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Mr. William Wright is the Executive Director of the 

New Brunswick Cultural Center. I hope I'm right. He's going 

to represent Senator Lynch's views here. 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, I'm here on behalf of myself and 

Senate President Lynch. John Lynch wanted to be here today and 

had planned to be here today but now he is ~usy with the 

Apportionment Commission, which itself, must be ·a fine art. 

(laughter) 

The New Brunswick Cultural Center represents one of 

the greatest concentrations of the arts organizations in the 

State and includes in residence the Crossroads Theater, George 

Street Playhouse, Princeton Ballet, New Jersey Designer 

Craftsmen, and in affiliation, the Shoestring Players, Rutgers 

University Concert Series, and the Middlesex County High School 

for the Arts. A centerpiece of the Center is the State Theater 

which has attracted widespread attention. from the critics. 

It's a showcase theater for the presentation of the world's 

greatest orchestras, classical and popular artists, and 

performing arts in every form. It is one of the primary venues 

in which the State's organizations, such as the New Jersey 

Symphony Orchestra, can reach the people of central New Jersey. 

Presently under construction, the Center is the new 

home for Crossroads Theater, scheduled to open its '91-'92 

season in a new space in October of this year. This represents 

the first time in American history that a new theater has been 

constructed for a black theater company. Al 1 of this was made 

possible through the State Arts Council and the 1987 Bond Issue 

sponsored by Jo.hn Lynch and Maureen Ogden. 

Since its founding in 1983, the Cultural Center has 

rolled up an impressive list of accomplishments. It has become 

one of the cornerstones in revitalization to save New Brunswick 

and the daily lives of the people in central New Jersey, 

indeed, in the State. The synergism. between the Cultural 

Center and business in New Brunswick has brought new art 

65 



galleries, increased hotel ac::ivities, and somel of the fines·t 

restaurants in the State. 

The development of the Cultural Center has not been 
! 

without its share of blood, sweat, and tears. They have 

happened because of the extraordinary commitment of individuals 

that understand that the arts are an important component in the 

quality of life; as important as new sch901s, parks and 

recreation, and good and safe places in which to work and 

live. I 

Financial assistance from the State to the Council of 

the Arts has made it possible that companies of I the Center step 

beyond the ordinary and bring great distinction to themselves, 

the Center, and to the State. - While these companies are vi t_al 

to the growth and development of the New Brhnswick Cultural 

Center in terms of the heart and soul of t~e city and its 

environs, the arts generally are _part of the puzzle that 

includes all the basic services that must be I' upported by the 
State. 

Throughout history, the arts have always been an 

important element in our education and lives. They enlighten, 

they broaden, and they provide a nourishment ti o the mind and 

soul that is essential to a civil people. While we recognize 

that we must share the burden of financial distress, we do not 

want to be viewed as dispensable. We are not ~ispensable. As 

funds decrease from one organization after anofher, retrenches 

or dies, we lose something important thai may never be 

reclaimed. The legislative bodies of this State must find a 

way to balance the many demands equitably and I provide a level 

of sustenance that will let us emerge at tle end of these 

difficult times as a positive and viable element in the 

collection of the State's assets. 

Funding for the arts and management of those funds 

must continue to be unfettered by changes in polli tical fortunes 

and philosophies. The distribution of funds rust continue to 
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be separated from political processes and remain clearly under 

the purview of an independent Council. We must look for ways 

to ensure that the health of the organizations of the State are 

less subject to fluctuations and economic conditions. It can 

be helpful at times to take a look backward, to examine our 

roots and see why we established these institutions and 

conventions on which the processes have been built. 

In New Jersey, it started in 1962 in the Legislature. 

In response to an increasing number of expressions concerning 

the alleged lack of adequate promotion of the arts in New 

Jersey, it established a Commission to Study the Arts in New 

Jersey. In 1966 the Commission recommended to the Legislature 

the establishment of a permanent Arts Council in State 

government, empowered to . formulate and promote programs 

designed to enlarge the resources of New Jersey in a creative 

and performing arts and to make these resources available to 

the people of the State. 

I believe it is important to note, that in the 1960s, 

the Commission of legislators and community leaders believed 

that the arts were a resource for the development of this 

State. How far we have not come. The Commission further 

recommended that the Council be designated by law to be a sole 

responsible State agency, to administer all furds granted to 

the State by the National Endowment of the Arts, and the annual 

legislative appropriations to the Council be sufficient to 

enable it to employ personnel of high quality and otherwise be 

as responsible effectively. 

The Legislature acted on the Commission's 

recommendations in 1966 at which time they established the New 

Jersey State Council in the Department of State. In 1981, the 

Council was statutorily transferred to the Department of 

Education. It was believed that placing the Council in a 

department with other culturally-oriented agencies would give 

greater emphasis and focus to the activities of the Council and 
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the arts. In enacting the law that transferred the Council, 

Governor Byrne publicly reaffirmed the inde~endence of the 

Council saying the Council will continue ~o.de~
1

1 di~ectly with 
the Treasury Department on matters pertaining to its.· budget, 

thereby maintaining its status as a quasi-independent agency. 

· Two years later, citing a lack of p~oper attention, 

the Council was transferred back to the Depirtment of State 
with Governor Kean again reaffirming the need for an 

independent Council. He said this bill return the Council to 

its rightful and proper place within the Secr4tary of State's 

Office. It will assume a more active and ~isible role in 

promoting the arts in New Jersey and will be free of the kind 

of political controversy which surrounded it in prior years. 

The legislative and public records ~e replete with 
evidence that the Legislature intended to stat torily invest in 

the Arts Council the independent authority to make decis.ions 

affecting its operations, including the authort·ty to employ an 

Executive Director and such other personn 1 as may be 

necessary, as well as in appropriations and grfnt funds. This 

assertion is supported by the statutory powers conferred on the 

Council by the Legislature, the nonvoting repre entative of the 

Secretary of State, and the members of the Legislature who 

serve ex officio, and reaffirmation of. the ind pendence of the 

Council by both Governor Brendan Byrne and Gover or Tom Kean. 

Additionally, the Legislature's desi~nation of the 

Council of the Arts as the sole State agency ·!responsible for 
the receipt and disbursement of funds from the National 

Endowment of the Arts carries with it understanding and consent 

that the agency would be permitted to functio in conformance 

with any requirements that the recipient agency may grant as a 

result of an independent peer review process. 

All this is not to say that the proces ·of the Council 

cannot be improved. Undoubtedly there is room in any 

organization to streamline its · operation, to update its 
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procedures, and to look at itself objectively. The peer review 

process, while absolutely essential to the overall integrity of 

the allocation of resources, should itself perhaps be reviewed 

and brought into line with current realities. 

I would call the Cammi ttee' s attention to the recent 

report of the United States Congress on the National Endowment 

submitted by an independent commission in September 1990. This 

commission, headed by John Brademas and Leonard Garment, took 

an in-depth look at the workings of the Endowment, with 

emphasis on the peer review process, and recommended a number 

of changes. Among them are: ensuring that the membership of 

panels represents a· variety of aesthetic and philosophical 

views; in the interest of administrative efficiency and careful 

evaluation, from· time to time review the number and scope of 

panels; with the grant advisory panels, be one of several 

sources of advice -- that panels include people who do not e·arn 

their livings in the arts; and that emphasis be given to site 

visits. 

I am appending the recommendations of the independent 

commission report to this testimony. 

What you might do, as a Cammi ttee-- I would suggest 

that you convey to your colleagues in the Senate and the 

Assembly the importance of retaining, at a minimum, last year's 

level of funding for the arts, and that we start now to find a 

formula that will result in a reasonable growth of that funding 

in the future, based on quantifiable plans for the development 

of the arts in this State. 

As you will no doubt hear from others today, it may be 

timely to look at the pros and cons of moving the Council out 

of the Department of State. I would caution that the last 

experiment using this approach was not successful, and we would 

not want to see the cure kill the patient. Still, it may be 

time to follow the example of other states which, in 

recognizing the importance of the cultural life of their 

people, have created a separate Department of Cultural Affairs. 
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Finally, help us to bring the pri ate sector more 

firmly into this partnership. We need expressions from State 

government that the arts are important; t1e arts play an 

important role in the development of. the Sta e and maintain a­

high level of quality of life. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you, Mr. Wrig t. I think you 

have heard today that tpis Committee -- at le st this Committee 

of legislators -- is conviriced of the import ce of the arts, 

or they would not have come. Senators, do yo have statements 

or questions for the legislators or the Secretary of State? 

SENATOR HAINES: No. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: No questions? have clarified 

everything? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I don It have any questions, Madam 

Chairman, but I would like to make a brief statement. If I 

haven't made it clear already, I think the rts Council has 

actually received a double whammy. There is l budget problem. 

There is nobody who can deny that. There wa~ a necessity to 

reduce the expenditures of government-~ reducE the spending of 

government -- and there is no denying that; [But after having 

taken one of the more draconian cuts in the entire budget, it 

appears, as a result of this hearing, tJat still other 

shenanigans are going on. And, that has to stop'. 

After having taken a 50%. cut over tw years, to have 

even those moneys remaining being raided fore ployees who work 

in other parts of State government, seems nconscionable to 

me. I think this hearing wi 11 go a long wa toward ensuring 

that that does not continue. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We hope that will continue. I am 

depending on the Arts Council to reassert itl authority over 

its own employees; its Executive Director to have control of 

the Arts Council's employees. I think if we ave pointed out 

nothing else, ·with th~s morning'~· ~earing, I we have really 
suggested a number of times that this is what s,ould happen. 
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Now, we are going to reconvene this rather shortly 

after you get a bite to eat. We are going to start first with 

the Art Pride panel. I am going to call it a panel, because I 

think there are several people here to speak from Art Pride. 

We will come back to this room, please, at about 10 minutes to 

two, so we can begin on time. Thank you very much. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Do you give us 

lunch here? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Are you kidding? You're on your own 

for lunch. 

(RECESS) 

AFTER RECESS: 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I think, one of the members of the 

Committee having returned, we can reconvene this hearing. The 

whole hearing is being recorded. A transcript will then be 

made, and each member will be informed. 

I have. been told that Senator McManimon is on his way 

back to the hearing, and will be here shortly. But since we 

have a number of witnesses still to be heard, I will just start 

with Senator Haines here. 

I want to say that this morning we had an extensive 

discussion about the relationship of the Department of State 

and the Council on the Arts. It was unfortunate that the 

Secretary of State had a prior appointment and could not stay 

to respond to all of the issues. But at the conclusion of 

today's hearing, I will request the Secretary to forward the 

information to this Committee regarding these issues, and 

specifically to advise the Cammi ttee as to the results of the 

discussions between the Council and the Department as to the 

assignment and payroll status of Arts Council personnel. 
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I have also said today that we are i terested in the 

grants evaluation process. If the remaining wi nesses -- since 

you are all from local groups, arts groups - would tel 1 us 

something about how the grants process affects ou, and give us 

your evaluation, it would help this Committee to assess these 

procedures. 

Now, in the event you have some wri tt n remarks which 

deal generally with arts issues, we would be glad to accept 

those, too. You are free to talk about anyt ing you want to 

talk about, but specifically we would like you to give us your 

conception of how the grants procedures are handled in this 

State; how you perceive it. Are they f Are they 

impartial? Are they ·being hindered? That i what we would 

like to talk- about most. That is the point of view I want you 

to give us this afternoon. 

Presently we are going to begin with panel from A,:t 

Pride: We have Mr. Angelo Del Rossi, who is t,e new President 

of·Art Pride, and also the Executive Producer of the Paper Mill 

Playhouse; Ms. Carol Dickert, Executive Arts 

Foundation of New Jersey, and also Secretary o 

Board; and Mr. Michael Zuckerman, Vice Preside 

of New Jersey, and Director of the Mid-Atlantic 

Arts in Cape May. Would you please have a seat? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: 

may we add Laura Aden? 

the Art Pride 

t of Art Pride 

Center for the 

Madam Chairman, 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right, you may f1-dd Laura Aden, 

but I was hoping to get in one short statekent before you 

begin. _come on, y~u may sit down. That statem4~t will be from 
the Artist_ in Residence, who has an urgent appointment and has 

to leave. 

H O R A C E A R ~ 0 L D: I would also li e to request my 

partner to join me -- we are together if that would be 

possible? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Who is partner? 
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MR. ARNOLD: Louise Gorham. I am Horace Arnold. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Artist in Residence for the New 

Jersey State Council on the Arts. 

MR. ARNOLD: Yes, that is correct. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Mr. Arnold has an important 

engagement in New York, for which he has to depart. 

MR. ARNOLD: I am an Artist in Residence, and I have 

been for about the past 15 years. I am a jazz musician and a 

composer, and I have been practicing my profession for about 30 

years. For the past 15 years, I have been affiliated with the 

Council in one form or another, either as a faculty member on 

the ATI staff -- Artist-Teacher Institute -- or as Artist in 

Residence in the various schools in New Jersey, as well as an 

adjunct at the William Paterson College. 

I have come to appreciate the importance of 

education. It is the nation's number one priority .. I have 

also come to appreciate the importance of the New Jersey State 

Council's position on art as a means of education in the 

schools. It seems to me that the Arts Council has done a lot 

of important work. Arts in Education Residencies annually 

serve 24,000 school children. Over its 15 year history, the 

Artist-Teacher Institute -- which has been housed at Stockton 

State College -- has served more than 1200 teachers, who have 

also been affected by what is going on there as far as arts 

education is concerned. 

It seems to me that there are two things that really 

strike me as an artist: One is the importance of what the 

Council has been doing as far as using artists in the program. 

However, there are matters that have been of great concern to 

me. The use of artists has been sadly affected by the fact 

that there has not been an efficient type of format for 

payments. Quite often, I find that the paperwork the 

invoices, the contracts, and other things -- seem to move at a 

snail's pace. As a result, we have lost the opportunity to 
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have some established and superior artists 

of arts education. 

in the area 

The other point that really concerns I me is, it seems 

absolutely essential that the staff that deals with these 

issues -- that these people have credentials ~nd a sensitivity 

toward the artists. Over the past few years, I I have felt the 

effects of the lack of that even more so. It 1has not been what 

it had been in the past. I feel it is very important that the 

Council continues to be supported in its wa~ of dealing with 

the artists in education. As an artist, I feel very strongly 
I 

about supporting them in their aspirati]ons for better 

effectiveness. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You have found that the 
in I'd rerl ence 

Council's 

ability to process grants for artists 

hampered recently? 

MR. ARNOLD: Yes, I have. 

has been 

SENATOR 

something? 

LIPMAN: Ms. Gorham, did want to say 

L O U I S E 
Louise H. Gorham. 

H. G O R H A M: Yes, plelase. My ~ame is 

I 
Distinguished members: I speak to I you today as a 

graduate of the Mason Gross School for the Arts, as a founding 

member of the Crossroads Theater Company in N~w Brunswick, New 

Jersey, and as one of the first New Jersey Statle Council on the 
I 

Arts' employees to be fired. Although my carerr has soared and 

I find myself delighting in teaching Theater !Arts at Stockton 

State College, I feel it my duty to point out the dangers of 

indiscriminately firing employees without respect to the 

programs and their personnel requirements. 

I say this because I was the Coordinator of the 
I • • 

Writers-in-the-Schools program WITS. This program 1s 

financed, in large part, by the National EJdowment for the 

Humanities. It places writers in the schools bf New Jersey for 

four-day residencies. The response is usua1 1

1

1y overwhelming. 
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We have had excellent results from this program. Each year, 

children in every corner of the State respond with creative 

endeavors that astound their classroom teachers. Our artists 

get things out of the students that the teachers cannot 

normally get from them. I have attached an article from the 

latest "Family Circle" magazine which captures perfectly the 

zest and integrity of New Jersey's WITS program. The article 

was penned by one of the artists in our State who regularly 

goes into the schools. 

Now, thanks to the eff arts of artists who cared so 

much for the program that they volunteered their time this fall 

to match writers with the schools, Xerox forms, and learn the 

necessary procedures, the Writers-in-the Schools program has 

survived, and the children of New Jersey continue to benefit. 

However, although the immediate crisis was resolved, the 

long-range view is not good. There. is no one there to handle 

the necessary paperwork to keep this program alive. 

Now, a State program of this stature ought not to 

depend upon the endless training of volunteers. The time it 

takes to train volunteers is considerable. When mistakes 

occur, it is difficult to backtrack and figure out who made 

them. No one is responsible. It is my understanding that the 

grant received by the Arts Council from the National Endowment 

for the Arts included funds for my position. Since the 

position was eliminated, the funds were redistributed. But it 

is staff that is crucial to the survival of vital services. It 

is hard to comprehend channeling existing funds away from 

personnel, when professional staffing is precisely what is 

needed the most. That is what you need to run the 

Writers-in-the-Schools program; someone who wi 11 be there to be 

responsible; someone who will take the calls from the artists, 

from the principals, from the superintendents in the schools -­

not a volunteer. 
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I hope the current investigation will find ways to 

ensure that the staffing needs of the Arts Coufcil are met with 

professionalism and integrity. After all, it will be the 

children of New Jersey who lose if the Write~s-in-the Schools 

program remains a stepchild to bureaucratic maneuvers. 

That is my statement. Thank you. (applause) 
I 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you very much, Ms. Gorham. 

( sentence here indiscernible to transcriber dl\.le to very loud 

applause) That is precisely what the subject of our discussion 

was this morning. I saw that you were here tl
1

o see that there 

is some kind of resolution about staff by thj Council on the 

Arts. We hope, as you do, that the ongoing discussions with 

the Governor's Off ice and the Secretary of st!te are going to 

succeed--

MS. GORHAM: I hope so, yes. I 

SENATOR LIPMAN: --enough to resolvf these issues. 

Senator Haines, do you have questions for theselwitnesses? 

SENATOR HAINES: No. I think it is very clear. 
I . 

clear. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, it is very clear; absolutely 

Thank you. Now I know what artists inlresidence do; at 

least I know what you do. Yes? 
I 

MR. ARNOLD: If I may add one footnote to that with 

regard to what Louise just said-- Really, as a~ artist, I have 

been touched by the program, because it is rea~ly true that the 

kids are the ones who suffer through all the· bureaucracy and 

everything else that goes on. The bottom line lis that the kids 

suffer if you lose the qualified artists who fo in and · touch 

them. I know that is what happened to me when I was a child. 

That is what got me into playing jazz and playihg this American 

music I am so happy about. But if· you 10Je the qualified 

artists who go in and sincerely touch them !emotionally and 

spiritually, then you are losing a lot. I don't think we can 

overestimate the importance of support for the IArts Council in 

this regard. 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: You' re right. That is an important 

program with the Arts Council. 

We appreciate your statements.· 

MS. GORHAM: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Now, 

Thank you so much for coming. 

Art Pride. Mr. Del Rossi, 

congratulations on becoming the new President of Art Pride. 

A N G E L O D E L R O S S I: Thank you for that. Madam 

Chairman, we would like very much to discuss the panel review 

process, but if you would allow us, there are certain members 

testifying today who have prepared statements not long 

statements -- so we beg your indulgence. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. We are still under a 

democracy. I just wanted to push the points that would help us 

to decide what kind of recommendations, what kind of findings 

to make from this hearing. I don't think we got enough about 

that this morning. But, you say what you came here to say. 

MR. DEL ROSSI: Thank you. Madam Chairman and members 

of the Committee, gifted colleagues, and friends: Good 

afternoon. I am Angelo Del Rossi, and it is my privilege to 

address you today in a dual capacity: as the newly elected 

President of Art Pride, the statewide advocacy organization for 

the arts in New Jersey, and as the Executive Producer of Paper 

Mill Playhouse, the State theater of New Jersey. 

For Art Pride, I represent more than 200 arts 

professionals and arts institutions of all disciplines from 

Cape May to Teaneck, who live and work in New Jersey and 

contribute directly to the economy of our State. For Paper 

Mill, I represent the more than 440,000 New Jersey citizens, 

from every corner of the State, who demonstrate their interest 

in, and commitment to the arts by attending the theater at 

Paper Mill each year. I provide you with this background to 

illustrate that I speak not only for myself, but for a large 

number of citizens, statewide, who participate in, and benefit 

from the arts and who share the deep concerns about recent 
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I 

actions threatening the continuing operation of the New Jersey 

State Council on the Arts. I 

The arts in New Jersey have received national 

attention directly due to the actions, guidanc~, encouragement, 

and professionalism of the New Jersey Statel Council on the 

Arts. The Council has been highly regarded throughout the 
I 

United States as a model arts organization,
1 

held up as a 

prototype and a standard for other arts councils by our Federal 
I . 

government through the National Endowment for ~he Arts. Milton 

Rhodes, Executive Director of the American !Council for the 

Arts, has cal led the programs of the New Jers
1
ey State Counci 1 

on the Arts nothing short of remarkable, pointing to the 

success of the Council's excellence, initiatives, and peer 

pa,nel review system. This national prominencle has done much 

for our artists and our State. It is therefore extremely 
! 

disheartening for us to watch as these accbl mplishments. are . 

placed in serious peril. 

What is most distressing to the arts !community is the 

perceived systematic destruction of the integlrity of the New 

Jersey State Council on the Arts and the politicizing of the 

Council·' s operations. We fear that this lmay signal the 

beginning of the end for excellence in the arts in our State, 

and are deeply concerned that due to rece1t actions, the 

Council is being placed in a position where it will be unable 

to function. Present staffing is totally inad~quate to handle 

the volume of activities overseen by the coluncil. We have 

called upon the Off ice of the Governor to int et cede so that we 

might preserve the peer panel review process ihich al lows the 

Council to operate in a viable fashion. Thils panel process 

must prevail to ensure that all Council I procedures are 
I nonpolitical and nonbiased. 

We in the arts certainly acknowledgb 

economic times that affect us all, but strong~y 

arts have absorbed what are, in our estimatiot 
I 

I 

I 
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cuts. More than 50% of the budget of the State Council on the 

Arts has been eliminated in the past two years. Few other 

State agencies have been so denigrated. These act ions, along 

with the elimination of key staff members, have threatened the 

_Council's very existence. They also place in jeopardy the very 

criteria that bring significant funding to the Arts Council 

from the National Endowment for the Arts. 

We have al 1 heard and read much about the new Art 

Center to be bui 1 t in Newark. It is held up as a beacon of 

light for a depressed city. We are told how the Center will 

impact on the economic and social well-being of Newark; how it 

will revitalize and energize the community. We in the arts 

know this to be true. It will do all of that, and more. It 

will· supply jobs; real estate values will increase; restaurants 

and gas stations and parking lots and paint stores and 

lumberyards and candy stores and T-shirt manufacturers will ·all 

prosper. Did I mention that great art will be taking place as 

well? It will be a grand place. We wish the new Center well 

and look forward to its birth. 

But may I remind you that art centers exist now 

throughout this great State? These centers are supplying the 

people of New Jersey with the art they deserve right now. We 

right now have theaters, museums, symphonies, dance companies, 

and artists that are not only recognized here at home, but have 

gained national and international applause and recognition. Is 

it any wonder that we are here today seeking your help? How 

can we stand for this apparent destruction of the Arts Council 

and the devastating 50% cut in arts funding? We implore you to 

allow the New Jersey State Council on the Arts to continue to 

operate in the esteemed tradi ton for which it was founded and 

to supply that Council, inasmuch as is within your power, with 

the funds to ensure the continuing operations of our existing 

arts community, which has placed New Jersey and its cultural 

institutions on the vanguard of the national arts scene. 
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Thank you. (applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you, Mr. Del Rossi. I love 

this audience. (laughter) May I just you if your 

organization, being the leading advocate group, I guess, in the 

State-- Have you been a part of any discus ions to try to 

resolve this situation? 

MR. DEL ROSSI: Yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You have? 

MR. DEL ROSSI: Yes, we have. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Do you expect to cont·nue? 

We have MR. DEL ROSS I : We do expect to con~ inue. 

been meeting with a representative of the Goverrlor. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. Those cohversations, or 

discussions, have been calming, or satisfying? I Not satisfying, 

because we don't know what is going to happen hire. 

MR. DEL ROSSI: Well, they have nlt been totally 

satisfying, but they have at least been a st p in the right 

d,irection, as far as we are concerned. At lleast it was the 

first time that we were called upon to sit dow and speak with 

someone about what ,is happening with the Arts Council. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. I sincerely hope you will 

continue this role, I'm sure the legislators of this Committee 

would be happy to hear from Art Pride anytiie with whatever 

problems you perceive as happeriing. In a case like this, you 

know, when rumors and all kinds of accusatioJs and all keep 
floating around-- You know,. a group like you ,s could place a 

swift check on such things, just by coming in and talking to 

us. We would like to hear from you, all right? 

MR. DEL ROSSI: We will be happy to. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Haines, do ou want to ask 

Mr. Del Rossi anything? 

SENATOR HAINES: No, I have nothing. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You' re not going to tell him he is 

going to get a- great inc.rease in his budget? (1 ughter) 
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SENATOR HAINES: I don't think we would be telling the 

truth, would we? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We wouldn't be telling the truth. 

May I just tell you that Senator Haines is a member of the 

Appropriations Committee? (laughter) So I just put him on the 

spot, didn't I? 

MR. DEL ROSSI: We won't forget that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Stockman and I are both on 

this Cammi ttee, and Senator Weiss is a regular member of the 

State Government Cammi ttee every day. He is the Chair of the 

Appropriations Committee, so we will be working with him for 

the next few weeks, I guess. 

Okay, Ms. Dickert, please go ahead. 

CAROL DICKERT: As Executive Director of the Arts 

Foundation of New Jersey and Secretary of the Art Pride Board, 

I welcome this opportunity to share some thoughts about arts 

education as it relates to the New Jersey State Council on the 

Arts. 

Over the last several years, arts education has become 

a priority on many levels. The National Endowment on the Arts 

-- NEA -- established new national goals about five years ago, 

affirming the importance of arts education. · The New Jersey 

State Counci 1 on the Arts fallowed suit, developing new arts 

education objectives and programs, and Governor Florio stated, 

both before and after his election, that arts education was to 

be one of his priorities. Furthermore, he called for greater 

accessibility to the arts, which is only strengthened by a 

strong arts education program, for what makes the arts more 

accessible than arts education? 

New Jersey has achieved great success and recognition 

in arts education for a number of reasons. Primary is the fact 

that it was developed over a long period of time as a result of 

a closely knit working relationship between Council members who 

demonstrated keen interest, personal involvement, ·and strong 
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I 

·I 

commitment to staff who had years of _fieldl experience and 

administrative skill. So, the Council members worked very 

closely with the professional staff. An I arts education 

philosophy was carefully structured after months of 

deliberation. I 

The success of that partnership resulted in the 

Council's being awarded first a Plan to Plkn and then an 

Implementation Grant for arts education by the INEA, one of only 

a few across the country. I 

In recent months, legislation has been passed 

requiring State monitoring of the arts. Core bompetencies are 

to be completed by 1992. Arts education! programs have 

therefore taken on renewed importance. Reviewe~ i; tandem with 

the national goals of education and NeJ Jersey's own 

educational priorities, the New Jersey State I Council on the 

Arts has a vital role to play in supporting and monitoring arts 
I 

::~::;~~:he~ro::::s :hr:::::u\h~:e h::at:~th ThJh: c:;st::;y a:: 

expertise to analyze, evaluate, and ibplement these 

activities. Furthermore, New Jersey State Coubcil on the Arts 

staff have developed a network which is intekrated with its 

foundation of training and experience and wor!ks closely with 
- I 

groups such as the Alliance for Arts Education/,ew Jersey. 

The key to the success of building a strong and 

sensitive arts education program, which is totially in keeping 

with the Governor's own goals, is to continue to maintain a 
I 

well-trained professional staff at the Councif in sufficient 

numbers to do their jobs properly. This has been a long path, 

but the accomplishments to date have been eform~us and the 

impact on the entire State is worthy of the nurturing provided 

by the Council on every level. I 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

SENATOR, HAINES: 

I 
Thank you very much. Senator? 

Yes. You said thb State 

legislation requiring State monitoring? 
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MS. DICKERT: There is legislation for the monitoring 

of arts within the schools, yes, for the first time. 

SENATOR HAINES: Oh, in the schools? 

MS. DICKERT: Yes, in the schools. It is the first 

time that the arts curriculum will be monitored. So they will 

be considered equal partners to the rest of the curriculum -­

math, English, and so on. They are in the process now, at the 

Department of Education, of developing--

SENATOR HAINES: Is there legislation to that effect? 

MS. DICKERT: There is legislation, yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We are kind of stunned. I didn't 

know that either. 

SENATOR HAINES: You know, I think we want to keep 

arts as independent as possible. 

MS. DICKERT: Well, that does not take away the 

independence. I think what it is doing is strength~ning the 

arts in the schools. It is giving arts an equal importance to 

everything else. 

SENATOR HAINES: To give it importance, yes-­

MS·. DICKERT: That's right. 

SENATOR HAINES: --but not to monitor--

MS. DICKERT: Well, monitoring it in the sense of 

developing curriculum and saying that the children will be 

required from K through 12 to have an education in the arts. 

SENATOR HAINES: Okay, I see what you're saying. That 

is a little different than what I thought you meant. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Mani taring means putting strings on 

it? 

MS. DICKERT: No, it wasn't in a negative sense, but 

that is the term they are using in the Department of Education. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I see, all right. Mr. Zuckerman? 

B . M I C H A E L Z U C K E R M A N, PH. D. : Madam 

Chairman, members of the Senate State Government Committee: My 

name is Michael Zuckerman. I am also appearing today in a dual 
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capacity: I have just recently been elected V~ce President of 

Art Pride New Jersey, and for the past eighlt years I have 

served as Director of the Mid-Atlantic Center lfor the Arts in 

as far south as you can get in New Jersey, C29e May. 

I would 1 ike to depart from my preparred remarks just 

for a moment to try to address the question you/posed having to 

do with the grant process. I am going to try to tie that into 

the rest of my remarks. 

I don't think any of us would be here today to make 

statements as positively as we are doing regajrding the State 

Council on the Arts and how it has operated inl the past, if we 

didn't share Celeste Penney's total commitment I to the kind of 

peer review panel process which has cushioned the arts from the 

kinds of · interventions which have proved deletJerious in other 

situations. I think it is really crucial that /the Arts Council 

has turned to professional reviewers, mostly fr1m out-of~state, 

and has had the honoria at hand to pay for them to bring their 

quality of review. I think, to makej a statement 

across-the-board, the kind of quality of arts ~rogramming that 

has been nurtured through the State Council cm the Arts has 
I 

worked hand in hand and has only been made rossible by the 

continuation, and hopefully the onward preservat
1

,ion of the peer 

review panel process. 

Back to my prepared remarks. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay, thank you. I 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Like my colleagues, I _greatly, greatly 

appreciate your holding this hearing today and ~iving all of us 

the opportunity to share our grave concerns eyer developments 

in the New Jersey State Council on the Arts. I While seconding 

their statements about how important the professional and fair 

management of that agency has been to fos~ering artistic 

excellence in this State, there is yet another dimension to 
I 

this issue that I wish to bring to your attentipn -- actually I 

believe it was Assemblywoman Maureen Ogden who (irst raised it 

-- and that is economic development. 
1 

I 
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Today is the second time this week that I have 

appeared before an important statewide forum. On Tuesday, at 

the Governor's Conference on Tourism in Cherry Hill, I was a 

speaker at a workshop on "Nonprofit Tourism Attractions," along 

with distinguished col leagues from Wheaton Village, Paper Mi 11 

Playhouse, and the New Brunswick Cultural Center, as well as 

the proprietor -- and an artist in his own right -- of Panico's 

Restaurant in New Brunswick. Our message on Tuesday was that 

cultural tourism is, indeed, a powerful engine for economic 

development, whether it be in cities like New Brunswick, rural 

districts like Millville, suburbs like Millburn, or a seashore 

town like Cape May. 

The New Jersey State Council on the Arts has played a 

crucial role in all of these economic success stories. Through 

innovative programming and effective staff support, and through 

the operation of the peer review panel process, it has nurtured 

artistic excellence in every corner of the State. And wherever 

the arts have flourished, so has the surrounding economy. 

According to an Art Pride economic impact study, every dollar 

spent on the arts is multiplied at least sevenfold, amounting 

just a year ago to over a $700 million contribution to the 

State economy. 

I would like to share with you just one case study of 

how the process has operated in my community of Cape May. With 

generous funding and professional staff guidance from the State 

Arts Council, we last year established the Cape May Music 

Festival. In addition to bringing the highest quality of 

chamber music to our rural, culturally underserved area, the 

Cape May Music Festival also has an avowedly tourism promotion 

objective. With the Spoletto Festival in Charleston, South 

Carolina as our model, we are seeking to use the combination of 

19 public concerts, accompanied by open rehearsals and 

workshops, as a powerful magnet to attract visitors to Cape May 

during the six soft weeks between Memorial Day and the Fourth 
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of July. Now, after the success of the first season, Cape 

May's business 

year, fully 34 

community has jumped on the bandwagon. This 

hotels, motels, and inns have signed on as 

"Accommodations for Music Lovers," marketing special Music 

Festival packages to their customers. Hopefully, June will now 

become another banner month in Cape May's extended tourism 

season. 

None of this could have happened without the kind of 

pcofessional and financial support we have come to expect from 

the State Arts Council. Recent developments have jeopardized 

our dreams, both artistic and economic, as well as those in 

hundreds of communities throughout the State. We beg you to 

take whatever action you can to preserve the integrity of the 

New Jersey State Council on the Arts. 

Thank you. (applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Haines? 

SENATOR HAINES: Yes, what impact? You say it has an 

impact on tourism. I'm sure it does in dollars. Do you have 

any kind of an idea of what impact it has? I mean, is a dollar 

spent on art, the type of thing you are using here-- Does it 

have a dollar value in terms of tourism? Have you ever figured 

that out? 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Right. Actually I am here today with 

Norris Clark, who is our volunteer Chairman of the Music 

Festival. We were doing just a little bit of number crunching 

waiting for the hearing to start. We figured that the 2000 

people who are likely to attend the Music Festival will 

probably spend in the neighborhood of a half a million dollars 

in Cape May, figuring that they would stay for a couple of 

nights, have meals, go shopping; therefore, the average 

rnul tiplier effect of seven times. When you are looking at a 

tourist destination cornrnuni ty where people are not coming just 

for the evening, but are corning to spend a weekend, that 

multiplier goes up-two or three times the seven times. 
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SENATOR HAINES: Wel 1, are you saying that people are 

coming there who wouldn't normally come, or are you saying that 

different people come there because of the arts? 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Okay. 

SENATOR HAINES:· What I am getting at is, if it is in 

June, it's probably new people. 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Right. 

SENATOR HAINES: And if it is in July or August, it 

would probably be full anyway, wouldn'.t it? 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Exactly. We planned it for June to 

kind of fill in that shoulder part of the season. Our model is 

a series of artistic and historical events that we sponsor in 

October, called "Victorian Week," which has made October the 

single busiest month of the season· in Cape May. So we are 

trying to use cultural tourism -- artistic programming -- to 

attract people who-otherwise would not be coming. 

SENATOR HAINES: That's great. That is a good selling 

point. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. 

SENATOR HAINES: Get more money out of you on 

Appropriations-- (remainder of statement indiscernible due to 

laughter of audience) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: To link the arts with tourism is a 
plus. Thank you, Dr. Zuckerman. 

DR. ZUCKERMAN: Thank you, Senator. 
SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay, we will turn to Laura Aden now. 

L A U R A A D E N: Thank you, Senator Lipman, for holding 

this hearing and for allowing me to testify. My name is Laura 

Aden, and I am the Executive Director of the New Jersey Theatre 

Group. I have also served for the past two years as Vice 

President of Art Pride, and I continue on the Executive 

Committee. The New Jersey Theatre Group is a statewide 

association of professional theaters. We work together to 

promote and develop theatres throughout the Garden State. 
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We have been in existence for 13 years, starting in 

1978 when there were only five professional theaters in this 

State. Now we boast a membership of 18 theaters from as far 

north as Teaneck to as far south as Cape May, and everywhere 

in-between. The New Jersey State Council on the Arts has been 

a consistent supporter of our 'work and has always· understood 

the importance of collaborations and respected the sense of 

comm:unity_which has developed throughout the theaters. 

I know that I am but one of many people who will be 

testifying before you today and I will keep my comments brief. 

There are two points I wish to make, and one deals with the 

peer review panel, you will be happy to know. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay. 

MS. ADEN: First, without the support of the New 

Jersey State Council on the Arts, New Jersey's theaters would 

still be overshadowed by .our neighbor across the Hud~on. 

Instead, our theaters are renowned nationwide. Both Crossroads 

Theater Company and Paper Mill Playhouse have had their work 

showcased on PBS' "Great Performances" series, going out to a 

national audience. I might add that Channel 11 in New York, 

WPIX, just broadcast a half-hour special on New Jersey 

theaters, focusing on four in particular, but mentioning all 18 

of them that we worked on. They broadcast for the first time 

this past Monday, and we received over 200 p_hone calls after 

that from people all over New York and New. Jersey. They will 
be rebroadcasting it on Sunday, March 31, at 9:30 p.m., so tune 

in to Channel 11. 

Just last spring, over one-half of the productions 

playing off-Broadway had originated at one of New Jersey's 

professional theaters. The diversity and quality of New 

Jersey's theaters is due · in no small part to the New Jersey 

State Council on the Arts. It is. imperative that this Council 

be allowed to. maintain its independent, nonpartisan, 

nonpolitical posture; basing. its distribution of . grants on 

88 



excellence and merit, determined by peer review panels. I know 

many people have spoken to this issue today. 

But secondly, I think it must be stated: There wi 11 

always be those who think that they could better distribute the 

dwindling funds available to arts organizations. There wi 11 

always be those who f aver one arts organization over another, 

for whatever reason. There will always be those who are 

unhappy with the amount their own arts organization receives. 

There may even be legislators who feel that not enough grants 

are distributed in their districts. We all have our own 

opinions. The bottom line remains, however, that grants 

distributed by the New Jersey State Council on the Arts have 

not been based on personal preference or political pressure. 

They are based on a painstaking process, honed and perfected 

over the years not only by our model State Council, but by the 

National Endowment for the Arts and other state councils· as 

well. The peer review process, where professionals in the 

field evaluate applications, is the recognized standard for 

determining who should and should not be funded. 

On behalf of the professional theaters, I ask that you 

ensure that the New Jersey State Council on the Arts be allowed 

to remain an independent agency, staffed with qualified arts 

professionals. I implore you to ensure the continued integrity 

of this most important agency. 

Thank you for your time today. (applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We thank you very much for your 

remarks. Your points are well-taken. I am sure you will be 

seeing us again in front of the Appropriations Committee. 

Senator, do you have anymore questions? 

SENATOR HAINES: No, I don't think so. I think the 

presentation was very good. I think it was very thorough. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you. You have a very 

appreciative audience. Thank you so much. 

MS. ADEN: Thank you. 
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DR. ZUCKERMAN: Thank you, Senator; thank you very 

much. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: In the interest of time, I am going 

to make up another panel real fast. This is going to be made 

up of county representatives and local representatives. So I 

will call Mr. William Higginson, of Union County; Ms. Paula 

Stephens, of Essex County; Mr. Stuart Allen, of Plainfield; and 

Ms. Jennie Ayres-Snyder, Cape May County Cultural and Heritage 

Commission. Would the four of you please come up? All right, 

where shall we begin? We will just start over here. Are you 

Ms. Stephens? 

P A U L A S T E P H E N S: Yes, ma ' am. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. This is Ms. Paula 

Stephens, of Essex County. 

Stephens. 

for the 

Affairs. 

MS. STEPHENS: Good afternoon. My name is Paula 

I am the· Administrative Analyst/Grants Coordinator 

Essex County Division of Cultural and Historic 

I am here today to present my testimony on behalf of 

the Division and the currently 31 local arts organizations in 

Essex that participate in the State/County Partnership Program, 

also known as the Block Grant Program. I am also here to voice 

· a few words in support of the New Jersey State Council on th~ 

Arts. 

In Fiscal Year 1989-90, our Division was awarded 

$28,000 in special project funds from the New Jersey State 

Council on the Arts for our anriual free summer concert series. 

With this assistance we were able to provide multi-regional 

audiences musical ente'rtainment that featured big bands such as 

the Guy Lombardo, Sammy Kaye; Woody Herman, Glenn Miller, Count 

Basie, Tommy Dorsey, and Artie Shaw Orchestras. We also 

provided neighborhood concerts .for inner-city residents and a 

series · of cultural festfvals that celebrated the cultural and 

ethnic diversity of our citizens. Our 1990 series presented 35 

per£ orming arts programs that featured over 1000 per£ armers in 
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14 locations throughout the Essex County. Audience attendance 

amounted to approximately 230,000 participants. Our 

award-winning series has been nationally recognized. 

In Fiscal Year 1990-91, we will not receive funding 

support from the New Jersey State Council on the Arts. Coupled 

with this loss, the current deficit in Essex County seriously 

affects our abi 1 i ty to produce a series comparable to past 

seasons. You should know that virtually every letter of 

support we receive from citizens statewide includes a statement 

that reads: "We are getting something for our tax dollar." 

You are aware that the NJSCA awards funds directly to 

major organizations throughout the entire State of New Jersey. 
; 

In an effort to provide funding assistance to smaller local 

arts organizations, and to make this effort more manageable, 

the NJSCA established the State/County Partnership Program, 

also known as the Block Grant Program. A "block" of funds is 

awarded to the county partner for redistribution to the local 

organizations. Essentially, the NJSCA awards the funds and the 

county partner administers the program. In 1989-90, the 

Division received a Block Grant award of $115,342. In 1990-91, 

the award amounted to $66,898, a whopping reduction of 42%. 

The Division and the local organizations -- our re-grantees -­

were prepared to face the cuts, but were not prepared to face 

the administrat·ive delays in processing grant contracts due to 

staff shortages at the State level. Because county government 

is involved in the detailed process of re-granting -- there are 

more steps involved in getting these awards into the accounts 

of the local organizations -- many of the organizations are 

financially strapped until they receive their grant awards. 

On March 19, I received a call from the administrator 

of the Newark-based Ironbound Theater. He informed me that 

their bank had closed their account due to monetary problems. 

This organization, which has its theater in Rutgers University, 

was one of our greatest success-stories. This is one example 
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of the many local organizations in Essex that are suffering due 

to cutbacks. 

The Block Grant Program is an essential part of the 

State's grant program. The Aljira Center for Contemporary Art, 

the North Jersey Philharmonic Glee Club, Dance Compass, the 

Ensemble Theater Company, and Gallman' s Newark Dance Theater 

all began with the Block Grant Program with grants as low as 

$500. Because of this support and their superior management 

and fund-raising skills, these organizations now receive direct 

funding from the NJSCA that amounts to five figure awards. 

In the face of shrinking corporate support, dwindling 

private philanthropy, and ever-decreasing public support, the 

arts will survive in New Jersey, but not without a struggle. 

On the national level, the recent challenges to the funding and 

administrative policies of the National Endowment for the Arts, 

which appears to adopt the fervor and pitch of witch-hunt _like 

tactics, will soon pass once its detractors realize that the 

support and nurturance of the arts is essential to life and 

reflects the basic rights of freedom of expression and growth. 

We accept the reductions in the State's operating 

budget and we look forward to better days. For now, we only 

ask for a more equitable distribution of funds -- more parity. 

We also ask for restoration of the previous staffing level at 

the State Arts Council, so that grants and other activities can 

be more effectively administered and their funding capability 

and prestige on the national level will not be adversely 

affected. 

This is more than what some may term an "esoteric 

inl{ling" of a few arts organizations. The figures are in, and 

the facts are clear. The arts in New Jersey have added revenue 

to the State's coffers in excess of $700 million. Frankly put, 

we need each other. 

Thank you for your attention to this pressing matter. 

(applause) 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you for your presentation. 

SENATOR HAINES: Madam Chairman? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes? 

SENATOR HAINES: Ms. Stephens, you mentioned private 

contributions, corporate contributions. Is there anything we 

can do to increase the corporate contributions? 

MS. STEPHENS: At a recent Art Pride meeting we 

discussed that. The corporations that were present on the 

panel gave us some dos and don'ts and suggestions for the best 

way to approach them. It is real competitive right now. The 

money is shrinking. They have their priorities. So, out of 

this Art Pride meeting we did get some ideas on the best way to 

approach them. 

But for county government agencies, it is a little bit 

more sticky, because a lot of the corporations wi 11 not fund 

county governments and, if they do, they really question where 

the moneys are going to be placed; if it is going to be for a 

specific project or. added into the budget of the county. So 

for county governments we really suffer, because we are limited 

in the types of organizations or corporations and foundations 

that we can approach. 

And you know what is happening in Essex right now. We 

are facing a $97 million deficit. We've got employees being 

laid off everywhere. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Do you have any preliminary views of 

what will happen to your program? 

MS. STEPHENS: As of now, our budget for our summer 

concert series has been eliminated. Last year we had $104,000; 

this year it. is zero. So we're doing what we can to get as 

many in-kind services as possible. We have approached AT&T. I 

think they are interested in funding our Independence Day 

celebration. We have audiences up to 20,000 people in one 

park, just to hear a concert. These people are crazy about 

it. The only thing we can do, while the budget has yet to get 
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to our· Freeholders-- Maybe once it gets to them they will 

reinstate the funds. We ~re praying for that . 

. SENATOR HAINES: In your original statement -- if I 

have figured it out right -- the subsidy was only about 12 

cents per person. It was 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

very tiny. 

Yeah, a small one, $28,000. 

SENATOR HAINES: 

you know, it seems like--

Maybe it takes that to do it, but, 

MS. STEPHENS: We have considered passing the basket, 

so to speak, to the concert goers. Plus we do intend to do 

some fund-raising, too. We have an enclosed area. We are sort 

of 1 imi ted to the types of people we can-- We cannot have, 

say, Whitney Houston or Wyn ton Mars al is in · a park setting. 

There would be no way for us to control the crowds. But we do 

have an· arena and we are thinking of getting some pop stars. I 

don't want to mention any names -- Vanilla Ice, believe it or 

not and, wel 1, the New Jersey Pops, hopefully to do some 

fund-raising for us. So we are forced to look to alternative 

sources for funding, which is good for us, too. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We wish you much luck; we really do. 

MS. STEPHENS: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We wi 11 go advocate with the 
Freeholders for it. 

MS. STEPHENS: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: The Freeholders from Essex County. 
You're next. Are you going to--

S T U A R T A L L E N: Thank you, Madam Chairman and 

distinguished panel.. My name is Stuart Allen. Unlike my 

colleagues here on this panel, I .represent the next lower 

tier. I think it is very important that we understand the very 

constituents you were speaking of this morning when you spoke 

of the inner city. I represent a city of 47,000 people -- the 

City of Plainfield. I would like to also stress that when the 

budget cuts went into effect, this board, the Cultural and 
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Heritage Commission of the City of Plainfield, did, in fact, 

enact a resolution that we would not compete for any State or 

country grant funds that would have us competing with other 

arts organizations within the community. I think that is 

important to note. 

Plainfield is a city, as you are aware, located in the 

tri-county corner of Middlesex, Somerset, and Union Counties -­

and we derive an audience from those three counties -- with a 

population of 47,000 residents of diverse economic, racial, 

ethnic, and cultural backgrounds. 

In 1984, the city established, by ordinance, the 

Cultural and Heritage Commission, to ensure that arts and 

cultural activities were available to all of its residents, 

regardless of their ethnic, . economic, or cultural _background -­

and I stress "economic, or cultural background." 

Currently -- and it is important that we understand 

this also our city has over 100 cultural and artistic 

organizations within the community, including the Drake House 

Museum, a historical society, community centers, choral groups, 

theater groups, art galleries, arts workshops for seniors at 

the Senior Citizen Center, an arts program for the Association 

of Retarded Citizens, and the oldest symphony orchestra in the 

State of New Jersey -- the Plainfield Symphony Orchestra. 

Plainfield is also very fortunate to possess one of 

the most valuable collections of art treasures in the world 

let alone in the State of New. Jersey -- Albert Bierstadt' s 

famous "Landing of Columbus in San Salvador" -- which has 

received much acclaim and publicity and also "Autumn in the 

Sierras," which is another six foot by 10 foot painting by the 

same artist. 

One of the things I am going to go off my prepared 

remarks here and do is, to link these assets with some comments 

that Senator Haines made earlier concerning a linkage with 

tourism. - The City, of Plainfield· brings in-house tourists -in 
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our historic districts. We have four historic districts 

currently; we are working on a fifth. Over 20,000 people come 

into the City of Plainfield on an annual basis. We have an 

annual art festival that brings in between 15,000 and 20,000 

people on an annual basis. We have also had a car show -- an 

antique car show -- that has brought up to 12, ooo people into 

the city. This is a very, very important piece of linkage. 

As you are aware, I presented before the 

Appropriations Committee last year a computer model also 

indicating the revenues derived from this type of activity. It 

is substantial. In the model I cited last year, we had 

received in State Arts Council funding in our city a total of 

over $87,000. When we look at that money that was invested -­

and I use the word ."invested" -- in the City of Plainfield, 

that money generated in sales tax, State tax, and State income 

tax, $96,000. Now, that is not a bad investment; that is not a 

bad investment at all. The freebie is the fact that we had 

60,000 or 70,000 people come through the community to enjoy the 

programming that was made available to them. 

Something else that is very important, is that the 

downtown business district in Plainfield was designated as one 

of the State's Urban Enterprise Zones. This is very important 

also to note, because here we are looking at a diminished tax 

base in this area to stimulate economic growth within the 

community. We are undergoing revitalization and redevelopment 

presently within the city. One of the things that is being 

looked at in the city is the cultural and artistic assets that 

are available to a corporation when it relocates or locates its 

facilities within the community. That is an important tool. 

It is an important selling point for the State of New Jersey. 

I think history will bear me out that many major corporations 

have moved into the geographic locations they have, based on 

the cultural and artistic resources that are available for 

their.key employees. 

96 



SENATOR HAINES: I think you are absolutely right. 

That is a point that hasn't been brought out here. 

is very important. 

I think it 

MR. ALLEN: The State Council on the Arts has always 

played in Plainfield's art history-~ a very, very important 

role. We have always had a professional Arts Council staff 

that was available to us to provide the technical support 

required, not only by my board in the development of arts 

management programs, but also by many smaller arts 

organizations within the community. One of the things that I 

am very concerned about is the linkage between your artistic 

community, your cultural community, and, of course, the 

development of that community. 

Operational assistance grant, matching grant, and 

fellowship grant applications-- While we do not directly apply 

for those, we help our constituents to apply for this type ( 

funding. Although the process may have appeared cumbersome at 

times, all of the applications were evaluated by knowledgeable 

professionals in each of the artistic disciplines. The peer 

review process works. It worked well, and I stress, without 

the appearance or perception of political interference or 

favoritism. 

I am very concerned about this because, again, Senator 

Haines raised a question concerning: What can we do in the 

corporate sense to initiate a corporate/private partnership 

with community arts service groups? One of the problems I have 

-- and we ~ouched upon this -- of course, is the credibility 

factor the perception of political interference or 

favoritism. This is something tl}at is looked to very carefully 

when a corporation provides a matching fund for an arts 

endeavor. A corporation does not want to have strings attached 

on a State or a county or a local level -- strings attached to 

their donations or to their grants. 
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One of the things I am looking at is that the State 

Council on the Arts, for the past decade, has enjoyed an 

exceptional reputation nationally and has served, as other 

speakers have verified, as a model to other programs in other 

states. 

I am not prepared to discuss the internal policies of 

the Arts Council or its staffing, but I am prepared to raise 

concerns, on behalf of the 47,000 residents of Plainfield, 

about certain actions which heretofore have been taken that may 

have affected the ability of the Arts Council to administer 

their programs, and, in fact, the actual credibility of the 

Arts Council itself. Another thing -- and, of course, we have 

witnessed this by virtue of the cuts, and this will be 

addressed in another forum is the fact that our large 

comrnuni ty grants are only down by maybe about 40%. However, 

when I look at the small arts organizations -- the small choral 

groups, the poetry societies, etc. -- that grade of funding is 

down 70%. 

Notwithstanding, obviously, the current fiscal 

constraints, which wi 11 be addressed in another month before 

this body again -- or other bodies -- we ask this panel to set 

. forth, perhaps by resolution, a policy that would maintain the 

integrity of the operation of the State Council on the Arts and 

the administration of its diverse cultural arts programs. 

Furthermore, I think immediate consideration must be 

given by this body to the restoration of all such operational 

procedures, policies, and personnel as set forth by law and 

legislative intent, which are necessary to comply with the 

regulations and guidelines. as set forth by. the NEA and other 

Federal agencies. In our case, we also receive NEH funding as 

well. 

· I think most importantly, as we begin the last decade 

of the 20th centrury, the New Jersey State Council on the Arts 

must be given the opportunity and resources with which to 
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continue to provide the necessary nourishment to our cultural 

and artistic community. It is vital to the preservation of the 

quality of life and economic health of the citizenry in the 

City of Plainfield. 

I thank you for the opportunity to present this today. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We thank you for coming today, too. 

Senator Haines, did you want to discuss something with Mr. 

Allen? 

SENATOR HAINES: The only thing is, I think the point 

you brought out that it is essential for development, for 

bringing new companies into the area, for the whole character 

of the area, is very well-taken. 

MR. ALLEN: Thank you. If I may add, too, I think you 

asked also for other input with regard to the corporate 

sector. One of the things that may not be within the purview 

of this Committee, but I am sure you can take this back to your 

distinguished colleagues on the floor, is, I think there has to 

be some incentive financial incentive, perhaps a tax 

incentive, perhaps some form of incentive -- restoreq. back to 

the corporate sector to encourage them, or to at least give 

some recognition other than a bronze plaque, perhaps, or a 

credit in a program, for some of their donations. In some 

cases, we are looking at major corporate structures, such as 

Johnson & Johnson in the case of New Brunswick. What happens 

when I have the smaller corporation that is looking at a $2000, 

or maybe a $5000, or a $10,000 grant where it is a hardship to 

them to make that donation, but yet they are willing to make 

that sacrifice? I think something has to be done in that price 

range of a patron. 

SENATOR HAINES : I also think your point that this 

should be independent--

MR. ALLEN: Absolutely. 

SENATOR HAINES: Because you are not going to get the 

· · - corporate sponsorship, you are not going to get the support of 

the general public, and so forth, if it isn't independent. 
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MR. ALLEN: 

Star-Ledger, March 3, 

An article appeared in the Sun~ay 

and within an hour I had three phone 

calls from corporate donors, and I had numerous phone 

conversations with private arts organizations. I am just going 

to quote the article -- which I am sure you have seen -- the 

one which says: "The Arts Council Firings Fuel a Threatening 

Storm." There is a remark about private partnership funds 

which were to be kept separate from Council appropriations so 

that the award of the money might be accomplished without the 

cumbersome paperwork of grant applications. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh my goodness! 

MR. ALLEN: That is a direct quote from page 14, 

section 1 of the Sunday Star-Ledger. I had to do an awful lot 

of talking to overcome the perception -- and I use the word 

"perception" of what that article implied. It was 

devastating to everything we have done. 

SENATOR HAINES: Absolutely devastating. 

Madam Chairman, I have an appointment at 4:00 about 30 

miles south of here. I have to leave. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: We are going to miss you. All right. 

SENATOR HAINES: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay, Ms. Jennie Ayres Snyder, is 

that right? 

JENN IE AYRES - SNYDER: Yes. I am here wearing 

two hats actually. I am the Director of the Cape May County 

Cultural and Heritage Commission, and the Secretary/Treasurer 

of the New Jersey State Associatio•n of Counties. 

Before I go on with my remarks, I would 1 ike to add 

something to what Stuart has said. Being from the southern end 

of the State, corporate support is limited for another reason. 

There are not many corporations in the southern end of this 

State. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. 
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MS. SNYDER: So there needs to be a way of dealing 

with this issue as well, because the southern end is very 

hampered and, of course, I am from the very southern end, where 

we have no corporations in our county. 

In the past, the press has heralded the 

accomplishments of the major arts organizations in New Jersey, 

and more recently, the press has bemoaned the effects that the 

current funding crisis has had on major institutions. 

Omitted from all the press coverage, and from 

discussions about the current state of the arts, is the crisis 

faced by county and local arts groups. Local organizations 

apply to county cultural and heritage commissions, county arts 

councils, and other county-level designated ~gencies. The 

counties, in turn, on behalf of the local groups, apply to the 

State Arts Council for funding, through a process called the 

State/County Partnership Program. 

Thus to speak only of the major theaters and 

performing arts organizations in the State does a disservice t~ 

the partners of the State Arts Council at the county and local 

levels. 

This year alone, counties re-granted State funds to 

more than 460 local organizations in all 21 counties. The 

counties re-grant funds to more organizations than the State 

Arts Council funds directly. Of the 460 local groups, more 

than 18% are minority organizations and dozens more serve the 

ethnic communities. 

For disadvantaged areas, for minority communities, and 

ethnic neighborhoods, the grants through the counties are often 

the only arts experiences available, and for the most part, are 

offered at little or no charge to the general public. 

These 460 local grants generate a local level match 

· four or five times the dollar amount of the grants. They 

assure access to cultural programming for the senior citizens 

reluctant to travel beyond their neighborhoods and to 
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disadvantaged residents whose means do not permit attendance at 

major theaters. These local grants through the State/County 

Partnership reach deep into the community to assure that every 

resident benefits from State arts dollars and it is the only 

grant program of the State Arts Council of which this statement 

can be made. 

The county partners do much more than re-grant. We 

the provide technical workshops · and year-round 

arts community. The effects of this year's 

counties were devastating, both to local 

grant money, and to the level of technical 

to them. 

assistance to 

funding cuts to the 

groups to whom we 

services we provide 

In Cape May County, as a result of the reduced State 

Arts Council support: concerts have been canceled; the number 

of art classes reduced; and community. theater performances 

decreased. In addition, groups have experienced _much 

difficulty raising the additional dollars necessary to continue 

the production of their programs or the operation of their arts 

organizations. Technical assistance workshops .. and services are 

limited due to staffing shortages. 

I might add -- and this is not in my statement -- the 

Mid-Atlantic Center for the Arts is the largest arts agency 

within Cape May County. My department re-grants funds to 15 

srnal ler local arts organizations. Therefore, you can see how 

the expedient processing of awards and grant contracts is 

critical to the very survival of the small community groups. 

We look to this Cammi ttee to, at the very le2 st; 

maintain the level of funding and professional services to the 

counties, but, more importantly, to strengthen the State/County 

Partnership which farms the infrastructure for the statewide 

arts community. 

Thank you. (applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you very much. 

All right, you are Mr. Higginson, of Union County? 
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WILL I AM J. HIGGINSON: Yes. Thank you very 

much for your patience in sitting through what is only one day 

of many days, I am sure, of testimony on various matters. I 

would like to--

SENATOR LIPMAN: This one is a pleasure. 

MR. HIGGINSON: --say that the current difficulties 

between the Secretary of State's Office and the State Council 

on the Arts, if not speedily resolved, have the potential of to 

seriously hamper the productivity of a large segment of the 

economy those benefiting directly and indirectly from 

government support of the arts. 

I will skip ahead a little bit here, because some of 

this has been covered, but one group that has not been spoken 

of today, within my hearing, at least, is those who provide 

supplies, provisions, services directly to arts groups which 

are not, themselves, arts producers. So you have an ~ddition 

to the tourism industry. You have those who directly supply 

the arts industry. 

This entire group the arts groups, the travel 

industry, thos~ who supply the arts groups, and so on was 

already seriously wounded last year when the deep cut to the 

Council's grants funds had the effect of delaying decisions on 

Fiscal Year 1991 grants. The problems occasioned by last 

year's cut were not only financial. For some groups, 

particularly those served through the State/County Partnership 

Program, which we represent, the delay itself was the serious 

problem. 

Skipping the next paragraph: Normally the Council 

makes its announcement toward the end of July each year. 

Immediately following that announcement, the county agencies 

have to determine the actual amounts of the re-grants to be 

awarded locally, and request revised budgets from the 

organizations, which in almost every case will receive less 

than_ they originally applied for. Last year's announcement 
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came two months later than 

seasort had already started. 

usual, in September, after the 

Groups funded directly by the 

Council were already at the beginning of their seasons before 

they knew how much they would have from the Council. Those are 

the groups the Council funded directly. The local groups 

funded through the State/County Partnership were even worse 

off, having to wait for the county agencies to once again 

review their requests and determine dollar amounts. 

In Union County, the cut was so substantial that some 

groups which we had anticipated funding were not funded. The 

decision was so late that they did not know they would receive 

no funding until about the beginning of October, well into 

their activity for the year. Other counties had similar 

problems. 

The Arts Council staff did a Herculean job, getting 

contracts out within two weeks of the announcement. Even so, 

the delay in the announcement meant that all the work needed at 

the county level was delayed six to eight weeks beyond the 

normal schedule. Consequently, among 10 counties polled by 

phone yesterday, only six were able to get checks out to 

re-grantees before the end of December. Almost half the 

counties contacted were not able to send the initial payments 

to their re-grantees until after the first of the year. 

So, in addition to not knowing how much funding they 

would receive, if any, until almost two months later than 

usual, the local arts groups_ received their initial payments a 

good deal later than usual. It is as if parents were told in 

August that they would not know how much money they would have 

for the school year until after school started, and then didn't 

receive a substantial part of it until the New Year. The kids 

go to school in September, but maybe they go to school 

barefoot. And what about next·year? 

There were drastic staff cuts at the State Council on 

the Arts last year, and recently more Council staff were cut, 
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then reinstated. The arts community is understandably 

nervous. Frankly, I did not know until this morning's 

testimony, for example, that the personnel who were transferred 

out of the State Council on the Arts were left within the State 

Council's budget. Rather an appalling condition! 

At the county level, we have urged arts groups to plan 

ahead. Generally we require our applicants to tell us in 

January or February what they will do the following September 

through June. But how can they plan ahead in this environment? 

At the counties, we do not have enough information to 

comment on the current dispute between the Secretary of State 

and the Council on the Arts. But we do know that the grants 

process for the coming year has already been impaired by that 

dispute, and that the arts community that we serve will be 

badly hurt if we al low this problem to continue, resulting in 

another year of delays in the grants process. The counties 

make access to the arts happen by funding and giving technical 

assistance to the "little guys" who provide access to the arts 

for many of our less-well-off citizens, our handicapped, 

minorities, and senior citizens. If you truly believe in all 

of our citizens having access to.the arts, you must do what you 

can to resolve this crisis now, before further damage is done 

to the grants process of the New Jersey State Council on the 

Arts. 

Thank you. {applause) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: What I hear all of you saying is, you 

understand that there were budget cuts there had to be 

budget cuts. You didn't expect some of them to be so severe, 

but they 

beneficial, 

delivery of 

were. But, in any 

even with the short 

the funds. 

MR. HIGGINSON: Exactly. 

case, 

money, 

it would have been 

if you had had proper 

SENATOR LIPMAN: That is what I hear all of you saying. 

MR. HIGGINSON: Exactly. 
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MR. ALLEN: And also, the feeling of support behind, 

and a recognition of the importance of the arts and cultural 

community. I think that support is also a catalyst that would 

be needed to pry loose some corporate funding, that heretofore 

may not have been available. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

important. 

Yes, the corporate funding is very 

MR. HIGGINSON: Part of what happens here is that if 

the integrity of the State process is diminished in any way, it 

reflects poorly on all government entities and other arts 

entities -- nongovenmental entities -- as well. So you not 

only create a climate in which there is less money to say, 

"Wel 1, we already have this piece in place," which is very 

attractive to many funders, but you also have a fishy 

situation. It begins to smell. People say, "I will put my 

money into a hospital, or into some other thing." These are 

all important things. But I think people should be given the 

opportunity to see the arts as important and as aboveboard as 

any other part of our philanthropic situation in society. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I think the potential has always been 

there. It has just, of late, been diminished. 

MR. HIGGINSON: You're right. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: What we are hoping will proceed from 

this hearing is that the Arts Council will assert its own 

independence once more. We will see where we are, with the 

cooperation of the executive and the legislative. I am sure we 

all want to see that the arts in our State stay, and are not 

destroyed. Hopefully, we will get things in place once more. 

1033. 

Thank you so much for coming. 

MR. HIGGINSON: Thank you very much. 

MR. ALLEN: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: . We wi 11 now have the CWA Loe a 1 No . 

Are they still here? (affirmative response from 
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audience) Ms. Darlene Hendrix, and who else? Who else is with 

her? Oh my goodness! You, too, have some pals, right? 

D A R L E N E J O H N S O N H E N D R I X: Oh, there are 

not that many. It won't take that long. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: It's all· right. That's what we are 

here for. You're Ms. Hendrix? 

MS. HENDRIX: Yes, I am the President of CWA Local No. 

1033. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Are you going to introduce your 

colleagues at the table? 

MS . HENDRIX: Yes, I am. This is John Kelly, 

Executive Vice President of CWA Local No. 1033. This is 

Dolores Tr:uchon, Chief Shop Steward for the Department of 

.State, CWA Local No. 1033. And this is Jon Wineland, who is 

also on staff. He is the Secretary of CWA Local No. 1033. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay. 

MS. HENDRIX: 

statement. They are all 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

MS . HENDRIX: 

members of the Committee. 

I am just going to make a brief 

going to testify. 

All right. 

Good afternoon, Senator Lipman and 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Excuse me for just a minute. (brief 

comment here to hearing reporter) Are you okay? Do you have 

all the names? (affirmative response) All right, let's go. 

MS. HENDRIX: I am Darlene Johnson Hendrix, President 

of CWA Local No. 1033. My local is Trenton based, and includes 

6500 State workers in the Treasury Department, Education 

Department, Law and Public Safety, and six other departments. 

One of the other departments is the Department of State. 

My union is here today because I am deeply disturbed 

by the developments in the Department of State. My union, more 

than any other, understands the proliferation of nonunion, 

non-Civil Service jobs in State government. Project 

specialists have been illegally placed in hundreds of positions 

which should have been filled through Civil Service procedures. 
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I am disturbed because the Secretary of State 

attempted to address her budget crisis by pursuing a measure 

recommended by my union: Dismissing nonunion, noncareer 

employees whose job functions can best be assumed by other 

Department career workers. 

On the other hand, my union has suffered the layoff of 

20 professional line positions at the Department of Education. 

In that layoff, no criteria was used. In one instance, a name 

was drawn out of a hat. We had one unclassified member who had 

been with the Department of Education for 31 years. On 

February 28, 19~1, he received a 30-day layoff notice. I have 

just recently been informed, this afternoon, that Rich Keevey 

has-sent a letter to all department heads advising them that by 

April 12 they are to submit a list that would include 

additional layoffs. It is my understanding that these layoffs 

will not be unclassified. 

from the early retirement 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

There is not s_upposed to be anyone 

package, which is out, as you know-­

Right. 

MS. HENDRIX: ~-or through attrition. So this is more 

of our unclassified people -- I mean classified workers who are 

probably going to be laid off. 

With all of that -going on, here we are sitting today 

with your Committee considering a need to place employment at 

the Arts Council into the hands of patronage. You are 

considering the need to duplicate agency functions at a time 

when all parties are calling for the streamlining of State 

government. Altering the current structure of the Department 

of State will not serve the taxpaying citizens of New Jersey, 

but organized special interests. 

My union believes that the needs of the arts groups 

throughout the State, and those assembled here today, will be 

best served by a dedicated, efficient, career service staff at 

the Arts Council. I believe this is Secretary Haberle's 

objective. I urge you not to meddle in these State employment 

matters. 

108 



I urge you also to listen to the testimony of Dolores 

Truchon. She has been employed by the Arts Council since 

1981. She will provide you, in her testimony, with 

observations from an insider and a career employee. John Kelly 

wi 11 provide testimony on the constitutional, statutory, and 

regulatory aspects of the classified career service. Jon 

Wineland will provide testimony with respect to the appointing 

authority and project specialists. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Just a second. I want to 

ask you a question: Are you saying that your union requested 

that the Secretary lay off unclassified persons, if she had to 

lay off anyone? 

MS. HENDRIX: Yes. That was the recommendation from 

the Governor himself. He issued a press release on January 23, 

I believe. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. 

MS. HENDRIX:· Two people that Secretary Haberle let go 

were project specialists. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Were project specialists? 

MS . HENDRIX: 

people been returned? 

Were project specialists. Have these 

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: I cannot answer 

that. I believe they have. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: They have been returned, al 1 right. 

So your union did make the request that she· lay off these 

nonunion persons? 

MS. HENDRIX: We didn't identify those two 

individuals. What we said was that with the budget cuts that 

each department had been.· asked to make, that what they do is 

look at the project specialists before laying off. career 

workers. Project specialists, as you know, are supposed to be 

hired for a short duration -- one year. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: For a project? 

MS. HENDRIX: Right, for one specific project. 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: I understand that. Okay. You ask 

that this Committee not meddle in State employee situations. I 

have to tell you, this Committee is over all State employees. 

So, be gentle with us, please. 

MS. HENDRIX: Okay. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Who is going to speak next? 

MS. HENDRIX: Dolores. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

DOLORES TRUCHON: Good afternoon. My name is Dee 

Truchon.' I have been employed at the Council on the Arts since 

1981. I also hold the elected position of Chief Shop Steward 

for the Department of State. 

I am here today to give the Cammi ttee an insider ' s 

view, if you will, from a union career service perspective of 

what has occurred over the past decade at the Arts Council 

relative to employment practices. 

Before I go on with my testimony, I would 1 ike to say 

that having worked with the Arts Council, I understand the 

frustration of the arts groups. I h8:ve watched the programs 

being cut. I have watched all of that going on. It has been a 

terrible thing to witness, having worked at that agency for 10 

years. However, I am not here today in support of the Arts 

Council becoming an independent authority. 

When I began working at the Council in 1981, the 

agency was part of the Department of Education. At that time, 

all Council employees held classified, career service 

positions. During my first year of employment, a bill was 

introduced, by Senator Stockman I believe, to move the Arts 

Council from the Department of Education to the Department of 

State. I brought this legislation to the attention of my 

union, because the language in the bill would have moved 

everyone employed at the agency from classified, career service 

positions into unclassified positions that would "serve at the 

pleasure ct>f the Executive Director." 
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Subsequent to CWA's intervention, that language was 

removed from the bill and it passed in 1983. I bring this to 

the Committee's attention at this time because I believe it 

lays the foundation for what has taken place at the agency 

since its move to the Department of State. 

From 1983 on, under the direction of the former 

Assistant Secretary of State, Alvin Felzenberg, every 

classified, career service, professional position vacated, or 

new position created, was, without exception, filled by a 

project specialist or, as in one instance, a confidential 

appointment. It is necessary to point out that these project 

specialists performed tasks identical to those previously 

perf armed by career service employees, year in and . .Year out. 

The result, in my opinion, was a deliberate, systematic 

dismantling of career service, professional positions at the 

Council on the Arts to the detriment of the constituents it was 

created to serve, as well as to the citizenry of New Jersey. A 

list of the names of these project specialists is includeC for 

the record. 

I am deeply concerned about the administration's and 

the Legislature's reaction to recent 

initiated by the Secretary of State. 

personnel actions 

Historically, the 

Department which houses the Arts Council has been considered 

the appointing authority for the agency. The Department of 

State, in an effort to meet its mandated 8% budget cut, fired a 

confidential secretary and two project specialists. This was 

done to avoid laying off career service employees in the 

Department. The Secretary's decision to terminate these 

positions is in line with the administration's commitment that 

these types of positions would be eliminated before career 

service workers were laid off. 

Confidential appointments and project specialist 

appointments are basically political appointments. People who 

accept these positions do so with the understanding that 
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lifetime job security is not a privilege they enjoy. It is my 

firm belief that if these positions were truly vital to the 

success of the Council's mission, efforts would have been made 

a long time ago to make them permanent. The fact of the matter 

is that they were not. Arts Council management and/or Council 

Board members initiated no such action, even though these 

individuals have been employed at the Council for an extended 

period of time. 

Likewise, appointments to State commissions and 

councils are made by the Governor and are purely political 

appointments. To place the authority to hire and/or fire 

personnel in any State agency in the hands of a politically 

appointed board would be to create an ag~ncy subject to 

upheaval every time a new administration comes into power. 

In the interest of fairness to employees of the 

Council, the constituents it represents, and the citizenry of 

New Jersey, I urge the honorable members of the Cornmi ttee to 

recognize that the responsibility of acting as appointing 

authority for the Council on the Arts should remain with the 

Secretary of State. Additionally, as a career service employee 

and a union member, I feel strongly that the Secretary of State 

should be supported in her efforts to eliminate these 

positions, especially in light of the State's current fiscal 

crisis. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Let me just ask you one question: 

You would suggest, that is from the frame of reference you are 

using, that the employees of the Council on the Arts, if not 

Civil Service members· wh~n they are elected, be given Civil 

Service examinations and become career service employees, or 

not get the job until they are--

MS. TRUCHON: I am not saying they should not get the 

job until they are-- What I am saying is that steps need to be 

taken to ensure that this kind of thing does not happen to the 
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agency again. If the people who were hired as classified 

people left -- as career service employees left -- and were 

hired from lists of program coordinators Council on the Arts -­

that is the series -- or other lists that would be appropriate, 

when it came time to cut the budget and it came time for the 

layoffs to happen, those people, all of them so far who have 

been let go, would have had the privilege -- if you want to 

call it a privilege -- of getting 45 days' notice, just like 

every other career service employee gets. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I see. I am beginning to understand. 

MR. CARROLL (Senate Minority Staff): Senator Lipman? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes? 

MR. CARROLL: May I ask a question, through you? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, you may, Jim. 
MR. CARROLL: What is your position with respect to 

the five people who were transferred out of Council employment 

to, apparently, other departments, who are still being paid out 

of the Council's budget? 

MS. TRUCHON: As the Chief Steward for the Department, 

I have had discussions-- It is my understanding that those 

people who were transferred-- I am one of those people, but I 

have been temporarily reassigned because someone is on medical 

leave; I was not permanently transferred. The ones who are 

sti 11 carried on the Arts Council payroll, it is my 

understanding, are doing Arts Counci 1 work. Now, I have not 

seen the paperwork, but I know there are people in Fiscal whr 

handle just the Arts Council paperwork processing for 

payments. I know in the Grants Unit there are people who just 

take care of processing that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You say that people who have been 

transferred are still doing the Arts Council's work? 

MS. TRUCHON: Yes. I think it is important for the 

Committee to recognize also that the agency gets in-kind 

services, if you will, from the Department. The processing of 
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the personnel paperwork, and al 1 the other functions that are 

done by the Department, are done by people who are not on the 

Arts Council payroll. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I am just a little confused, because 

if you transfer an employee to another job, and he or she does 

that job well-- Is part of the job to do the work of the 

Council, or to do the work of the position you have been 

transferred into? That is what is confusing. 

MS. TRUCHON: Okay. When the determination was made 

that the fiscal situation in the State was what it was, and the 

Governor talked a lot about streamlining State government -­

centralizing functions, and things of that nature -- people 

were transferred to the Fiscal Division of the Department to 

process.fiscal paperwork. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay. 

MS. TRUCHON: The Grants Unit. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

MS. TRUCHON: There was one person who was transferred 

to the Elections Division. I'm sure that person is not doing 

Arts Council work. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Now, that is what I wanted to find 

out. 

MS. TRUCHON: I don't know that she is still carried 

on the payroll either. Okay? I cannot testify to that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You can't say that, okay. 

MS. TRUCHON: I am on temporary assignment. The other 

person who was transferred was transferred to the Computer 

Section, which is the type of work he did at the Arts Council. 

It is my understanding that he is available to the Arts Council 

to continue to do that sort of work for them. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: But not solely working for the Arts 

Council? 

MS. TRUCHON: Not solely. 

SENATOR· LIPMAN: Not solely?• 
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MS. TRUCHON: Right. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I see. I am trying to make a picture 

here .. Are you finished? (affirmative nod) Okay. 

J O H N K E L L Y: Prior to my giving my testimony, we 

earlier presented two packets of information to the Committee. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Would you please state your name? 

MR. KELLY: My name is John Kelly. I am the Executive 

Vice President of this local union, CWA No. 1033. We thank the 

Committee for allowing us to testify. 

I just want to make sure that we refer to the document 

packages that I provided to the Committee. The first document 

package I will speak about is this document package. (holds up 

package) The next document package is this. (holds up second 

package) I will be more than happy to further delineate later 

in my testimony. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

MR. KELLY: Good afternoon, Senator Lipman and members 

of the Committee. My name is John Kelly, and I am the 

Executive Vice President of CWA Local No. 1033. My testimony 

will focus upon the constitutional, statutory, and regulatory 

underpinnings of the classified career service, as well as the 

specific impact of dismantling that process at the State 

Council on the Arts. 

Section 2 of Article 7 of the State Constitution in 

pertinent part, calls for: "Appointments and promotions in the 

Civil Service of the State shall be made according to merit and 

fitness to be ascertained, ~s far as is practicable, by 

examination, which as far as is practicable, shall be 

competitive, with additional consideration of any mandated 

veterans' preference." That is also included in the same 

subsection of the State Constitution, which is the first 

document on the top of that package. 

Title llA of the Revised Statutes created the 

Department of Personnel to perf arm the constitutional mandate 
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cited. N.J.S.A. llA:2-ll(F) empowers the DOP Commissioner --

Department of Personnel Commissioner to: "Establish the 

selection process." In other words, the competitive testing 

system for hiring and promotion of State workers. 

Like any other agency, regulations may be promulgated 

by the DOP. Specific enabling regulations springing from Title 

llA are contained in section 4a of the Administrative Code. 

The unclassified service, now covering 50% of Arts Council 

workers, is to be used as an alternative to classified service 

only. if: "Mandated by statute or if it is impracticable to 

test for positions due to the unique skills or education 

involved." This definition is contained in subchapter 3 of 

Chapter 4a of the Administrative Code. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. This Committee put that Act 

out, sir. 

MR. KELLY: And we testified at length on that Act, 

Ma'am. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, I know. 
MR. KELLY: Neither statutory mandates 

unclassified service, nor impracticability to test 

for 

are 

conditions present at the Arts Council. The statute does not 

mandate the unclassified service, and, as Ms. Truchon just 

stated, Civil Service was able to test for professional 

positions, as evidenced by the job specifications for the 

classified titles you have in your first packet. 

However, a relatively new wrinkle in the unclassified 

service was created by the Civil Service Department in 1973 and 

continued and expanded under the Department of Personnel. That 

wrinkle is the title of project specialist. Originally, there_ 

was a justifiable usage of this title, but as you will see, the 

justification is not applicable to the Arts Council. 

This title was created by the enclosed Salary 

Adjustment Memorandum -- SAM 45-73 -~ to hire individuals for: 

''finite State projects· of short duration·; ·•and that extensions, 
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of such employment shall ne~d Civil Service approval" -- now 

DOP approval -- "and that specialized funding is provided for 

the position." 

This was modified later in 1973 by SAM 45-73 amendment 

to include any source of funding. This opened the floodgates 

of project specialist employment. The funding restrictions 

were restored by DOP Commissioner Andrew Weber in 1990. That 

two-page memorandum is also included in your packet. 

Another salient feature of project specialist 

employment is the one~year limitation as embodied in the 

referenced SAMs, to be extended by Civil Service or DOP for 

sufficient cause. 

The Arts Council was created in 1966 and ·has been 

funding the arts ever since. Obviously, this is no "special 

project," but an ongoing function of State government which has 

been continuously funded by the Legislature ever since. 

Why then, in the 1980s, was every vacancy in the 

professional ranks at the Council on the Arts filled with 

project specialists? Surely not to insulate those individuals 

who processed grants of public moneys from political or other 

sorts of coercion. Why also, would certain members of the arts 

community be concerned with specific individuals on the State 

payro 11? In an era of dwindling resources, one would expect 

community concern to revolve around preservation of funds for 

arts endeavors deemed worthy, as opposed to protecting 

individuals outside the career service. 

And that is why a recent decision made by the 

Governor's Office is especially troubling. Terry Marshall was 

in the title of project specialist at the Council. As can be 

seen in the memorandum you are reading now -- this memorandum 

(holding up memorandurn)--

SENATOR LIPMAN: This one? 

MR. KELLY: Yes, the top one. As can be seen by that 

memorandum, the Department of Personnel rejected the 
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continuation of her project specialist appointment because it 

didn't meet the guidelines in · former DOP Commissioner, now 

Chief of Staff, Andrew Weber's July 1990 memorandum. 

As can be seen from the handwritten comments from a 

DOP staffer, if the position was to be continued, it would be 

more appropriate to use the open competitive list for the 

contract administrator series in the classified service. 

Included in the self same packet I just gave you, you 

will find the above-referenced certification list. There is 

one disabled veteran and nine additional veterans at the top of 

this list. The State Constitution calls for preference for 

veterans to be given, if le~islation to that effect was 

enacted. We have veterans' preference strong veterans' 

preference in thi$ State. What do we say to thee people who 

expect preference in government employment? 

Let me conclude by saying that Secretary of State 

Haberle should be lauded for releasing political appointees to 

save budget moneys for career service workers and to carry out 

the functions her agency oversees. This Committee has an 

opportunity to stand for the protection of the career service 

and influence-free public servants whose grant determinations 

can never be called into question. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Being Chairman of the State 

Government Committee makes me understand about your opinions as 

a union. I know it .has been a goal of the CWA to limit the 

unclassified workers, that is .those working without Civil 

Service status -- temporary employees, let's just call them 

that, becau.se I don't know all the correct terminology about 

it. I understand that very well. 

However, would it be advisable for your union in your 

discussions with the Department of State to suggest -- with the 

Council on the Arts, if you talk to them at all -- that their 

employees .perhaps should think about taking Civil S'ervice 

exams? That is what you are saying so far. 
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further: 

MR. KELLY: Exactly, ma'am. But let me go one step 

The problem here is that ultimately these job 

classifications existed and oftentimes lists were promulgated 

for these classifications. However, the Arts Council eschewed 

the opportunity to use these lists to be able to employ 

professionals. The merit and fitness doctrine in the State 

Constitution indicates that there is one agency the 

Department of Personnel, at present -- which has the expertise 

to develop testing methodologies -- psychometrics -- to be able 

to determine the types of employees best suited for particular 

jobs. It was quite evident, historically, that they were able 

to develop job specifications and titles for individuals 

professionally capable of processing arts grants. 

All we are saying here is, tpose individuals should be 

individuals within the career classified service. We feel that 

is in the best interest of the arts community, and the best 

interest of good, effective government in the State of New 

Jersey. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. I understand, and I am 

sure that the other Senators on this Committee -- if they were 

here would understand what you are saying, too. Yes, Jim? 

MR. CARROLL: I am not so sure. Maybe I can't speak 

for the other Senators, because I am not a Senator, but I am 

having a little problem. Did you listen to the earlier 

testimony today? 

MR. KELLY: I have been he-re all day, sir. 

MR. CARROLL: The preponderance of that testimony was 

the desire to insulate the Arts Counci 1 from political 

influence. You didn't get that message? 

MR. KELLY: Well, I think, unfortunately, what 

happened was, the people who were making those statements were 

not clear and cognizant of what the classified career service 

means, sir. The classified career service indicates that 

individuals. are __ hired for ongoing State needs, such as 
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processing arts grants; that those individuals should be hired 

by an open, fair, and free competitive forum; that those 

individuals, when they are hired, will be able to conduct their 

business in a professional manner, as it should be conducted; 

and that the agency that can work best to develop those testing 

methodologies is the Department of Personnel, which often 

consults with agencies to make sure that its testing 

methodologies meet the need~ of the agencies that are going on . 

. What happened was, after the classified service was 

dismantled during former Secretary of State Jane Burgio's 

tenure, individuals were hired outside of that system and, 

unfortunately, had they not been hired outside that system, 

they would likely have been able to survive the first round of 

budget cuts and, therefore, ad~quate staffing would have been 

maintained at the Arts Council. 

MR. CARROLL: Well, that leaves my second question: 

What makes you so sure that the people who are going to replace 

-- the people who will ultimately be under this administration, 

are going to be classified Civil Service? 

MR. KELLY: Well, this is an ongoing aim of the CWA. 

This is what we are going to be trying to ensure. The illegal 

and continuous appointment of project specialists is being 

brought through the appeals process of the Department of 

Personnel, and should it need to go to another forum, it shall 

be brought there. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. 

MR. KELLY: We have one more speaker. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, I know. 

JON WINELAND: I just want to briefly testify on the 

issue of an appointing authority. There seems to be a little 

confusion over that today. I coordinate a lot of the 

problem-solving work of our local, and there is no doubt in my 

mind that from the labor perspective, or the employee personnel 

perspective, the appointing authority is currently the 
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Department of State. Every grievance, every Civil Service 

appeal, every disciplinary action, and negotiations concerning 

Arts Council employee matters, are all done directly with the 

Department of State. Once in a while we will file a grievance 

at its first step with the Council, but most--

SENATOR LIPMAN: Why don't you do that always, if they 

are independent? 

MR. WINELAND: In most recent 

assigned an employee relations coordinator 

who is to be informally worked with. 

years, they have 

for the Department, 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh, I see, that is the reason. 

MR. WINELAND: Plus, many of these things were Civil 

Service appeals, which went directly to Civil Service, and the 

Department obviously had to respond to those, not the Ar.ts 

Council. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Did you listen to the testimony of 

the former Secretary of State? 

MR. WINELAND: Yes. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: She said this morning that she had no 

connection; that is, she did not consider herself in charge of 

the Council's employees. 

MR. CARROLL: She signed the paperwork. Did the 

paperwork, that's all. 

MR. WINELAND: She obviously--

SENATOR LIPMAN: She processed them for-- I am just 

trying to get to the bottom of this. She processed them for 

salary recommendations and so forth, and payment, but she had 

no participation whatsoever in grievance hearings and all 

that. I took for granted, because of her testimony, that the 

Council heard its own complaints, and does not--. You're 

telling me that they go to the Secretary of State? 

MR. WINELAND: Most of the business in there goes 

directly to the Division of Administration. They have had a 

variety of-·people · under the Director of Administration as_signed 
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as hearing officers, assigned as employee relations officers. 

Grievances always get filed at the first step naturally, but 

the bigger matters that have come out of the Arts Council have 

all been handled directly with the Division of Administration, 

Department of State. They took responsibility for them. They 

were obviously the employees of the former Secretary. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I see. This issue is getting 

cloudier. 

MR. KELLY: Ma'am, one additional thing: In the 

packet I handed out, there is a Form CS-44 for 

position, that position being that of Kathi Levin. 

is a project specialist. 

a particular 

Kathi Levin 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You know, I wish you wouldn't use 

names. 

MR. KELLY: This farm is signed by Arthur Hoenig. 

Arthur Hoenig was a direct , designee and employee of fqrmer 

Secretary of State Jane Burgio. 

that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Now, you're saying that to say what? 

MR. KELLY: What I'm saying--

SENATOR LIPMAN: You' re not going to get away with 

MR. KELLY: Okay. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Clarify your last statement. 

MR. KELLY: What I am saying is, this form is the form 

designed in order to describe the job duties of a requested 

position. It is not merely a payroll form. It is a form for 

when you want to hire, when you want to, actually promote-­

Certain promotions work like this. But when you want to hire 

an unclassified project specialist person, you describe the 

duties for that person on a CS-44. It is called a DPF-44 now 

because it is the Department of Personnel. On this form, a 

representative of the appointing authority, the hiring 

authority, the authority that is requesting this job to be 

. done, and who also approves of the duties ·concomitant with ·this' 
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job, has to sign 

indicates that Mr. 

off on this. This particular document 

Arthur Hoenig signed off on it, and Mr. 

Arthur Hoenig -- and I know this personally, because I dealt 

with both these individuals -- worked directly for former 

Secretary of State Jane Burgio. That happens to be the way it 

was. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I see. 

MR. CARROLL: I don't think he understood what the 

Secretary of State Was saying this morning. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, she said she signed off on all 

employees for the purpose of getting thein paid. She said she. 

had no direct connection, influence, with how the Council on 

the Arts hired its employees, for what they needed. There was 

another point brought out that her deputy looked carefully at 

every situation, however, and sort of used his influence -­

that was the other suggestion made on whatever events were 

necessary, cir were happening at the time. 

MR. KELLY: Respectfully, Senator Lipman, Secretary of 

State -- or, rather, farmer Secretary of State Jane Burgio 

rather narrowly construed the exact authority of what· an 

appointing authority was. There was much left unsaid in her 

short testimony. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, all right. Do you want to say 

something? 

MS. TRUCHON: Yes, I do. As the steward at the Arts 

Council, as the situation with the project specialists seemed 

to grow there and there were more of them than career service 

employees, on several occasions I spoke with former Director 

Jeffrey Kesper about the project specialists situation at the 

Arts Council. During one of our last conversations about this 

I believe it was last January, right after the new 

administration came in-- I went to him and I said, "Jeff, we 

are going to- do something about , the project specialists,­

li>ecause there is the deficit, you know." .. His response ·to me 
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was that he had always thought these positions should be career 

service positions, and that the reason they were project 

specialists was at the direction of the former Secretary of 

State, Alvin Felzenberg; that he refused to fill those 

positions unless they were filled by project specialists. Now, 

I doubt that Jeff was not being honest about that. (brief 

consultation among witnesses at this point) 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Well, having made the 

picture cloudier, instead of clearer--

MR. WINELAND: This is why we wanted to make sure the 

testimony got in before the end of the day. We talked to 

Senator Stockman earlier. There are a lot of-- Whatever your 

decisions or deliberations in terms of altering the structure 

of the State Department vis-a-vis the Counci 1 on the Arts, 

these things must be taken into account -- okay? -- because we 

do represent those unions. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, we understand that. Remember, 

you always appear before our Committee. I know what your usual 

requests are. 

MR. WINELAND: May I just conclude? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Go ahead. I'm sorry. 

MR. WINELAND: I want to put a little perspective to 

where this union has to come from. The issue is not art 

funding or proper staffing at the Council. We certainly would 

advocate greater funding for the arts. We were upset when we 

saw the 47% cut last year. Adequate staffing is one of our 

fights in every agency. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I know. 

MR. WINELAND: We had 500 people at Human Services 

headquarters just today at noon. Okay? But we also have to 

take stands in terms of, what happens to union positions? At 

this agency, they almost wiped out the union positions. Now, 

we have 350 career service union members at the Department of 

State. They know the CWA' s position statewide is, "Project 
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specialists first." They saw that that occurred. That was 

announced -- okay? -- in their Department. Then they saw them 

hired back. So when the shop stewards throughout the 

Department of State had their group meeting, this was a hot 

topic. You can imagine how they looked at it. 

We don't know how many of those 350 will lose their 

jobs this spring. We know they are in jeopardy. The Governor 

says 3500. If we def end our contract, it is going to be 

10,000. The numbers coming out -- that we are going to get 

this evening -- we are being told are staggering. And this is 

just the first round in April still. These 350 people who are 

career, who are Civil Service, see that three non-Civil Service 

people who were let go at the request of the union on a 

statewide basis, were returned. You can imagine where that 

puts those people, and the side this union has to take in this 

matter. 

The whole situation -- this entanglement with this 

issue could have been avoided. obviously, by maintaining the 

career service people at the Arts Council, all except, of 

course, for the management. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You're not saying there are no career 

employees employed by the Arts Council, are you? 

MR. WINELAND: No. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You're not saying that at all. 

You' re saying there is a preponderance of unclassified 

employees at the Arts Council. 

MS. TRUCHON: Not right at this moment, because they 

have been let go over the course of time. 
SENATOR LIPMAN: No, because they have been cut in 

half, right? 

MS. TRUCHON: All during the 1980s, every time a 

professional career service position was vacated, it was filled 

by a project specialist, and at one point there were 16 of 

them, and there were, like, nine career service people. 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: There are supposed to be 10. I 

understand they thought they had 26. 

MR. WINELAND: One final note: Obviously, in response 

to restoring all those project specialist positions, and the 

upset of our membership throughout the Department of State, we 

were required to take action. So we have filed appeals, and we 

will be in an appeal process through the Department of 

Personnel and the Merit System Board to have these appointments 

undone, as being illegal. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, your union is working--

MR. WINELAND: 

pointing out. 

That is just an extra complication I am 

SENATOR LIPMAN: That is part of your creed, your 

duty, to look to that. 

All right, well thank you very much for coming today. 

I have heard from some other persons in the CWA this particular 

point of view, but you pursue it in every agency, and the 

Council on the Arts is no different. 

MS. TRUCHON: Is no different. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I understand that. 

MR. WINELAND: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you very much. for coming. 

Now we will have Mr. Robert Koenig, Director, and Mr. 

James Mills, President of the Board, Montclair Art Museum. I 

didn't know you were here. I thought you were sending your 

testimony. 

J A M E S T. M I L L S: No. We have been enjoying almost 

all of the long day, and learning a great deal. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh, very good. All right. 

MR. MILLS: Madam Chairman, ladies and gentlemen: I 

am Jim Mills, President of the Board of Trustees of the 

Montclair Art Museum. This is Bob Koenig, who really knows 

what goes on at the Museum. We are going to be very brief, but 

we came to Trenton to express our deep concern for the future 
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of the Arts Council. Our concern, I think, has been relieved 

somewhat, although I must say some people are already feeling 

the effects of the controversy much more severely than we have 

as yet. 

I think you have heard every good argument that could 

be stated why the arts are so important to this State, and why 

we need an independent professional body to distribute the 

State's money. So we do not want· to repeat any of that. Bob 

wants to talk a minute to your question about how the grants 

are processed, have worked, and will work. 

I just want to make this final point: I think I hear 

a loud consensus that this body -- the State Arts Council -­

·should be independent and should be professional. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. 

MR. MILLS: I have heard that over and over today, anc 

I believe that is the direction we are headed. But there L 

another factor, which is that it needs support. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. 

MR. MILLS: I don't mean more money necessarily, 

although I think that is very important, but it needs a friend 

in the executive branch. We have heard from the Governor in 

letters, and I am sure others have, about how deeply he 

supports the arts in the State of New Jersey. I hope that 

conviction on his part is expressed through his offices to the 

Counci 1, because al though they need independence and respect, 

they also need support. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, we agree. We can hope that 

these ongoing discussions between the administration and the 

Arts Council and the Secretary of State will continue. The 

Legislature, of course, is the other side of the picture. But 

we do believe that it is because of our interest in this whole 

question that these discussions were initiated. I have to give 

the Legislature a little credit. 
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We hope that the continuation is going to be very 

the Governor's fruitful between the administration 

administration -- and the Council on the Arts and the Secretary 

of State. Certainly I think the Legislature supports the 

arts. Our function is, like, the checks and balances-- That 

is what we are being today -- a check. 

Thank you very much. 

MR. MILLS: Thank you. Bob? 

ROBERT J. KOENIG: Senator Lipman, thank you. I 

want just to brush in my experience with grants on both sides 

of the fence -- both applying for them and being on panels. I 

have done that in other states in Kentucky. I am the 

Governor for New Jersey of the Mid-Atlantic Association of 

Museums, · so I know how the process works in other states. 

I have been working with the Council for 10 years. 

Ten years ago, at the end of the '70s -- and this was referred 

to this morning -- the situation was not as good. But in the 

last few administrations of Council Presidents and certainly 

Jeff Kesper's professional direction, 

impeccable. And let me just take one 

the process was 

grant category and 

explain how it worked. 

I was a panelist in the crafts category, both for the 

fellowships and for the organizations. 

applications and you are expected 

comments and fill out a rating form. 

You get a packet of the 

to study them and make 

Then you take that wi.th 

you when the organizations and the artists are presented. In 

the organizations-- Every aspect of the organization's 

operation is covered. The budget particularly we study very 

carefully, and their goals, their mission, the implementation 

of that. And there is discussion back and forth. Things are 

really looked at very carefully. If there is a serious 

problem, then the organization may not get the grant, or they 

can be invited to consult and do something about the situation 

that is problematic. After that has been rectified, then they 

can get the grant. 
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So, it is a very painstaking process, and the process 

of applying is very painstaking. I don't want to cry on my 

sleeve. We are not crying, because we are grateful for all the 

support we have had, and we certainly understand the necessity 

for cuts in this situation. But to put together a major impact 

arts focus grant for an organization like ours with a budget of 

over a million-and-a-half is many months of work. We do it 

gladly, because we have great trust in the fairness of the 

Council, of its Board and of its staff. I know them very 

well. I knew Jeff quite well professionally and as a 

colleague, and after he left the Council my wife and I took him 

and his wife to dinner, and I think we are going to be good 

friends. We couJ,d not do that while he was a granter and I was 

a grantee. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Very good. 

MR. KOENIG: If you have any further questions about 

it-- I have seen the process out-of-state, too, in Kentucky. 

It was not as good. It was okay, but it wasn't as good. It 

was ragged. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: So you think the grant process in New 

Jersey is quite good. 

MR. KOENIG: It's quite good. It is very good, and I 

think we must protect it. The out-of-state paid peer review 

panel is particularly important, because they do a rating, and 

it would be very difficult for an interested party to get a big 

grant for an organization that got a low rating, or a lower 

grant for an organization that got a high rating. I think it 

is a very important protection. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, I understand that our peer 

review panel was reinstated. It was lying around for a while, 

but it is going to be done the same way this year, except for 

one thing: The grants again may be delayed, as I understand it 

now, but we are hoping that they will be earlier than last 

year .. Anyway, we are going· to keep our fingers on·the pulse. 
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MR. KOENIG: Good. 

MR. MILLS: We very much appreciate this Committee's 

involvement. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Thank you very much for 

coming. 

Is Mr. Robinson here? (no response) Mr. Edelman? 

(affirmative response from audience) Mr. Edelman is the 

Managing Director of the George Street Playhouse. 

D A V I D E D E L M A N: Thank you, Senator. My name is 

Dave Edelman, as you said, Managing Director of the George 

Street Playhouse. I had prepared comments, but I am going to 

dispense with them because there have been things raised today 

that, you know--

I started in this business as an artist, and you know 

artists do the work of baring their souls. Now I am in 

management, but I still feel compelled to bare my soul on 

occasion and talk about things which strike at the heart. 

There are a few things that have not been mentioned today, and 

they are what I want to talk about. 

I want to give you a little bit about my background 

first, because I think it is important that you understand that 

the people in this room from the arts community who have been 

speaking to you today, are not simply dispassionate outside 

observers peering into the Byzantine complex of government, 

mystically wondering how it works. We understand what goes on. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: When I walked into the room this. 

morning before 10:00 I saw this great crowd, so I know what you 

are saying is true. 

MR. EDELMAN: I left graduate school at Rutgers in 

1981 and immediately, as a volunteer, worked with the then 

Assistant Executive Director of the State Council on the Arts 

to set up the Summer Arts Institute. I didn't get paid for 

that. I helped her to set that program up, and then I taught 

in the program. I went on to coordinate the New Jersey State 
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Teen Arts Festival, and did- that for a number of years. While 

I was doing that, I established the New Jersey Young 

Playwrights' Festival, and not only ran a program, but went 

into the schools and was teaching playwrighting to students in 

elementary schools and secondary schools throughout the State. 

I was a professional actor, as I mentioned. I also 

worked, to support myself while I was an actor, doing a lot of 

interesting jobs, one of which was serving as the scribe for 

all of the panel meetings of the Council, recording the 

comments of every single panel and documenting them for the 

Council. I obtained a very good working knowledge of how these 

panels work. I also served as an artist in the schools for the 

Arts in Education Program of the State Council on the Arts, and 

I taught in Hawkins Elementary School in Newark. I taught a 

theater program for a year. I know what it is like to teach in 

an inner-city school that has precious little resources when it 

comes to the arts, and how valuable the artist can be in a 

school providing something which cannot be found anywhere else. 

I have subsequently served as a panel member for the 

New Jersey State Council on the Arts, as well as the 

Mid-Atlantic Council for the Arts, and various other 

organizations. While I was at Whole Theater as the Associate 

Producer, I wrote a proposal that resulted in the award of $5 

million to Whole Theater for construction of a new theater 

under the Capital Projects Program. Unfortunately, Whole 

Theater is no longer with us. Now I am the Manager of the 

George Street Playhouse. I am also President of the New Jersey 

Theater Group, and I serve as a Trustee of Art Pride. So I 

have been around the block a few times. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You sure have. 

MR. EDELMAN: I think I have a pretty good 

understanding of what is going on. I made a few notes, but I 

really feel compelled right now to respond to some of the 

comments I heard mentioned by members of the CWA. Quite 
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frankly, I am rather angered by some of the things I heard, 

because I think they are rather gross misstatements of reality. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, you have to understand that the 

CWA has a function, too. They have to protect their members. 

MR. EDELMAN: I understand. I happen to be a member 

of three unions -- Actors Equity, Screen Actors Guild, and 

AFTRA -- so I understand unions. I have negotiated with unions 

on both sides, management and labor. But there were some 

things that were misstated, and I think they need to be set 

clear. 

One of the things that was said was that the positions 

within the State Counci 1 on the Arts are best assumed by other 

Department career workers. Now, quite frankly, I have to admit 

that in all of the years that I have been involved in the arts 

and working with the people at the State Council on the Arts, I 

have never worked with the woman who was up here. I hav,e no 

idea who she is -- the woman who said it was a career--

SENATOR LIPMAN: She is the Shop Steward. 

MR. EDELMAN: She is the Shop Steward maybe, but, 

quite frankly, I have dealt with every single professional 

management person at the State Council on the Arts on a wide 

variety of levels, whether it is Arts in Education or 

management or grant making or technical assistance or capital 

projects or special initiatives, and I have never worked with 

this woman. I have no idea what she does. She is certainly 

not one of the professional staff of the Arts Council. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: You realize that I asked her if they 

operate with the Council on the Arts and the answer was in the 

negative. They only operate with the Department of State, 

which is, I think, why we are in the present state of 

confusion. If a union approaches the Secretary of State or any 

manager with a request that they get rid of some of their 

employees, then, you know, you take a look at what is happening 

here. Since they only felt they were responsible to the 
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Secretary of State, I am not surprised that you have not met 

her in all of your different jobs with the Council. 

MR. EDELMAN: It's rather curious, isn't it? It's 

very curious indeed. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, it is. 

MR. EDELMAN: You know, 

obligation, of course, whether it 

organization or management in the 

State Counci 1 on the Arts, is not 

I think that management's 

is management of an arts 

Department of State or the 

to serve necessarily the 

needs of the unions unequi vocably, but to serve the needs -­

and in this case the Arts Council -- of the constituency. And 

the constituency has spoken. We have spoken very clearly and 

with one voice of exactly what we want. These special project 

positions are important to us, because they fill a role that 

cannot be filled by anyone else. 

You do not see anyone in the arts community as.members 

of unions in management positions, except for artists who 

perform, because that is not the way we function. We in the 

arts have gotten-- The only reason we have succeeded at all is 

because we have broken every rule in the books. We do not 

follow the rules. If we did, we wouldn't be here. There would 

be no theaters; there would be no dance companies; there would 

be no symphonies. We don't function that way because we don't 

have the support we need in order to play by the rules. And, 

quite frankly-- I mean, I cannot speak for the Council and the 

way it is set up, but it is a mirror of the arts community. 

The people who work within the Council have to have a working 

knowledge of fund-raising, of arts marketing, of capital 

construction, of board governance, of a myriad of things that 

we in the arts do. I don't know anyone in Civil Service who 

could walk into those jobs. Perhaps with a year-and-a-half of 

on-the-job training, but we can't afford that. 

So, it appears that perhaps the Department of State 

has found ways as best as possible to get the work done to 
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serve the constituency, and that is the most important thing. 

I think that has to be clearly stated. We cannot sit around 

waiting endlessly for 

awarded to us. But 

the grants 

let me talk 

to come in that have been 

about that in one second, 

because ther~ are some issues that haven't come up yet which I 

want to bring to your attention. I think they are very 

important. 

You know, one of the things that has happened very 

recently is that the arts community has sort of -- only in the 

past few weeks risen up en masse to express its grave 

concerns about what has been happening in the Arts Council. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: So in a way this controversy has been 

beneficial? 

MR. EDELMAN: Well,. it has been beneficial because it 

has galvanized us. But I have to tell you that one of the 

reasons why many people did not stand up earlier and say 

anything when we witnessed over a period of a year this gradual 

erosion in the operation of the Council, is because many people 

were afraid to say anything. They were afraid that if they 

stood up and bucked the administration, they might be singled 

out for retribution, because we are all beneficiaries of grants 

from the State Council on the Arts. The only safety we have is 

in maintaining the independence and autonomy and integrity of 

the grants process. That protects us, so that when we become a 

part of the political debate we are not subject to 

retribution. That can often happen in politics. It happens 

all the time, we know it. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, we know, 

. MR. EDELMAN: That's number one . Number two is, we 

have been sitting very well on an anger which is just beneath 

the surface with all that has been going on. We have witnessed 

this perceived dismantlement of the Arts Council, but we 

haven't been able to understand why. , You know, we have been 

walking around saying, "It ain't broken. Why are you trying to 

fix it?" 
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Quite frankly, we have asked and asked. and asked for 

access to the Secretary of State's Office for information, and 

we have been shut out. Up until very recently, we haven't been 

provided with information. So we have been walking around 

wondering what the heck is going on? Why is this happening? 

We do not understand it. But we see the result, and to us what 

the result is, is that there has been an attempt to dismantle 

the State Council on the Arts and to shift its functions into 

the Department of State. 

We all know that that would have meant the end of the 

grant-making process, and it would have put grant making back 

into your hands, as it was in the old days, when we went _up to 

you and said, "Please put in a line i tern for $50,000 for my 

theater." 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yeah, I remember those days. 

MR. EDELMAN: You remember those days, and you know 

what the implication of that is. We don't want to go back to 

that. It is not good for us, and it is not good for you. 

. needed. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I don't want to go back to it either. 

MR. EDELMAN: Good, I'm glad to hear that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Because I didn't always get what I 

MR. EDELMAN: Neither did we. Let me tell you that 

this anger also has to do with what we perceive as some 

misguided efforts on the part of the administration. A year 

ago, at our Art Pride Congress, it was presented to us that 

there would be this new position of a private/public 

partnership created. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh, yes. 

MR. EDELMAN: At that time, a number of us in the arts 

community said to the administration, "What do you think one 

person in an office in the Department of State can do that the 

hundreds of professional arts managers and fund-raisers and the 

thousands of · members of our boards of trustees who are out 
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there beating the bushes for funds-- What can this one person 

do that we have not been able to do? Their comment was, "Well, 

we think we can help; that we can do something." They created 

a position at $60,000 a year at the expense of other positions 

at the Arts Council which were terminated and, quite frankly, 

nothing happened, and the person who was in that position has 

left. 

We were not listened to. We were basically ignored. 

We understand the arts. We understand the function of the 

arts, as well as the function of the Arts Council, and never 

did this administration come to us and try to elicit what our 

concerns were; what our input was; what our feelinqs were about 

the direction the administration should be taking. It was very 

unilateral. In fact, I think it has. been proven that many of 

the steps the administration has taken have been misguided, 

including the creation of the private/public partnership 

position. 

We are also dismayed by the fact that at the same time 

a staff member at the Arts Council -- a person in the position 

of a grants officer, who has an advanced degree in arts 

management and public administration -- was terminated, in his 

place was pU:t a womaD. who has the same title, with absolutely 

no experience, no training, no background, nothing to recommend 

her for this position. What does that sound like to you? We 

know what it sounds like, and we have been very angry about it. 
Through all of this, in our attempts to try to 

understand what the administration was doing because we 

wanted to give the administration the benefit of the doubt, 

quite frankly-- We assumed that their intent was honorable and 

in our best interest. We wanted to think that, but we couldn't 

get any information. 

SENATOR LIP~: I don't want to keep interrupting 

you, but, you know, the legislators here are quite used to 

having people vent their anger on them. Did you know that? 
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MR. EDELMAN: Well, as you can see--

SENATOR LIPMAN: We get that a lot, so if you wouldn't 

be too--

MR. EDELMAN: I am not angry. I don't think you 

could--

SENATOR LIPMAN: No, I don't mean you. I mean 

anyone. If you would, you know, say what is bothering you--

MR. EDELMAN: Well, I think I have been saying-- This 

is exactly what is bothering us. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: --to a legislator-- I represent the 

other side of the coin. We are not the executive; we are not 

the Cabinet. 

MR. EDELMAN: I unde_rstand that, but I think it is 

important that you hear this. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. I think it is important that we 

hear it, except we hear it in whispers and all that. But you 

see, I think from what I can understand from today's testimony, 

the perception of the arts community and, indeed, it may be the 

perception of the public, is that in making the cuts and 

streamlining the staff of the Arts Council, and moving some of 

the fiscal functions-- That meant to many of the people that 

something crazy was going on; that something to be feared was 

going on. At that point, you know, you have to open up the box 

and look at what is happening. 

It could be that it is not as scary as people seem to 

believe. The streamlining is something that Governor Florio 

and his-- He has spoken to you about his concern for the arts 

and the amount of money they have; and how much he wants arts 

education to continue, and so forth. But that still did not 

keep him from telling his Cabinet officers to cut 8%, cut 35 

people here. I think in this confusion, the independence of 

the Arts Council has gotten sort of shaken up. We want to see 

you exert this independence once again, so it will be less 

questionable to corporate donors and to ,the public and - to the 

arts community that, you know, something strange is going on. 
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I'm saying I am·glad we are having these discussions 

now that are ongoing. I hope they solve the problem. But in 

the future, you know, 

too, because they will 

MR. EDELMAN: 

you have to call your local legislators, 

always investigate what is happening. 

Well, Senator, we have been calling our 

legislators. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: 

informed. 

That is how Senator _ Lynch was so 

MR. EDELMAN: We have been calling our legislators. I 

speak to local legislators all the time. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, you got something--

MR. EDELMAN: We got something done this time, and 

we' re grateful for that, _quite frankly. 

·SENATOR LIPMAN: Your legislator is Senator Lynch. 

MR. EDELMAN: That's right. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right, that's what I thought. 

MR. EDELMAN: That's right, and he is very concerned 

about this. You know that. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right, he is. 

MR. EDELMAN: And we have been keeping him informed 

all along. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: I think any of them would be. Jim, 

do you want--

MR . CARROLL : May I ask a question through you, Madam 

Chairman? 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes. 

MR. CARROLL: You say one employee was dismissed, or 

released. 

MR. EDELMAN: Right. 

MR. CARROLL: And was replaced by yet another. Do you 

know from whence came the reference for the second-'-

MR. EDELMAN: Well, it came from the Secretary of 

State's Office. 

MR. CARROLL: Through the Secretary of State's Office, 

okay. 
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mistaken 

MR. EDELMAN: This person, I understand -- if I am not 

is currently working in the Arts Council, and 

demonstrates absolutely no qualifications to be there, quite 

frankly. That is unconscionable. 

Let me say one more thing, one very practical 

implication of what is going to happen now because of the 

current delay in the grants process: Last year, because of the 

changes that were initiated, arts organizations saw a delay in 

the awarding of their grants by anywhere from 30 days to four 

months. What this meant was that we had to go out to the 

institutions to get our bridge loans. This cost us hundreds of 

thousands of dollars across the State. You are awarding us 

money, and on the other hand we are having to pay to finance 

the fact that we can't get it on time because the grants 

process, and changes within the Arts Council, have been 

undertaken which have impeded the Council's ability to get the 

grants to us on a timely basis. 

Now, they created a system, and it took them many 

years to do it, which turned this money around very, very 

quickly. What we are looking at next year, of course, for 

Fiscal Year 1992 grants-- We are terrified, because given the 

financial condition of many of our institutions, we are 

precariously close to bottoming out. We do not have much 

ability to go back to the financial institutions in our State 

and convince them any longer that we are a safe bet for their 

money, because they see our bottom lines, and they are not 

good. If we are delayed months longer in the receipt of our 

funds, this could be devastating; absolutely devastating. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: That is a point that is very 

well-taken. We are going to look to that. 

MR. EDELMAN: Thank you very much. I thank you for 

your indulgence in allowing me to vent some of the frustration 

that I think the community has been feeling for quite some 

months now.- Thank you,"---
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SENATOR LIPMAN: Very good. I'm glad you came. We 

were glad to listen to you. That is what this hearing is all 

about, you know. Incidently, I didn't feel your anger one 

bit. It is a situation which demands some quiet levelheaded 

decisions and -- I don't want to say negotiations, so I will 

say discussions of how each party here can proceed. I thank 

you for coming. 

I am trying to figure out who we have left here. Is 

Julie Ellen Prusinowski here? 

J U L I E ELLEN PRUS IN OW SK I: That's me. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. You are the Producing 

Director--

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: Yes, I am the Producing Director of 

the Foundation Theater at Burlington County College, in 

Pemberton, New Jersey. I am sorry that my friend Senator 

Haines had to leave a little early. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, he wanted to hear your 

testimony, but he left Jim here. 

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: It is very brief, and I am sure I 

will have a chance to speak to him, and he will have a chance 

to look at it another time. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, do go to see your local 

legislators. 

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: Oh, we do. I just have a very brief 

statement to read, and then I have a few comments regarding the 

peer revie~ pariel, as you requested. 

This summer, the Foundation Theater will celebrate its 

17th summer season in Burlington County. In that time, we have 

grown from one production a year to six; from a small voice to 

a strong artistic presence in our region. This growth is due, 

in no small measure, to the New Jersey State Council on the 

Arts. 

When I arrived in New Jersey eight years ago, I was 

amazed at the vision, the drive, and the commitment of the arts 
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community. At the forefront stood the Counci 1 on the Arts. 

Their leadership role was instrumental in the development of 

professional theater in this State. Personally, the attention 

and the advice of the Council's professional staff have made a 

difference in the way my theater works, and the comments of the 

peer review panels have provided insight and direction many, 

many times. 

All of us understand funding cuts and the creative 

solutions that are needed to work past them. However, the 

recent downsizing and reorganization of Arts Council operations 

go beyond any money-saving measure. They cut at the heart of a 

vital and valuable resource, and tear away the many years of 

hard work that have made it so. 

The integrity of the Arts Council operations must be 

maintained, including the grants process and those who 

coordinate and supervise it. To lose funding is difficult; to 

lose heart is a disaster. 

I urge your careful review of the current situation, 

and hope for your enlightened response. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, that is what we have to keep 

going here -- our commitment. 

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: As to the peer review panel process, 

I have been a peer review panelist on a smaller scale outside 

of New Jersey. At one time, I was cal led to work on a panel 

reviewing four grants. They were small grants, small dollar 

amounts, for small organizations. It took two full days of my 

time; one day in reviewing and reading the grants and all of 

the material supporting them, and then one full day in panel 

meetings to discuss simply these four small organizations, in 

order to give them the kind of-- Frankly, I was overwhelmed 

with the responsibility, because panelists are called upon to 

offer their professional judgment and then make recommendations 

either for funding -- for funding, at what level that funding 

should be, and if not funding, what kind of- assistance, help,-
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or aid would bring those organizations to a level where they 

could be funded and sustain that funding. 

So, knowing what that is like, and knowing how 

difficult that is to do, I respect.even more the peer panelists 

who review my grant application, which, by the time I am 

finished, I take to Trenton in a box, there are so many 

pieces. And that is just one, and I am a small organization 

compared to my colleagues such as George Street or Paper Mill. 

So I understand what goes into that peer review panel process. 

I can't say enough about its value and its importance, and how 

difficult it is to maintain the level at which the Arts Council 

has maintained it. I don't always agree with everything they 

do. As Laura, I think, said earlier, we all have our own 

opinions. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: If they had enough money--

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: But I support strongly the work .they 

have done, and I absolutely urge you to please maintain that 

integrity, or do what you can to see that that continues. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh, we are going to do that. We can 

promise you that. 

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: I hope so. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you so much. We might call on 

you again for some expert advice. 

MS. PRUSINOWSKI: I would be delighted to talk to you 

at any time. Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. You, too, sir. 

MR. EDELMAN: Thank you. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Let' s see. According to our sheet, 

we have Ms. Carol Crowley, who is an artist, and Mr. Lance 

Olson, from Rutgers University. Are either of you here? Is 

Ms. Crowley here? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Carol Crowley 

had to serve on another panel project-- (remainder of comment 

lost to transcriber; no microphone) 
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SENATOR LIPMAN: Oh, that's too bad. I wish we had 

known that earlier. But Mr. Olson is here. Mr. Olson? While 

of his Mr. Olson is corning up and distributing copies 

testimony, may I ask if there is anyone here we have ignored 

who would like to speak? (no response) 

The testimony of this hearing will be available to the 

public when? 

MR. CAPALBO: Soon. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: When is soon? 

MR. CAPALBO: Pretty soon. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Can you tell me any closer than that? 

MR. CAPALBO: I guess we will try to expedite this. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right, thank you. Mr. Olson, 

let's go. 

L A N C E 0 LS ON: Senator, I am Lance Olson. I am the 

Assistant Dean for Arts Programming at Rutgers' Maso_n Gross 

School of the Arts. My operation runs the University concert 

series which is 75 years old this next year. It runs Rutgers 

SummerFest. We also support some of the academic programs as 

another part of our operation. 

with you: 

Let me share some statistics 

Last summer, I was able to proudly write to you and to 

a number of other legislators with the fact that Rutgers 

matched the Department of State's Arts Council grant to 

SummerFest by over six to one from non-University sources. 

That is money we spent putting professional arts presentations 

in front of the public in central New Jersey. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Very good. 

MR. OLSON: Now, just to clarify that, the University 

is not able to spend State money any of its State 

appropriations on public service programs. That is part of 

the legislation, as I understand it. This is money we raised 

outside of those State resources to match·that State money. I 
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would be happy to provide you with my further analysis of the 

economic impact, based on the seven to one ratio. 

SummerFest certainly did serve the public with that 

money. Sixty thousand people traveled from 512 zip code areas 

in 20 different states and purchased tickets, so these were not 

people who put their names on our mailing list. These are 

people who came to New Jersey and purchased tickets for that 

program. 

In times like these, in times of stress, it is 

important that we paint the front door. So Rutgers is renewing 

its commitment to serving our 

exhibitions. We believe the 

enhances the quality of life 

communities with performances and 

arts are important because art 

in our State, gives us tools to 

understand and live in harmony with one another, to understand 

our own responses, and to express our own values. Even in 

times of severe budget pressure, these values can be expressed; 

the values we all respect that are found in public service, 

improved quality of life, enhanced understanding, and economic 

development through tourism. 

The Secretary of State is an important spokesperson 

for these values and their realization through the arts, and 

the need for continued support flowing to arts institutions. 

The State relies on quasi-public agencies -- like these arts 

institutions -- to do the good work it cannot do directly. 

Arts institutions are part of· this public/private partnership, 

a partnership that needs the support of the Secretary to make 

it complete. 

Returning to my earlier example, the one in that six 

to one match came from the State. The six came from our 

private partners, who do, indeed, care greatly that the State 

shares in the good we are doing. 

Let me close with a story about the peer review panel 

system of awarding grants of public moneys: For several years, 

our SummerFest committee made programming decisions behind 
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closed doors with a small group of people. Last year, we 

opened the doors and invited programming applications on a 

competitive basis, reviewing written project descriptions as 

the primary means of making decisions. These were reviewed by 

a panel of 18 experts in art. Some of them were faculty 

members; ~ome of them were members of the public. But they all 

knew a considerable amount about the art and about art 

communities. We found that these projects were better thought 

through, better planned, and just plain better . art than ever 

before. Most importantly, the peer review panel system 

resulted in improved, more accountable public service. 

That attendance figure of 60,000 people that we 

brought to central New Jersey for Rutgers' SummerFest last year 

from 5_12 zip codes in 20 states-- That figure increased to 73% 

from the year before, and that is the result of the peer review 

panel system. 

That closes my prepared remarks, but I would like to 

react to a couple of things that I heard this afternoon, very 

briefly. One thing that h~s not come before you is the extent 

of the involvement of the public in the panel system and in the 

grants review system that already exist. This includes a 

feedback mechanism and an opportunity for agencies that feel 

their applications were misunderstood, to appeal those 

decisions made by those panels. Now, I have served on panels 

of the State Arts Council. ·senator Lipman, you may remember 

six years ago you and I were involved in at Newark's 

Symphony Hall -- the Black History Month celebration. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, right. 

MR. OLSON: I go back another five years before that 

in this State as an Arts Administrator. I have seen an awful 

lot of these processes occur. I have served on appeals panels, 

.as well as on regular discipline panels. You must know that 

there are extraordinary lengths -- that we go to extraordinary 

lengths to try and be fair and be inclusive of all opinions in 
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awarding those grants. It is an extraordinarily powerful 

system, and it can accomplish them in a fair way. 

The staff of the Arts Council provides professional 

support to a voluntary council of individuals. These are 

deeply committed citizens, but not necessarily experts in the 

arts. They know a lot; they care a lot. But the expertise is 

provided by those professional staff members. It is those 

professional staff members who are being released from 

government service, and that is the concern; that it is 

deprofessionalization more than the loss of staff 

positions. That is painful. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: All right. Well, I appreciate your 

remarks, especially your thoughts about the peer grant review 

process. 

Do you think your change in the way -- in what you did 

last summer to bring all those, how many people from 512 zip 

codes in 20 states-- Do you think the method you used last 

year was very important? Why didn't you think of that before, 

or what? Tell me about it. 

MR. OLSON: It would be folly to consider the method 

as driving the increase in attendance, of course. There were 

many different things driving that change. Oversimplifications 

are marvelous for making a point, but what the method did to 

change the program was to open it to new ideas and to involve 

more people and to make •it accountable to more people. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: So that is why you say we don't take 

into consideration the extent of the public participation in 

those panels? 

MR. OLSON: Exactly. The public has an opportunity to 

have an opinion on art because of the peer panel system. The 

panels include a number of members. I am hesitating because I 

know the rules change each year. But they have become 

increasingly inclusive of broad opinion within the field and 
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broad opinion within a larger public. 

aspect. 

That is an important 

The expertise for judging the relative quality and the 

relative accessibility of art is provided by the combination of 

the peer panels and the professional staff. And this 

combination of expertise is what allows the voluntary Arts 

Council to make informed and clear, strong, positive decisions. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, I think then that most of what 

we have heard this afternoon concludes that the present setup 

of the peer panel review in New Jersey is accomplishing what we 

wish it to accomplish. The request is that the staff -- the 

interaction of the staff, the panels, and the Council members 

not be interrupted by any undue strain, or whatever. That is 

the request this afternoon. 

But all in all, I would conclude that everyone who has 

testified this afternoon thinks the peer panel review is a good 

way to select grantees. 

MR. OLSON: I certainly heard the same thing as you 

did, yes. It was a long day with a lot of wonderful ideas. 

Generally, yes, you--

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. Well, the Legislature has 

been interested for some time, especially this Committee, since 

this is part of what we do. We have been wondering whether 

this kind of panel review is viewed by everyone as being fair 

and impartial and so forth. We would have had, perhaps, 

without this other controversy, 

that, because what does come 

disappointed -- see? -- in the 

some kind of a hearing on just 

to us is when somebody gets 

grant they got, the amount of 

the grant, and so forth. Now that does get to the Legislature. 

But how to improve the procedure is what we want to 

know about, whether it is satisfactory as it stands. I think 

we have heard that fact all afternoon; leave it as it stands; 

it should not be dismantled; it should have enough staff to do 

what their functions are and to get the grants out on time. 

Absolutely. 
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MR. OLSON: 

may have been I 

instituted to address 

expressing--

The extensive appeals process, I think, 

was not a party to its conception 

exactly the kind of feedback you are 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Right. 

MR. OLSON: --because the appeals opportunity is 

disseminated very widely. Anyone who applies for a grant is 

informed in writing of their opportunity to appeal the decision 

of the Council. That is a very public expression of the 

opportunity, and it-- I'm sorry, I have lost my train of 

thought. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Well, anyway, you talked about the 

public's participation. 

MR. OLSON: Well, it allows for considerable 

accountability within the process. 

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, that is the word you want. 

Well, I thank you for coming and sharing these thoughts with 

us. I hope you continue to fund seven to one, or eight to one 

next time what the St ate Arts Counc i 1 has to do . Gee, I hope 

you are able to do that. I wish you much good luck. 

With that, if there is no one else who would like to 

testify, we will bring this hearing to a close. I thank you 

all for coming. It has been a long time since we had so many 

people left at a hearing. It has run right up to 5: 00 in the 

afternoon. Thank you. (applause) 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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(609) ~92-8569 

July 19, 1990 

Honorable Joan Haberle 
Secretary of State 
315 Kuser Mansion 
CN 300 
Trentcr., NJ 08625 

-<E-.>;E""H S ~EV>' 
A<;;;1srA111 4T"Tl";'1!;FY ·3E! c'· 

Dtl'IECiOR 

Re: 90-0'JSl: 1-.;,1:,t:HH Se~retary •Jf State can control 
policie~ !nd ~ersonnel of $tate Council on 

______ en the Arts. 

Dear S•~cr~tar.y Hebe.:- 11::: 

Yr:,u ask.::d ,1iie t!1E.;>.r ;10.:; -:/ a:1d psr-sonno.l d·~cisions made by 
trlf~. i·;!.'.hi }en:.sey Sta~e Council :.::1 tl1e- A.t"'ts ( the Council, aP.'.:I subject 
t:::; n~•:ie::iv and m<Jdi!ic3t:.on :.r/ ~he SecretAry cf State i.n he.:­
c-.Lp.:1c-.:.Lty as head of t:na Oepurtment of Stat-3. For the following 
r•.:!uscns, it .i.s our opin.i.cn that unde:o: the governing legislation, 
tho Cour.cil . and its respons ihle of: J cers:i possess eKclus.i v'= 
authr.1,i t/ to make. 1Jecis1ons a! f~,;;ting it;:; c.ii;,erations. 

The Council, consisting of 17 public membo~s appointed by 
the· Gcve.nior with the adv:.-::e and con$~nt o! the S~nate: tegether 
with ttire11 nonvoting ex-cff icio memb'.!i·s, :ts '' astabli:uhed in" the 
Depar.t,,,ent of State. N.J.S.A. S2:'l6A-?.5. One of the thrae 
nonvoting ex·•·officio me1T1betrs--"is the Secr,.,tary r,f State, or her 
designee, who !;t:rves du.rinCJ thr-! ~t?c1:et~n·y' s term of off.ica. 
N. J. S.;;. 5:!: li5A-25b( 1). The:! p·_"..mill."7 t:uor::-.:ion c-.f i:hc Council is to 
p.t"omote the performing ~nd 1.:,·r;at:tve arts in the State. N ... T.S.A. 
52:16A-26. 

The Council is req,1 ire,J to el ~ct a chai ::man and vice­
chairman annually from amt:ng i. >;:3 m\!rr.ber.o. Thie ch'3irman is 
d~.signa.ted as chief e,cer.;utj.ve ~,!fic:!:!r of the cr.,unc.;il and presides 
at aJ.J. _mcetirlg::.. rt,e Cou11r;J.l is aJ~c, autt1r;d ·.::~•.: to emplo~• an 
-:xei:.;u t1 ve dirf:ct,:,t "and sucl1 c~ht:.!r p~: s:wnel a::. m.~y be nec:~s.sar.y to 
acccmp.lish its objectives wi t: •1in tti~ l :l.mit of furn.ls available 
therefor." 'l'he executive d.ir'=ctor ~'::tVf::!S a9 the Council's 
secretary and is required to "c.uty out the i?Olicie~ of the co1.1nci.l 
under the direction of the ch.Jirinun." N.J.S.A. 52:l6A-27(a) and 
( b). 

IX 



., 
July 17, 1990 

Page 2 

Th~ Ccu "'le: l is .,u ~::icJr J. i.;00. tr.:- !;')1::r·f.orm variau.'3 func 's:ic.;ns 
whic!1 t:;·picall.y app~ar .!.n l~•,;1.sl;.Jti.c-n c:n:>/;\t'l.ny quasi-indope!lde11t 
State ,1gencj.es. .S;,P.cifir::a.:..l:r, :-:he Cou:•~il. me1· an,:!=!r into contracts 
in fl!rthera.nce of its pr•:Jgra1:1t,1, mo:_r accept =7ifts, grants and 
l:equ2sts of funds, may hold pub.1.iG ,'J.nd ;,.-::ivate t1<;!aringg, a.nd may 
req·.1ire State agercies to pi:·,.Jvi.de "i:: 1J1::\, assis t:l:!nce, .tniormntion, 
eocd c1d•..,,•ir-;~" as r.h~ C::n.;r!r:.\..L di:~ni:;: n1"?c:"'~S,'.'l.r:y. It alsr:, mal<es an 
i'\f\nual ..-~port t,~ '.::~~ Gov<?.1::1Qr and. Ule Leg is la t1.1:re conct;rnLng 
m:Jt·~er:; ,,.,,ithin lts j1Jrisdic:t:.i..cm. N.J.S.A. 52.:l6A··27(d) and (e). 
Moreov~r, the Council is c!es.t.;n:=itcd us""'·:ttie officidl agency of this 
State" for receipt and di:sb11!:"S~!nr:nt: of f·,mds pnwidr~d to the Sta':e 
by t~·1e Notional Er.i...!ct-.·merit i::r t!1e Arts. M.\J.~., •. 52:l5A-28. 

Thn cl,,,ar in.,.~'1t a··,,;1 ,;,ff<:1c': of thCSE:l provisions is to 
C(.1r,o;;ti.tut'? tl:ia r:c:.Jrir.:il a!l ,.., c1'.Jd.::i.-•:!:1der.·t~ntient State agency wld.ch is 
emp•T,,i:ar,.3d to .C:o-r;-:iu,t;a;. tf: fC L.:c.· (1:.s fur pr.·omCJ~ic.m of tt:e Grts allJ. to 
cr1rr.y cut thase policies tl1rm1gh 1-:he ch.airman, the executi?e 
d.i.:t·ect·::ir. and such o t:her. pa.i:-:,.-:-nr1el as it dl?.enis neces;sary. There is 
no thing ln the rele·,ant ;, :a t1., t-:~ry prov;.sil)nG to suggest: that the 
CCJUn('.:il 's policy a:,d pe~·:,.onn~l. rJr~cision:.; ar.e s:.ibj1'3Ct to revisw anc. 
cc.,tr:o.l. by the Sei::r,stilz:y cd St.=.it·•: as hr~a(i of the Depa:c:tJT'.~T·.t of 
wr,: ch the Cc:uncJ.l J:;; a ~.-~r.':, To th-:: cont.:1.-~ry, section 5?.":l6A-2.5b 
!"t:.l t~s only tl1a t:: th~ C:ec::1:ta ,:-~.. is d~slgnateu as one ot rnrsa 
r.c..;nvat.i.ng e,t-off.i.cio membc?.?:"S. Nnth.ing in the. language or 
le{Jisl,:;itive h;L~'t<)ry -:if the dC"t .t:~.d:l.c"!.t:P.S an int~nt to ~rant the 
Ser: n~tr1xy a lar.\;er :i::·ol e. in the Cour~r~i: '-:1 d~cisionmaking processes 
th~n the l.i.mitr.d r•Jh1 r.;pi:c.:..fi~rl br thi~ prr.:,vision. It follows that 
the S~·::-:=e eary':, in!' l u~rH~s o·:F:r 0'"1U c:r am! pe1·scmnel deci:.;icJns cf 
1:he t:c.,:,unc::il Js l~ri1i.t13d 1::::, her r;:\rt·ir.:i.,iat:!.on as ~ nonvoting ex~ 
L"'ffic::.i..o membet", i.n adcli.ti!:,n to h(!r per.s·.asive powers as an 
important official of State govermnent. 

. For thesc:i rea~ons, :i r· ls or.•r oi;,inion--·that · policy and 
per. !:;C 1m.:;.•.l decisicms 1Jf th-a s t'!t!:!! Council on the Arts fall within 
t~~ exclu~ive pr~vince of th~ Courci 1 i~s~lf and are not subject to 
r:;!vi.ew P.lnd mcd:!..:i,:;at.Lon i.Jy i:he Sec.r.F.rt,HI of Sti:li;9, 

MSB:cc 

Very truly ~•ours, 

ROBERT J. DEL TUFO 
Attorney General of New Jersey 

By: ~l~ I~. ,~<L~ 
Michaels. Bokar 
Senior Deputy Atto~ney General 
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Hon, Joan Habe~le 
Secretary of State 
315 KusQr Mansion 
CN 300 
Trenton, New Jersey 0862S 

March 12, l99l 

Elizabeth G, Christopherson, Chair 
State Council on the Arta 
4 North arced Street 
CN ~06 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Re~ Arts Council Personnel A~pointments. 

Dear Secretary Haberle and Cha1rwoman Chr1stopheraon: 

AOURT J. 0!L TUFO 
AT"l'ORNiY G!N!RA~ 

You have each separately eaked this offiee to ingu1re 
into the facts and circumstances surrounding the . termination cy 
Secretary Haberle of thrae per• cna who were performing services for 
the State Council on· the Arts. After carefully reviewing this 
rnattar, I em satisfied that Secretary Haberle acted within her 
authority and in good faith, that the three persona can be re-hired 
by the Arts couneil if it so desires and that Secretary Haberle 
stands reedy to actively assist the Coune11 in identifying 
availabla funding sources or taking other steps necessary to 
~chieve this result, 

The facts pertinent to this matter' may be suceit'lctly 
atated. David Miller, who served as an as1i1tant to the Executiva 
Director of the Ar,:a Council, was appointed on April 9, 1984 by 
then Secretary of State Jane eurgio. Mr, Miller was epp01nted as a 
Conf identisl Secretary to the Secretary of State in t:he 
unclaas:Lfiad service pursuant to the prcviaions of N.J.S.A:. ll:4• 
4(m) ((s1nca repealed), now codified at N.J.S,A, llA:3-4{hl ), and 
\-1as thereafter 1!Utsignad by Secretary su:rgio to -the ~rts Council to 
accommodate its personnel and administrative needs. Mr, Miller's 
salary was paid out of funds available to the Arts Council, Terry 
Marsr.all was hi:-e~ ~Y Secretary Burgio on November l6, 1987 as il 
Project Specialist to process grants awarded by the Council: her 
salary was paid by the Art.a Council. Similarly, Kathi Levin was 
hired oy Secretary Burgio on January 27, 1986 as a Project 
Specialist to precess grants for the Council, Har selary was paid 
out of monie$ availaola to the Arts Council. 

HUOHII JUITICI ~OMftLl)C • CN 080 • meNTON, NJ OHlwotO t IOl•lll;4111 
NIW JlilllV fl -N IQUAI. 011-,,.?\IHl'l"I' l!MIILOYIIII 
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!ach of the three above-named individuals wea appointed 
by tha then Sec,:etary of State to pe:-form duties tor the Arts 
Council, with their salaries paid by the council. In each 
instanoa, tha Arta Coun~il never tcok any aeparate action to hire 
these individuals under its own authority, or to otherwise modify 
or repudiate the hiring decisions taken cy the Secretary of State. 
All of the appointments were proc•ssed by the adm1nistrative 
i.ection of the Secretl!ry of State' e Office consistent with '::!"'.e 
lar.gs-:anding practice of iharing administrative resources between 
the Arts Counoil end the Seoratery of State. A9a1nst this 
backdrop, secretary Haherla moved hara to term1nate the effeet:ed 
individuals because o! budgetary constraints and. other 
adminis~rative obligations, 

For the reesone set forth below, while the use of 
employment authority by the Dep~rtment of State to employ personnel 
who serve the Arts Council has clouded the issue, all of the 
affected employees were hired by the Secretary of State, and were, 
therefore, .terminable by the Secretary as the appointing euthori ty. 
Although the Arts Council hss sta~utory authority tc hire employees 
directly, the Council haa, up to the present, declined to e~ercise 
that power and deferred to tha author1ty of the Secretary of s~ate. 
It was therefore permissible for Secretary Haberle to take 
personnel actions related to individuals who performed work for: 
and were paid by the Arta council but wh0 were hired by the 
Secretary. 

The mixed personnel and a~m1r.11trative history regerd1ng 
ths Secretary of Stata'a Office and the Arts Council, while 
muddying the understendin;s of tne parties, is oonaistant ,,1ith 
established principles sanctioning the sharing of administrative 
authority 1n the personnel area, eapecielly for "in but not of" 
State 59encies such ea the Arte Counc1l, and should not ocscure the 
secretary' • authority to act here. In addition, it 1a an ordinary 
practice to veat the appointment and removal authority in one set 
of p~blie official• while assigning the fiscal responsibility for 
the hired 1nd1vidual to another governmental anti~y. For examp~e. 
although judgae at the $~perior Court are considered State officers 
and are appointed ~Y the Governo~, N.J.Conat, (1947), Art. VI, §VI. 
V4, the !nit1al raspons1b111ty to pay their aalaries is vastad in 
county government. N.J.S.A, 2-':2-1.3. Similarly, while a county 
Superintendent ot Elections ia e~pointed and subject to removal by 
State offi~iels, the Superintendent's salary, ,a well a~ ~h~ 
administrative expenses of that office are required by law to be 
borne by the county. J<aenan v. Sd. cf Freeholder• of Essex Cty .. 
lOl N,J,Super. 495 (Law 01v. 1.968), atf'd 106"~~RJ._~~ ... 31·2 ·u~pp. 
Div. 19g9). · The taet that the county beara the salary expense in 
those eases does not empower the county to remove those officialu 
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which remains vested in State officials. The power to appoint or 
hire an 1nd1vidu~l, absent soma other statutory arrangement, would 
perforce embrace the autho~ity to terminate the individu~l. Once 
it is determined that a ~ertieul&r government ofticisl is empowered 
to act (as here the power of appointment), it is well-accepted that 
-that suthori t:y continues and ia vested in the pub: ic official's 
euccaasor. See N,J. Court Rules, R, 4:34-4 \substitution of 
successor inoffice); red. IL c1v.- P,, R. 2S(dl (o!Jtomatic 
substitution of successor public official). 

In this matter Seeretaty Haberle 1 s predecesso: made the 
initial appointments, 'rhe ~rt1 Coul'\cil never sou'-ht to exercise 
its own s-catutory authotity to hire the affected individuals or, to 
our knowledge, any other emplo:yeea. oespite the fact: that the 
smpl.oyees at is,ue were funded 0ut ot Ar,:s Council monies, 
Secre~~ry Haberle, in exercising a judgment to terminate the three 
individuals in respon.sa to budget and other administrative 
concerns, acted in an historical, symbiotic environment which had 
sanctioned a longstanding aequieaeence ~Y the Arta council to the 
p@rsonnel decision, of the Secretary of State. §!! ~;_g_r:,f_ . .!!:. 
Fender, BO N,J. 129, 137 (1979) (due detarence must be accoraad to 
time-honored°igeney practices). Accordingly, 1t must be concluded 
th.et Secretary Haberle acted reasonably and in good faith in taking 
the personnel actions which are the focus of thi1 inquiry. 

On tha othar hand, 1t 11 equally clear that the Arts 
Couneil hes been statutorily veated with indepen~ent authority to 
employ an executive director "and such other personnel as m~y be 
necessary 'to accomplish 1ts objectives w1th~n tha limits 0£ furies 
available therefor," N.J.S.A. 52r1cA-27(e), Accord1ngly, 1n the 
even~ that the Arta Couhc{i wiahea t0 employ personnel directly, 
and within its budgetary limit• and other applicable personnel 
laws, it is err.powered tc do ao. :tn thia regard, Secretary Haberle 
has re1 terated her willingness to assist the council, as ehe and 
her office have done in the past, in the pr0ca1a1ng of ell of t~e 
necessary adminiatrattv• task1 appurtenant to the appointment 
process. S•• N,J.S.A. ,2:16.1i .. 2?(d) (tha Council may request the 
ass1stanc:e oT any Stata department or agency t0 help 1t carry out 
its duties.). Tha Secretary has als0 strongly ind1coted her desire 
to n11!p 'the Council in identifying appropriate funding sour:ces 

~In Attorney General Opinion No, 90-0081, dated J~ly 19, 1990, 
this office concluded that the Secretary ot State did not have the 
authority to review or modify personnel decisions which "fall 
within the ~>cclus1ve provinc:• ot the Council," Id, at p. 2. That 
o~inion, however, is depende"t upon e factual"' predica~e which 
prasumes that the Arts couno1l mada the initial appointments. 
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which the Council can utilize ~o supplement its pre1ant resources. 

In sum, Secretary Haberle, in nullifying prior employment 
~acisi0n1 of her predece•sor, acted reasonably and within the 
authority conferred upon her oy pa• t practice and law. However, 
the Arts council 1s free to ex1rc:11e affirmatively and 
indepenoently the appointing authority conferred on it by statute. 



To: Senator Lipman and the members of the Senate State Government Committee 

From: Sharon Harrington, Member, New Jersey State Council on the Arts 

March 21, 1991 

Madam Chairman and members of the Committee, I want to thank you for inviting me 
here today to discuss my experience as a member of the New Jersey State Council on the 
Arts (NJSCA). I considered it to be an honor and a privilege to serve as Governor 
Floria's first appointment to this board, as I believe Elizabeth Christopherson and Celeste 
Penny must have when then Governor Kean selected them. 

The day I was sworn in, just about one year ago, was the same day Governor Florio 
appeared at the first Arts Council meeting to be held after he took office. He had two 
messages that day: that the arts in all forms are a critical ingredient of New Jersey's fabric, 
and that, unfortunately, we would have to use our resourcefulness and creativity more than 
might have been anticipated. We like all of government were being asked to do more with 
less. The flush days were over due to an unanticipated and unprecedented budget problem 
which he inherited. 

The arts community met that challenge, exercising patience, understanding, cooperation and 
resourcefulness, and performed virtual magic. These efforts were truly a favor to the Arts 
Council, and a credit to the entire arts community in New Jersey. 

Like the many times they've taken the lead and served as a national model, our arts 
organizations can be a role model to organizations in surrounding states now challenged 
with reduced budgets. 

This first year of my term has been an exciting learning experience; I have been supported 
by my more senior colleagues who have given of their time and knowledge generously. 
There is a great deal more to learn, but I have participated in a cultural bond hearing 
cycle, a grants cycle and a year of working with a knowledgeable, supportive and most 
professional staff. They are truly a credit to New Jersey. 

We have worke~ together during the past few difficult months to forge a new working 
relationship. One that relies on the cooperation of the Council with the staff, and which 
will maintain the professionalism which has been in place for many years. There has been 
acknowledged here this morning various understandings of relationships· between the 
Council, and our Department -- I assure you for my part, I intend to work cooperatively 
and to take advantage of the help Secretary Haberle has offered. 

Recent controversies have forced us to examine past procedures, evaluate our involvement 
and assess the responsibility we as Council members assume. After a difficult period of 
time, areas of responsibility have been defined. Secretary Haberle asked General Del Tufo 
to review our respective roles, and we are moving forward with every intention of making 
the partnership between State Government and the Arts Community work. 

7X 



I have been asked to serve as Chairman of the Grants Committee, and as Co-Chairman of 
the Search Committee. I do both enthusiastically. However, I want to point out -- and 
you, Senators, who serve the public, know and appreciate the time involved in doing this 
job well -- my colleagues at the Arts Council devote a great deal of time and energy to 
serving on this Board. It consumes many hours beyond Council meetings. This dedicated 
and committed group each serves on a couple of NJSCA Committees as well as devoting 
significant time attending performances and exhibits, thus bringing a personal understanding 
to the objective review process. 

We realize the responsibility and privilege of serving our State and want to hear your 
guidance · in doing it well. Thank you. 



Testimony - Jane Burgio, former secretary of State of the state 

of New Jersey 

Madam, Chair, members of the committee: 

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you, my former 

colleagues, and I appreciate your interest in the New Jersey art 

scene. 

Since my retirement, I have remained active in the arts 

community. I did not plan to take an up-front part in this issue 

under discussion today. However, since I have been included and 

mentioned by name in the recent opinion from the Attorney 

General, I feel it is important to clarify a couple of points in 

this document. 

Number 1 - on page 2, 3rd paragraph, the Arts Council is referred 

to as an "in but not of" state agency. This is incorrect. The 

Arts council is an integral part of the Department of State with 

separate responsibilities allocated the Arts Council trustees as 

spelled out in the enabling legislation. 

The second point. is even more relevant to the_topic of today's 

hearing. This opinion states, on pages 1, 2 and 3, that the 

three individuals whose dismissal has been questioned were 

appointed by me, the former Secretary of State. This is not 

true. All I did was handle the paperwork required for these 

individuals to start working. I did not seek out, recommend or 

interview for any position on the Arts Council staff. This was 

done by the executive director. He was appointed by the Arts 

Council board as required by law. 

As Secretary of State, with the Arts Council as a quasi­

autonomous division within the Department of State, I believed my 

role to be that of a custodian of the public trust. The board 

members established policy and appointed director and staff to 

9X 



carry out such policies. My role and that of my immediate staff 

was to assure that this agency was able to fulfill its many_ 

responsibilities in a thorough and efficient manner. 

An Attorney General's decision dated July 17, 1990 expresses it 

well. On page 2, 2nd paragraph, I quote, "It follows that the 

Secretary's influence over policy and personnel decisions of the 

Council is limited to her participation as a non-voting ex­

officio member,. in addition to her persuasive powers as an 

important official of State government," end of quote. 

I never hired or fired staff. I never interfered in the grants 

process. I saw the role of my office as an umbrella unit, a 

trouble shooter and expediter, to deal with other departments 

involved in our mission within State government. 

I feel strongly that the relationship of the Secretary of State, 

developed over the last 2S years be continued. Only then can we 

be assured that the citizens of New Jersey receive the . 

opportunities and advantages that a professional arts council 

staff can provide. 

I would be happy to answer any questions. 

JB/ses/319 
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Testimony of Horacee Arnold/Thursday, March 21, 1991 

For a number of years I have had the privilege of working with the 

Council's Artist in Residence Program, as well as with the Artist-Teacher 

Institute. I am a jazz musician, composer and teacher. 

Education is the number one national priority. The Arts Council has been 

in the vanguard of supporting and developing creative programs for 

students and teachers alike. In New Jersey, Arts in Education Residencies 

annually serve 24,000 school children. Over its 15 year history, the 

Artist Teacher Institute has served more than 1,200 teachers and won 

national acclaim for its unique approach to teacher training and renewal. 

A copy of last year's flyer is attached to give you an insight into the 

program. 

I have two concerns with the recent year of turmoil and tension at the 

Arts Council. 

Ruaber One: It is absolutely essential, for the programs of which I 

speak, to have staff with credentials as .artists and as teachers. I am 

unnerved by reports of decreasing staff and a sort of musical chairs 

shuffling which takes qualified arts personnel away from the council and 

creates a training drain on the remaining staff. Vere the system to grind 

to a halt, the NEA funds which support these programs would cease to flow, 
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and the children and teachers of New Jersey would suffer a tremendous 

loss. 

HWDber ho: It is also essential for paperwork, contracts, invoices, 

grant awards and the like to move swiftly and efficiently. You can 

appreciate the fact that artists are not always rolling in cash and need 

to be paid promptly. As the Council staff decreases, the layers of 

bureaucracy expand, and the burden of this sort of paperwork falls 

increasingly on the shoulders of professionals or volunteers, procedural 

efficiency deteriorates. The artists suffer serious consequences. 

I am a believer in the Council's dynamic leadership in Arts Education. I 

. urge you to create a working structure within which the Arts Council is 

free to continue making its outstanding contributions to the students and 

teachers of New Jersey. 

l~X 
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TESTIMONY FOR THE SENATE STATE ..GR.."..U'P 

AND FEDERAL AND INTERSTATE RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
March 21, 1991 

Re: Consequence of Delays in the Grants Process 
of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts 

Current difficulties between the Secretary of State's office 

and the State Council on the Arts, if not speedily resolved, have 

the potential to seriously hamper the productivity of a l~rge 

segment of the economy--those benefiting directly and indirectly 

from government support of the arts. By "those benefiting" I 

mean not only the arts organizations receiving Council funds, but 

the many businesses which supply the arts groups, and the many 

more in the travel and restaurant industry which depend on arts 

activity for a substantial part of their income. 

This group was already seriously wo\lnded last year, when the 

deep cut to the Council's grants funds had the effect of delaying 

decisions on Fiscal Year 1991 grants. The problems occasioned by 

last year's cut were not only financial. For some groups, 

particularly those served through the state/County Partnership 

program (also known as County Block Grants), the delay itself was 

a serious problem. 

Last year the State/County Partnership granted $970,000 to 

county-designated agencies, most of the funds to be distributed 

to local arts and community groups bringing the arts to the 

people of their towns. For example, Union County received 

$73,000, of which $61,000 is being distributed to 41 

organizations, and directly benefits over a quarter million 

people, including close to a thousand artists. While this was a 



TESTIMONY FOR THE SENATE STATE GRANT COMMITTEE 
March 21, 1991 page 2 

substantial reduction from the $120,000, with $100,000 for local 

regrants, received the previous year, the arts groups faced an 

additional set of problems because of the delay. 

Normally the Council makes its announcement toward the end 

of July each year. Immediately following that announcement, the 

county agencies have to determine the actual amounts of the re­

grants to be awarded locally, and request revised budgets from 

the organizations, which in almost every case will receive less 

than they originally applied for. Last year's announcement came 

two months later than usual, in September, after the season had 

already started. Groups funded directly by the Council were 

already at the beginning of their seasons before they knew how 

much they would have from the Council. Local groups, funded 

through the State/County Partnership, were even worse off, having 

to wait for the county agencies to once again review their 

requests and determine dollar amounts. 

In Union County the cut was so substantial that some groups 

which we had anticipated funding were not funded. The decision 

was so late that they did not know they would receive no funding 

until about the beginning of October, well into their activity 

for the year. Other counties had similar problems. 

The Arts Council staff did a herculean job, getting 

contracts out within two weeks of the announcement. Even so, the 

delay in the announcement meant that all the work needed at the 

county level was delayed six to eight weeks beyond the normal 

schedule: Consequently, among ten counties polled by phone 

yesterday, only six were able to get checks out to regrantees 
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before the end of December. Almost half the counties contacted 

were not able to send the initial payments to their regrantees 

until after the first of the year. 

So, in addition to not knowing how much funding they would 

receive, if any, until almost two months later than usual, the 

local arts groups received, their initial payments a good deal 

later than usual. It's as if parents were told in August that 

they would not know how much money they'd have for the school 

year until after school started, and then didn't receive a 

substantial part of it until the New Year. The kids go to school 

in September, but maybe they go to school barefoot. And what 

about next year. 

There were drastic staff cuts at the state Council on the 

Arts last year, and recently more Council staff were cut, then 

reinstated. The arts community is understandably nervous. 

At the county level we have urged arts groups tc;> plan: ahead. 

Generally we require our applicants to tell us in January or 

February what they will do the following September through June. 

But how can they plan. ahead in this environment? 

At the counties we do not have enough information to comment 

on the current dispute between the Secretary of State and the 

Council on the Arts. But we do know that the grants process for 

the coming year has already been impaired by that dispute, and 

that the arts community that we serve will be badly hurt if we 

allow this problem to continue, resulting in another year of 

delays in the grants process. The counties make access to the 

arts happen, by funding and giving technical assistance to the 
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"little guys" who provide access to the arts for many of our 

less-well-off citizens, our handicapped, minority, and senior 

citizens. If you truly believe in all of our citizens having 

access to the arts, you must do what you can to resolve this 

crisis now, before further damage is done to the grants process 

of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts. 

William J. Higginson 
Administrator 
Union County 
Office of Cultural and Heritage Affairs 

/7)(. 
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NEW JERSE -,DEPARTMENT OF L,~IL SErfvfCE 1;,~ a..mendec 
DIVISION OF CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

April 6, 1973 

SALARY Ar:MINISTRATION MEMORANDUM #45-73 SUPPLEMENT #l 

The Civil Service Corrrnission at its meeting of April 5, 1973, 
approved the following changes in the Compensation Plan, June 24, 1972, 
effective April 14 1 1973. 

The following titles provide classifications for positions where 
all of the following criteria are met: 

(a) a full-time position is needed for a project that is totally 
funded by Federal or other grant monies; 

(b) the project has a clearly defined objective and anticipated 
duration; 

(c) it is otherwise not feasible to use a competitive title. 

Such positions and appointments thereto may be approved for one 
year or less. Renewal or extension may be granted on the basis of justifi­
cation acceptable to the Department of Civil Service. 

These titles provide for and distinguish between the position that 
involves project development, management, implementation or evaluation 
and the position that involves technical or clerical support. The 
salary rates will be determined as provided by regulation. 

GENERAL 

ADDITION OF TITLES: 

N98 60005 U PROJECT SPECIALIST NL 
(R.S. ll:4-4(u) and R.S. 11:7-12) 

N98 60004 U PROJECT SUPPORT SPECIALIST NL 
(R.S. ll:4-4(u) and R.S. 11:7-12) 

NOTE: These titles shall not be used as substitutes for the 
title of Consultant or for Consultant Services. 

S-126 e REVISED 7 '711 
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NEW JERSE'',DEPARTMENT OF '- .VIL SERVICE 
DIVISION Of CLASSIFICATION ANO COMPENSATION 

cse ~ # 1/S -75 5'./ppl. #I 
S /1.-.eodr 

April 18, 1974 a '-"-''' 

AMENrMENT TO SAIARY ALMINISTRATION MEMORANOOM #45-73 SUPPLEMENT #1 

The Civil Service Commission at its meeting of April 16, 1974, 
approved the following amendment for the use of the titles, Project 
Specialist and Project Support Specialist: 

(a) Delete: "totally Federally funded", Substitute: 
"regardless of source of funding." 

( 
These titles may be used to classify positions on ·) 
interim bas1s where no appropriate titles exist. 
Each such act ion would be a pp.roved pending establish-

, ·ment of an appropriate title for a period not exceeding 
six months. 

Note: CS44 Forms should accompany CS21 Forms requesting 
establishment of positions with these titles. 

S-126 e FIEVISEO 7/711 



TO: 

FROH: 

DATE: 

t n . s..-.,..-1: .. ,. ;\:I:\\ .11.1:,,1., · u I 1-:1•.,1~-r,-11:1"·1· 111 l'1.1:s11.,r-.-1.t. 

ANOA(w ,•,(BE.A. COk11~1SSICN(R 

CN )17 

TAEN10N. NJ C&6]~ 

All Appointing Authorities _ 

Andre..., Weber·, Cornrnissio"-r;;/-/J 
Department of Personne1ClJ-1 

July 26, 1990 

V.5 

SUBJECT: Project Specialist Positions 

A study bas been completed revie~ing current practices involving the 
establishment and extension of Project Specialist and Project Support 
Specialist positions. Our findings revealed that a re-~e£1ning of 
standards, policy, and procedures is necessary to insure the most 
prudent use of these titles. 

Therefore, af..i.ectiye im.m.e.d.i.a.t.e.l.:l, all requests to establish or extend 
Project Specialist and Project Support Specialist positions will be 
subJeot to the follo'wing standards and procedures. For the i:,ake of 
brevity, the term Project Specialist, as used here, refers to both 
Frojeot Specialists and Project Support Specialists. 

SIAJIDARDS 

All requests .:to establish .Project Specialist positions must meet A.11., 
of ·the follo""'ing criteria: 

(a) a full time position is needed for a project that is ~.al.ls 
funded by grant monies or other spec1f1cally·identified 
funds: and 

(b) the project has a clenrly defined objective and anticipated 
duration of one year or less; and 

(c) it is otherwise not feasible to use another existing title. 

PROCEDJJJIBS 

A. llil.'LA:p:p_o..i..D.imBnts/New Position R.eq;:uests/ReclassificatJ.Jlrui 

All requests for new appointments to existing Project Specialist 
positions, new Project Specialist positions or the reclassification of 
an existing position to a Project Specialist title 'will be submitted 
to the Office of the Commissioner, Department of Personnel (CN 317) 
with DPF-10 and supporting documentation. 



Requests ~111 be submitted via DPF-44A (Position Action Request) witb 
attach~ents, including but not limited to: 

l. DPf-44 (Position Classification Questionnaire) describing in 
Qetail the nature of the position. 

2. Statement -0f Justification for use of the ProJeot Specialist 
title explaining why it is necessary and how it meets 
established criteria. It must also explain why it 1s not 
feasible to use a Temporary Appoint=ent to an existing 
Career Service or Unclassified title. 

3. Table of Organization sboving the relative location of the 
Project Specialist position within the unit. 

4. A completed form DPF-10 'with a copy of the prospective 
employee's resume attached and an analysis of ho~ the 
recommended salary ~as determined . 

.. 
If the request is approved, the Appointing Authority will be notified. 

B. t:.uension of Proj.act__.S_p.ac.i..al 1st Positions 

All requests to extend the appointment of a Project Specialist must be 
received by the Office of the Commissioner, Department of Personnel 
(CN 317), Trenton, New Jersey 08625, at least 15 days prior to the 
expiration date. If a request to extend the Project Specialist is not 
reoei v·ed within the time lim.1 t, tho appointment will be ter:in.1.nated.. 

The raquest for exten,ion shall be submitted on a DPF-44A and include 
a .oopy of all documentation previously submitted for 
oreation/extension of the position including copies of all approvals 
by the Offi~e of Persono~l Management .. 

No DPf-10 need acco~pany the request for extension . 

.QOHTilfOING SUBYBX: OFJ..R.fil.BCT SPEc.IAL.I..S.TJ.QSITIONS 

I have directed sta!f to begin a survey of e~isting Project Specialist 
positions to determine if continuing allocation of the Project 
Specialist title to specific positions remains appropriate. If as a 
result of this survey, other titles are found to be more appropriate, 
you will be provided with notification prior to reclassification of 
the position. In c0nnection ...,1th this survey, I urge you to revie·.; 
your ourront ProJoot Specialist compliment and recommend 
reolassifibatioos where warranted. 

Your oontinued support in these efforts is appreciated. 

AW/DLP/RFB 
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NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL 
OFF1CE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

PRC:GRA¼ CIXEDINATQR, ITT,N:II CN JEE ARTS 

DEFINJTJCN 

Under the direction of the Executive Director, Council on the Arts, Department of 
State, is responsible for conducting, researching and developing innovative programs jn the 
Arts; does related ~rk as required. 

EXAMPI,ES OF W2RK 

Plans, coordinates, and develops art projects "Mlich the Council on the Arts deems of 
special interest to the State of New Jersey. 

Schedules and administers conferences am:,ng artists, art educators, and art 
organizations both visual and perfo:cming. 

Conduct·s or administers surveys within the State, as necessary to ascertain the needs 
of the arts on all levels of government. 

Prepares statistical data and reports relating ~a-surveys conducted. 

Prepares clear, technically sound and ccmprehensive statistical, financial, budget, 
progress, and other reports. 

Conducts special research studies for the Executive Director. 

Collects data for and assists in the preparation of budgets and budget requests. 

Serves as liaison between the Executive Director and any agency artist, art educator, 
and art organization, both visual and perfo:cming. 

Ali may be required, represents the Executive Director at meetings, lectures or 
conferences and prepares reports thereon. 

Serves as liaison for the Executive Director in Bicentennial planning. 

Plans and coordinates all types of programs "Ml.ether funded through Goverm:oent or 
matching funds. 

Prepares detailed and/or technical correspondence for the Executive Director. 

:Maintains essential records and files. 

May be required to learn to utilize various types of electronic and/or manual 
recording and information systems used by the agency, office ox: related units. 

(D~F-1 ze ~EVTSED ., 2/e 7) 



PRO:iRAM CIXlIDINATCR, CCUCIL CN 1BE ARI'S 

-3-

Ability to read, write, speak, understand, or CCXIII1l.nicatc in English 
sufficiently to perform the duties of this position . .American Sign Language or braille may 
also be considered as acceptable forms of CODJDJJlication. 

Persons with mental or physical disabilities arc eligible as long as they can 
perform the essential functions of the job after reasonable acca:m:odation is made to their 
known limitations. If the acca:mx>dation can.not be made because it 'M:lUld cause the employer 
undue hardship, such persons may not be eligible. 

Code: P20-58002B CAC 9-13-88 



NEVI JERSBr DEPARTMENT OF Pl!lRSONNEL 

DMSION OF CI..ASSIFICA TION AND COMPENSATION 

CfFJNITICN 

PR{XiRAM CX>RDINATOR ITTN;TI, CN JHE ARTS 
(YJ $UAI, ARTS ) 

Under the direction of the e-recutive director, Council on the Arts, Department of 
State, is responsible for conduct1ng, researching, and developing innovative programs in 
the visual arts; does related 'W:lrk as required. 

· E0\\1PLES OF W)RK 

Implements guidelines and procedures for Arts Inclusion Bill, PL 1978 QI 117, 
allocating up to 1 1/2 % of State appropriations for 'W:>rks of art in new State 
buildings. 

Assists in consultative and evaluative activities for the Program. 

Coordinates activities of artists, architects, contracting agencies, advisory 
panels, New Jersey State Council on the Arts and other State agencies involved in the 
Arts Inclusion Program. 

Organizes and maintains an up-to-date registry of New J;rsey artists. 

Coordinates arrangements for meetings, conferences, juries and panels. 

Takes the lead work of personnel assigned to handle all clerical and secretarial 
aspects of the program. 

Prepares publications and other materials relating to Visual Arts Programs. 

Prepares detailed and/or technical correspondence and necessary reports. 

Maintains essential records and files. 

Encourages inclusion of .visual arts in New Jersey corporations through pra::notion of 
Visual Arts Registry. 

Solicits and prepares proposals for increased funding for visual arts programs and 
visual artists. 

Provides information and teci:mical assistance to visual arts organizations and 
artists. 

Increases visibility for NJSCA as a public art facilitation. 

Organizes biennial exhibition of visual arts fellov.-ship recipients. 

Supports and participates in educational programs for the visual arts. 

Nfaintains archival documentation of ccmnissioned or purchased artworks. 

(CS- 12e REVISED 6/85) 
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V1 SUAL ARTS 
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May be required to learn to utilize various types of electronic and/or manual 
recording and information systems used by the agency, office or related units. 

Education 

Graduation frcm an accredited college with a Bachelor's degree. 

Experience 

1iM) years of professional experience in cultural administration or a 
particular art field "\'1/b.ich shall have involved visual arts. 

Applicants "Ml.Odo not possess the required education may substitute additional 
experience as indicated on a year for year basis. 

Li ccnse 

Appointee will be required to possess a driver's license valid in New Jersey 
only if the operatjon of a vehicle, rather than employee mobility, is necessary to 
perfoIIIl the essential duties of the position. 

Knowledges and Abilities 

"Wide knowledge of management and organizational skills necessary for the 
adequate operation of the visual arts program. 

Abi Ii ty to camJmi ca te in both oral and writ ten form.with a wide range of 
ccmnmity, goverm:oent, and corporate organizations as well as individual artists. 

Considerable knO'W'ledge and understanding of aesthetic issues and history 
particularly in the areas of art and architecture. 

Considerable knowledge of management skills and a:wareness of the fundamentals 
of public accountability. 

Ability to develop plans essential for program growth. 

Ability to learn and utilize various types of electronic and/or manual 
recording and infonmtion systems used by the agency, office or related units. 

Ability to read, write, speak, understand, or ccmninicate in English 
sufficiently to perform the duti~s of this position . .American Sign Language or braille 
may also be considered as acceptable forms of c01II1JJ..nication. 

Persons with mental or physical disabilities are eligible as long as they can 
perform the essential functions of the job after reasonable accoo:modation is made to 
their knO"w'll limitations. If the accoo:modation cannot be made because it "'M:>Uld cause the 
employer undue hardship, such-persons may not be eligible. 

Code: P20-58002 Vi-PC-P-JW 12-8-87 



NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE 
DIVISION OF CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

PROGRAM COORDINATOR, COUNCIL ON THE ARTS (CRAFTS) 

DEFINITION 

Under the direction of the Executive Director, Council on the Arts, 
Department of State, is responsible for developing lines of communication and 
programs which utilize and enhance the life of persons involved in the creation, 
use and appreciation of crafts within the State; does related work as required. 

EXAMPLES OF WORK 

Serves as liaison to craftspersons and those involved in exhibiting and 
marketing such items. 

Designs, coordinates and provides such aids as a~e necessary to develop 
workshops and other events which educate craftspersons in marketing techniques, 
advertising methods and other subject matters which are relevant to public 
appreciation of crafts as a unique field of endeavor. 

Develops and maintains an up-to-date listing of craft galleries; suppliers 
and other craft-related activities and workshops. 

Develops pamphlets, brochures, radio spots and other media-related 
elements which are necessary to provide information to the public pertaining to 
the availability, appreciation and understanding of craft work by New Jerseyans. 

Develops educational programs which are designed to enhance the prestige of 
people involved in the making of crafts and to provide opportunities for 
aspiring students to experience settings which are conducive to fine craft work. 

Participates in workshop seminars, conventions, which are conducive to the 
development of appreciation for the work produced by crafts people. 

~'rites grant proposals designed to secure monies and/or services to 
continue the crafts program; assists individuals and organizations in the 
development and writing of such proposals where necessary. 

REQUIREMENTS 

Education 

Graduation from an accredited college with a Bachelor's degree. 

Experience 

Two years of professional experience in crafts work which shall have 
included the staging of exhibitions for crafts and/or the development of 
adve=tising programs for such articles. 

Applicants who do not possess the required education may substitute 
experience as indicated above on a year for year basis. 
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License 

Appointee will be required to possess a driver's license valid in New 
Jersey only if the 9peration of a vehicle, rather than employee mobility, is 
necess~ry to perform the essential duties of the position. 

Knowledges and Abilities 

Considerable knowledge of crafts in terms of their availability and 
value. 

Considerabl~ knowledge of the process involved in conceptualizing and 
creating craft items. 

Wide knowledge of craft galleries; suppliers, craft workshops and 
other organizations and activities which are rel'ated to the craft industry. 

Basic knowledge of the ·development of advertising and marketing 
techniques specifically as these pertain to the craft project. 

Wide knowledge of the process and techniques which are used in 
developing and implementing of workshops, seminars and conventions. 

Ability to understand the work of and communicate with persons who are 
involved in the creation of crafts. 

Ability to maintain an up-to-date listing of craft galleries, 
suppliers and other craft related activities and workshops. 

Ability to develop pamphlets, brochures, radio spots and other 
related items which will provide information to the public regarding the craft 
component. 

Ability to develop educational programs to enhance the prestige of 
craftspersons. 

Ability to read, write, speak, understand, or communicate in English 
sufficiently to perform the duties of this position. American Sign Language or 
braille may. also be considered as acceptable forms of communication. 

Persons with mental or physical rlisabilities are eligible as long as 
they can perform the essential functions of the job after reasonable 
accommodation is made to their known limitations. If the accommodation cannot 
be made because it would cause the employer undue hardship, such persons may not 
be eligible. 

Range: $14,781.90-$19,958.68 Code: A20-58002B iZ-15-80 WPC 



NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE 
DIVISION OF CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

PROGRAM COORDINATOR, COUNCIL ON THE ARTS (URBAN ARTS) 

DEFINITION 

Under the direction of the Executive Director, Council on the Arts, 
Department of State, is responsible for the development, conduct, and 
supervision of arts programs which are implemented primarily in urban settings; 
does related work as required. 

EXAMPLES OF wORK 

Initiates and develops major minority arts programs within urban settings 
using the various arts disciplines such as dance, theater, exhibitioris, etc., 
which are indicative of the talent of the minority community within the State. 

Conducts on-site visits to and provides assistance for minority and other 
urban arts organizations which are seeking grants or other assistance from the 
New Jersey State Council on the Arts. 

Conducts evaluations of programs funded under the urban arts category and 
makes recommendations to panels and others who may be evaluating the worthiness 
of grant and other-requests. 

Develops and implements individualized supportive services which are 
designed to broaden and strengthen the management skills and techniques of urban 
arts organizations. 

Develops and maintains a registry of individual minority artists and arts 
organizations engaged in professional work within the State.· 

Conducts surveys as necessary to determine the impact of the Urban Arts 
Program on the cultural life of the State and to determine, from a cultural 
perspective, the needs of urban and minority constituents within New Jersey. 

Serves as liaison of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts to minority 
arts organizations which are under the purview of the Urban Arts Program. 

Drafts grant proposals and other materials which are necessary for the 
continued funding and vitality of the program. 

REQUIRHlENTS 

Education 

Graduation from an accredited college with a Bachelor's degree. 

Exp~rience 

Two years of professional experience in cultural administration or in 
a particular arts field which shall have involved minority and urban artists 
and/or programs. 
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Applicants who do not possess the required education may substitute 
experience as indicated above on a year for year basis. 

License 

Appointee will be required to possess a driver's license valid in New 
Jersey only if the operation of a vehicle, rather than employee mobility, is 
necessary to perform the essential duties of the position. 

Knowledges and Abilities 

Considerable knowledge of the contributions which minority groups 
have made within the various art forms. 

Considerable knowledge of the history of the various ethnic and racial 
minorities sufficient to allow one to deal on a day-to-d~y basis ~ith_members of 
these groups. 

Wide knowledge of the 
determining financial techniques 
organizations. 

techniques and methodologies 
and management support needs 

used in 
of arts 

Wide knowledge of management skills which are necessary for the 
adequate operation of arts organizations, especially thtise which exist in urb•~ 
settings. 

Wide knowledge of the process and techniques used to determine 
community needs for the arts with sufficient specificity to extrapolate dat.a 
which is related to urban and minority coristituents. 

Considerable knowfedge of the grant proposal and grant administration 
process as pertains to funding from both governmental and private sources. 

Ability to organize and oversee the performance of arts programs in an 
urban setting which may involve a variety of arts disciplines. 

Ability to conduct evaluations of the needs and programs of 
organizations participating in the Urban Arts P~ogram. 

Ability to assist urban arts organizations in the development and 
implementation of Management Training Programs. 

Ability to develop and maintain a registry of minority artists and 
arLs organizations. 

Ability to become familiar with the program of the New Jersey State 
Council on the Arts and convey this information to·arts organizations. 

Ability to draft grant proposals and other material which are 
necessary for the continued operation of the program. 
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Ability to read, write, speak, u.1derstand, or communicate in English 
sufficiently to perform·the duties of this position. American Sign Language or 
braille may also be considered as acceptable forms of communication. 

Persons with mental or physical disabilities are eligible as long as 
they can perform the essential functions of the job after reasonable 
accommodation is made to their known limitations. If the accommodation cannct 
be made because it would cause the employer undue hardship, such persons may not 
be eligible. 

Range: $14,781.90-$19,958.68 Code: A20-58002B 11-17-80 WPC 



NEW JERSl:: ( DEPARTMENr_ OF LIVIL.SERV.ICE 
DIVISION OF CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

PROGRAM COORDINATOR, COUNCIL ON THE ARTS (COHHUNITY DEVELOPMENT) 

DEFINITION 

Under the direction of the Executive Director, Council on the Arts, 
Department of State, is responsible to develop lines of communication between 
arts organizations (local and regional), coordinate cultural programs between 
community arts groups and the State agency, provide information sources; does 
related work as required. 

EXAMPLES OF WORK 

Cohc~ptualize and carry out innovative arts programs in the discipline of 
visual arts, music, creative writing, dance, drama, etc., to be undertaken in 
cooperation with local arts councils and art agencies. 

Serves as liaison between New Jersey State Council on the Arts and 
Community arts councils, arts organizations, local artists, and local sponors of 
the arts and identify significant arts _resources-and activities· within the 
State. 

.•. : .~ ~ . - : .. _ 

Attends and/or initiates meetings between these local groups and the State 
Arts Council. 

Provides information to local arts groups and individuals about the 
activities of the State Arts Council, possible assistance that~ay be available, 
and cooperative pro~rams. 

Supervises press releases and.Council newsletter publications; develops 
new publications to aid community arts groups (i. e. directory of exhibit 
opportunities in the State, listing of community arts groups, etc.). 

Corresponds with national crganizations and agencies to develop resources 
and contacts for local implementation. 

Uses arts administration knowledge to plan, coordinate, ~eve lop, and 
supervise singular arts events that relate to the broadening of community 
support or involvement in the arts. 

Advises the Executive Director as to arts trends and possible solutions or 
positions to be brought to attention of the Council by preparing reports on 
these matters. 

REQUIREMENTS 

Education 

Graduation from an accredited college with a Bachelor's Degree. 

Experience 

Two years of professional experience in community arts including the 
dissemination of information and work with community groups. 

·cs-12~ • REVISEO 7.'71) 
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Applicants who do not possess the required education ~.~?,,~:i~stitute 
experie·nce as indicated;above _on~a·-'yeai for ye·a"r basi·s ,"'' ·' ., .. 

Knowledges and Abilities 
. :.?f·):t,~:~-:·\:'<· .-••,,~•- :· 

· cJ•::\ ._.,. Abil_ity ,to read; )Write;•·speak and understand 'English•: sufficiently to 
-~--,--- .. ·' •· :-:;~~-r:fprf!l. _th~-- d!lties of, this: position.';, ·.• : , . · - '.. · :_. · ·, , .. ' , ~ J 1 :: ;. ·_; ,_. r ! •'.·,i .. ~-.,~ -: ·1 ·-' 

. . . -1·, ' •· ' ... _. I. i. '·. ' ~ .'· ' . ' I \ ':- ; ) .... ,.. ·'.. • •• ~ :· : : ' : :: n ~ ~! w :: ~, ,; ... .:. .. \~ ::: . . • 
Knowledge of the arts and various technologies of the arts. 

Thorough knowledge of administrative procedures of the arts. 

Ability to write and/or edit press releases covering arts events. 

Knowledge of community, regional,· State, and national arts councils 
and related activities. 

Ability to address groups and conferences. 

·_ Ability to organize meetings. 

Ability to do research and organize data into usable form. 
\ 

Knowledge of arts concerns and directions throughout the State and to 
local needs . 

. Abilit,y to conceive a ,project, determine courses of action and 
organize productive programs with a minimum of supervision. 

Ability to supervise establishment and maintenance of essential 
records and.files. 

Good health and freedom from disabling, physical and mental defects which 
would impair the proper performance of the required duties or which might 
endanger the health of oneself or others. 

Range: $13,156.13-$17,763.53. Code: A20-58002B 5-25-78 (WPC) 
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Testimony 

THE MONTCLAIR ART MUSEUM 

STATD-!.ENT: J. T. MILLS,· PRESIDENT, BOARD O"F TRUSTEES 
R.J. KOENIG, DIRECTOR 

Legblative Hea.ring, ~arch 21, 1991, 10:00 A,'1 

I. In fiscal 1991, The Xontciai:r: r\rt ~luseum's requesc for $475,000 G~neral 

Operating Support, :1ajor Impact and Arts Focus funding was cue by 

$175,000. It was net only a blow co a museum, it was a blow to an 

educational institution ·,.hich serves a multi-cultural constituency 

numbering approximdtely 85,000 visitors and, through outreach programs 

such as Math in Art and Art Reflects '~hange, reaches an additional · 

50,000. 

IL The reduction in funding to the Monte.lair Art i-1useum, and anticipated 

further cuts, forces us to call into question the program of travelinf; 

exhibitions which project the image 0£ a New Jersey that cares about 

culture and learning to audiences numbering over 500,000 in New York 

City, Chicago, Memphis, Buffalo and, in 1992, Graz, Austria. 

III. While it is difficult: to assess with accuracy the economi('. impact of 

r~duced funding to arts organizations, the fact that Montclair alone 

sustained cuts of almost three-quarters million dollars ha~ been a 

contributing factor to the town's loss of population and the prob1em­

atic state of its real estate, restaurant and retail industries. 

IV. We do not question the need to effec,; economies in the face of deficits, 

decaying citi~s and environmental crises, but we deplore the overkill 

whi,:h has reduced the staff of the New Jersey State Counci.l on the Art:s 

SOX. 
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from 26 in 1990 to 12 in 1991. This accior. could cripple the process-

ing of grant ~pplications for 1991-92 from artists and organizatio~s 

all over the state and makes us wonder whether the state government 

understands that process, particularly the importance of the out-of-

state pee.r review process, which has i:::arned for the ~.J.S.C,A. a 

reputation as one of the best arts organizacions in che U.S.A. 

v. 'I'ne Montclair Art Huseum staff, Board of Trustees and all our consti­

tuencies thank Sen, Lynch. Sen Lipman and all those legislators who 

h.:9.ve lent their support to our efforts to secure a degree of mo<ler.:1-

tion in our state government's current arts funding policies. We 

express our appreciation to Elizabeth ChTistopherson, the Board of 

Trustees and the staff of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts 

for all their efforts on behalf of arts organizations in New .fo:r;;cy. 

RJK:la 
3/19/91 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
NEW JERSEY STATE COUNCIL ON THE ARTS 

Applica~ions and nominations are invited for the position of Executive 
Director of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts located in Trenton, 
New Jersey 

The Council is seeking 11. director who has a Liberal, Fine Arts or Public 
Administration degree, Candidates possessing an advanced degree will 
rec=iv~ preference. Persons with extensive administrative experience in 
an arts related organization, including more than five years of 
supervisory re::ponsibility; knowledge of governmental processes and 
proc~dure~; experlence wlth budgeting; demonstrated knowledge of the 
performing, literary and visur.l arts; excellent written and verbal skills 
arP. urged to apply. 

The director directs, implements and administers all programs and services 
of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts in accordance with the 
policies of the Council and consistent with State policies and procedures; 
assists the Council in developing policies; directs implementation of the 
Council's long-range plan~: prepares and monitors the Council's budget: 
oversees staff: secures and manages federal funding; serves as Council 
representative at local, State, region~l and national meetings and 
conferences related to the arts. Acts as liaison with Chairman and all 
members of the Council and is responsible for the relationship between the 
Council an the State governmen_t, .and between the Council, outside agencies 
and th~ public. 

SALARY RANGE: $45,900-$64,300 

It is expected that the Director will take offic~ July 30, 1991. 

Applications should be submitted as soon as possible, preferably before 
Aprill, 1991. Candidates should submit a cover letter explaining why 
they are interested in and qualified for this position, a current resume, 
and the name, addresses, and telephone numbers of five references 

This information should be sent to: 

Sharon Harrington, or 
Celeste S. Penney 
New Jersey State Council on the Arts 
4 North Broad Street 
CN-306 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

The Stace of New Jersey is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 
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ARrsCENTER 

Lawrence P. Goldman 
President 

The Honorable Wynona M. Lipman 
State Senator 
50 Park Place 
Newark, NJ 07102 

Dear Senator Lipman, 

March 19 1 1991 

One Gateway Center ( 12th floor) 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 
Telephone: 201-648-8989 

Fax: 201-648-6724 

Unfortunately previously scheduled and unchangeable commitments will not allow me to 
be present at your committee hearings regarding the State Arts Council. 

If it is appropriate, I would ask that you allow the contents of this letter to become part of 
the record of the hearing. 

A vital and active State Arts Council has long be.en a source of pride for U1e State of New 
Jersey. The funding, both capital and operating, provided by the State Arts Council to 
artistic groups, small and large, around the State has been one of the pivotal reasons why 
New Jersey has had such a fine record as a flourishing center of culture. 

The New Jersey Performing Arts Center, as you know, is being designed and built to serve 
as an intemational setting for a multi-cultural array of world-class performing arts 
organizations. In addition, NJPAC is intended as a potential venue for the wide-range of 

. arts groups in New Jersey. TI1e New Jersey Symphony will finally have a permanent home 
and many of the other ~mailer performing arts organizations in the State will have the 
prospect of performing at a venue at the quality level of the Kennedy Center, Lincoln 
Center, and the other great cultural institutions of the world. 

While we, of course, recognize the acute exigencies of these difficult financial times, we 
truly hope that the State Arts Council and the State commitment to the arts generally are 
re.cognized for what U1ey are: 11ot donations with no return, b1.1t vital investments in the 
State's economic, cultural, and spiritual infrastructure. 
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It has been demonstrated Lime and again that public investment in the arts yields returns 
far in excess of the amounts invested. The economic ctevelopment leveraged from the arts 
and the quality of life e11ha.11cement associated with cultural development testify to the 
importance of a strollg public commitment. 

We urge the State Legislature to recognize> even in these difficult. times, the seminal 
importance of the State Arts Council and the groups which it supports. 

Thank yo~t and best wishes. 

LPG:onr 

c: Raymond G. Chambers 

Sincere! dours, f 
-....... 

{awrence P. Goldman 



~ Alliance for Arts Education/New Jersey v(Y"~-0. BOX 1774 • TRENTON, NJ 08607-1774 • (609) 396-7171 . 

~ March 21, 1991 

OFFICERS 

Joan R. Policastro 
Presiaent 

Theresa Purcell 
President Elect 

Eduardo Garcia 
Treasurer 

Hilaria Davis 
Secretary 

George E. T rogler 
Immediate Past President 

Christine C. Jacobs 
Executive Director 

State Government and Federal and Interstate Relations 
Committee of the Senate 

Chair: Senator V.Jyona M. Lipman 

The State :ouncil on the Arts has been a bulwark 
for the arts in New Jersey. -They have been a 
motivator for excellence, a source of expertise and 
known throughout the arts community for their hard 
work and integrity. In my many visits to the council 
offices I have witnessed a vital staff diminished 
until the office has become a silent no-man's land. 

The integrity of the grant process was threatened 
and grave concern for the continuation of NEA funds 
ensued. Cutting back on staff in a time of budgetary 
problems should be done in a conscientious,intelligent 
manner. Decimating this council and attempting to 
complete the grant process without the experience 
and expertise of the council staff and the peer 
review panels imperiled the arts in New Jersey. 

We are not talking about a small item. I do not 
have to quote names of internationally known artists 
who received their artistic background and career 
beginnings in New Jersey. You are well aware of the 
scope of talented New Jerseyans. The fame of our 
performing ,groups and their service to arts education 
is also well known. Many of our now famous performing 
organizations,. such as Cross Roads Theate131 received 
the support of the arts council in their formation 
and growth. 

The State Arts Council is the underpinning for the 
business of the arts, the excellence of the arts 
in New Jersey and that should not be compromised. 
Thank you for your attention. 

Joan Policastro 
President, Alliance for Arts Education/New Jersey 
4 Tall Pines Lane, Whitehouse Station, NJ 08889 
908-439-2525 

The John E Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts 111111111111111111111 
~ 

AAE/ NJ is an affiliate of the Education Department of the John F. Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts, Washington, D.C. 



Art - Its Value and Impact 

The arts are an expression of ourselves in need and in 
joy. In depressed times the arts represent an outlet and hope 
for the future. In good times the arts remind us what life 
is all about. 

It is the multitude of expressions, ideas and conceptions 
that make the arts the unique aspect of our life as it is. It 
represents the good and the bad in all of us in a safe and 
confining way. The small child grows rapidly in the atmosphere 
of the arts. The senior citizen reflects on the past through 
creative expressions on canvas or scupltured stone. Art records 
history and at the same time helps us to understand what history 
is all about. To be without art is to be be without value in 
life. If we take art away because time and economic Conditions 
are tight, it only compounds the problem because we also take 
away expression, confidence, love and self-creativity. Art 
is and always will be taken for granted because we never take 
the time to really look at its true value, its worth, its basic. 
need to all of society. Expressing this need, this value is 
always difficult. It is difficult because most people take 
from art. We do not look at what it really does for us. 

Art is an educational process to start. It demands 
continuous learning, ·challenge and recording. The more one 
learns about art, the more it is valued. The more one practices 
art, the more that person grows within. It is the continuous 
educational process surrounding art that gives it a character 
and a value to all in our society. 

Art is used in therapy where there is no hope. Art somehow 
produces new hopes. Art tells stories and expresses beauty, 
joy and happiness. It somehow combines musical notes to soothe 
the soul or stimulate the mind. It represents to you who you 
are. Without it who are we? Why do we live? How do we express 
ourselves?. How do we reach out for excellence? 

Art is communication. It communicates politics to love 
and justice. One does not need to understand another's language 
but can always understand another's art no matter what language 
or culture it comes from. When we take away the arts we take 
away the ability to communicate with each other, and in that 
lies the real danger~ Without communication, society breeds 
distruct, misunderstanding, war and destruction. 
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Art allows us to explore and to create. It is the basis 
all new thoughts. In all long chains of events, it is the 
that helped create modern inventions. It is time tested. 
is the trial and errors of art that allows us to advance 
the unknown, seek assurance, to solve universal problems 
test reality as an everyday experience. 

of 
art 
It 

into 
and 

Art teaches how to organize, train and discipline ourselves. 
We learn how to build a strong foundation. How to balance and 
to respect the need for balance in life. It gives us alternatives 
to turn to other than drugs or alcohol. Choice is an everyday 
training experience in the arts. There is a very significant 
right or wrong learned from the arts. What art does more than 
any other media is to challenge concepts of right or wrong, 
to explore their soundness and expose their benefit or drawbacks. 

Art is a motivator. It gives meaning and purpose to life. 
The sick gain hope to continue with a purpose and the shy have 
an outlet to express their feelings and live. The dancer gains 
strength as he/she strives for perfection. The child is mystified 
by its magnetic adventures. Alcohdlics have a choice and 
something to turn to. Poets capture in words those things that 
motivate the world. Painters capture the sunsets and sculptors 
create lasting impressions of ourselves in stone that lasts 
forever. 

In almost every aspect of what art is it is clearly reflected 
in politics. Poli tics requires communication, motivation, 
education and creation of new. They are all deeply rooted in 
the natural process of the arts but we seldom look at the arts 
as the basis of politics. Cutting back on the arts is like 
cutting back on political power and not even knowing it. It's 
like cutting off a leg of a wolf in the wilderness and expecting 
it to survive despite the odds. Poli tics is an art in every 
sense of the word even though most do not like to admit it and 
few take the time to realize it. But then we tend to take 
politics for granted too. We may not agree with it, we may 
not be wrapped up in it and we at times may not understand it 
but politics is to us an essential part of our lives and our 
society just as art is. 

Art represents the inner part of our lives that· says its 
exciting to be alive, ·--it is worth it to help others to learn 
and grow. It is such an important part of the balance in life 
that without art it a part of ourselve dies. 

Art is our outlet, the creator within ourself, the reason 
we have values. It is life and all that its about. 

Benjamin M. Schaffer 
Essex County Division of Cultural 
and Historic Affairs 
March 20, 1991 




